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Company Profile
NI

NVC Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) is a leading
supplier of lighting products in China, which is engaged in the
design, development, production, marketing and sale of a wide
variety of lighting products including lamp products, luminaire
products and lighting electronic products. According to the
statistics of China Association of Lighting Industry, we were the
largest domestic brand of lighting products supplier in China in
2009 in terms of revenue. Our products are sold through the
national sales network of 38 exclusive regional distributors and
our 3,529 NVC outlets covering 31 provinces, municipalities and
autonomous regions in China. Our production bases in China
are located in Guangdong, Chongging, Zhejiang and Shanghai
and we have established research and development centre in
Huizhou. We have set up operation agencies in more than 40
countries and regions around the world.

We have maintained a rapid growth since the establishment in
1998 and supplied highly efficient energy-saving and healthy
and comfortable lighting products to the general public through
our own research and development system and continuous
innovations. Our products serve many fields including interior,
business, office, construction, industry, lamp and lighting
electronics and household (including LED series). We have
maintained the leading position in the market, especially in the
commercial lighting sector. On 20 May 2010, the Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 02222).
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As a professional lighting enterprise, our lighting products and
solutions are selected and used by a number of famous projects
and brands, including the well-known projects such as the
2008 Beijing Olympic Games, the Shanghai World Expo 2010,
Tianjin Subway, Wuhan-Guangzhou Highspeed Railway and
Shanghai Honggiao Transport Hub, etc. and also by the world-
class hotels such as Hilton, Sheraton and Intercontinental, and
the domestic sales outlets of famous automotive brands such as
Bentley, BMW and Toyota as well as the garment brands such
as Metersbonwe, Septwolves, K-Boxing and Erdos. In 2011,
we became the lighting and service cooperative partner of the
Olympic Council of Asia (“OCA”). We entered into an agreement
to become an “Official Cooperative Partner of International
Swimming Federation” in 2013 and became the senior sponsor
for the 2014 Qingdao International Horticultural Exposition.

“To become a world brand and the best player in the industry”
is our ultimate goal. The Group has devoted itself to beautify
the commercial and living space with artificial lighting and
protecting the ecological environment with environmentally-
friendly and energy-saving lighting products. Therefore, we have
been vigorously promoting the research and development and
applications of advanced lighting technologies, accomplishing its
brand beliefs and commitments with excellence and expertise.
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Financial Highlights
B E

For the years ended 31 December BZ12A31HLFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

2015% 2014% 2013% 20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
TAR® TARE TARE TARE TARE

(Restated)
(4 E5))
Revenue WA 3,845,650 3,471,014 3,773,816 3,546,036 3,797,998
Gross profit EM 901,005 741,576 797,403 761,347 974,086
Gross profit margin (Note 1) EFI=E (f1321) 23.4% 21.4% 21.1% 21.5% 25.6%
Profit/(loss) before income tax BaAE /(58) 203,088 (314,587) 354,458 116,481 626,123
Profit/(loss) margin before BAIFIE
income tax (Note 7) (B8) = (K1) 5.3% (9.1%) 9.4% 3.3% 16.5%
Profit/(loss) for the year (Note 2) A%EF)E /(E12) (fis2) 127,737  (328,068) 282,107 48,544 574,031
Net profit/(loss) margin (Note 1) EHIE /(E18) = (f571) 3.3% (9.5%) 7.5% 1.4% 15.1%
Profit/(loss) for the year T &7 RS
attributable to: FE,/ (E8) -
Owners of the parent BREAEEA 55,759  (354,153) 244,884 8,416 547,835
Non-controlling interests FEPEHI RS 71,978 26,085 37,223 40,128 26,196
Note 1: Gross profit margin equals to gross profit divided by revenue; Btat1 . EFMERZEREFGLAYWA : FRIF
Profit/(loss) margin before income tax equals to profit/(loss) B (BB RERBRANE (8
before income tax divided by revenue; net profit/(loss) margin B) BRUAIA  SERE(EB) X
equals to profit/(loss) for the year divided by revenue. ERARFEFE,(BE) BRIAWA -
Note 2: Profit/(loss) for the year represents profit before netting off profit a2 - REFE(BER) BIBRIEEHIE

for the year attributable to non-controlling interests. e FEAE AT FERTAFE o
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Financial Highlights
B E

As at 31 December M12A318 1

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
2015% 2014% 2013% 20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
TAR® TARE TARE TARE TARE

(Restated)
(A5 E7))
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,221,748 1,304,846 1,312,316 1,295,332 1,535,110
Current assets REEE 3,645,816 3,206,593 3,456,658 3,238,957 3,069,276
Current liabilities MEEE 1,313,771 1,043,726 900,279 839,699 780,439
Net current assets BREAE 2,332,045 2,162,867 2,556,379 2,399,258 2,288,837
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 3,553,793 3,467,713 3,868,695 3,694,500 3,823,947
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 97,764 101,104 108,070 111,857 112,194
Total equity B 3,456,029 3,366,609 3,760,625 3,582,733 3,711,753
Including: Hep:
Equity attributable to BARHEAA
owners of the parent ity 3,316,907 3,247,462 3,676,870 3,511,701 3,656,349
Non-controlling interests FEEGI S 139,122 119,147 83,755 71,032 55,404
Current ratio (Note 1) MENLE (A1) 2.78 3.07 3.84 3.86 3.93
Note 1: Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current Bat1 . R RENRRBEERURB A
liabilities. & o
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present to
you the 2015 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Various industries including the lighting industry were challenged
by the global economic slowdown. The traditional lighting
industry is transforming to the LED lighting model. Many lighting
companies, including the international leading enterprises
are facing a significant reconstruction trend triggered by the
combined effects of various factors. The market has also been
changing rapidly. Throughout the years, from establishing
exclusive distributors to building channel operation centers, then
adopting 020 business model, innovation has always been the
key to our success.

In 2015, in the aspect of operational management, the
management of the Group continued to focus on “restoration
and adjustment”, where the Group was “restoring” from the
turmoil in 2014 and continued to maintain, inherit and promote
its excellent corporate features, while “adjusting” from the
destruction of the turmoil and reconstructing and repairing the
enterprise system in order to promote the further advancement
of the Group’s governance structure and cultural concept. After
going through setbacks and repetitive ordeals, the Group has
managed to obtain considerable growth in its business in 2015.

° Sales revenue increased to RMB3,845,650,000,
representing a growth of 10.8% as compared with the
Corresponding Period;

o Gross profit increased to RMB901,005,000, representing
a growth of 21.5% as compared with the Corresponding
Period;
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Chairman’s Statement

° Profit attributable to owners of the parent increased to
RMB55,759,000, as compared with the loss attributable
to owners of the parent of RMB354,153,000 in the
Corresponding Period;

o The sales revenue of LED lighting products increased to
RMB2,223,989,000, representing a growth of 81.1% as
compared with the Corresponding Period.

In 2016, the Group will continue its tradition in achieving
breakthrough as well as its attempts in reform and innovation,
with proactive strategies deployment in production and
procurement, sales, research and development to re-shape the
enterprise culture, in order to capture development opportunities
amidst the intensified global competitions.

Enhance Internal Consolidation and Adopt Stringent
Production and Procurement Cost Control

In terms of production and procurement, the Group will expedite
the implementation of lean production project and introduce
the “amoeba” operation concept to foster responsibility system
in the production bases. The Group will also carry out quality
cost-control to improve the quality management system of
various production bases and suppliers. In terms of supply chain
management, the Group will set up the suppliers’ grading system
to eliminate disqualified suppliers and optimize the supply team
so as to lower production and procurement costs drastically and
enhance overall operating efficiency.

EREHE
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

Integrate Various Businesses Models and Achieve
Comprehensive Online to Offline Marketing

In 2016, the Group will transform its sales model from the
“single business approach” to “integration of various business
approaches” as well as from the “offline operation” to “online
and offline integration”. The Group will continue to promote
business diversification in 2016, deploy strategic product mix
of household lighting and commercial lighting with an aim to
push forward these two business segments as the performance
growth highlights of the Group. Meanwhile, we will endeavor to
improve the 020 platform in 2016, increase the number of 020
experiential outlets, increase the platform transaction amount
and enrich the product categories to bring about complementary
benefits between 020 channel and traditional sales strategies,
eventually boosting the sales volume and upgrading customers’
experiences in the exclusive outlets.

Press Ahead Overseas Market Expansion and Enrich
Core Product Mix

With respect to overseas market exploration, the Group will focus
on developing the U.K., Australia and the Middle East markets
in 2016. In particular, by virtue of the NVC core products,
we will endeavor to become the leading office lighting and
commercial lighting products provider in the U.K. and Australia.
Commercial and government projects are our core businesses
in the Middle East. We will also establish an office in Dubai to
seek breakthrough in the mainstream project channels including
the World Expo 2020 and the 2022 World Cup. Moreover, we
are planning to establish 5 to 8 exclusive outlets in UAE, Saudi
Arabia, Kuwait, Arman and Indonesia. To accelerate overseas
market expansion for the NVC Brand, we will also consider
carrying out overseas merger and acquisition.
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Carry Out Research and Development on LED
Products and Implement Product Assessment
Mechanism

In 2016, the Group will conduct the two-pronged research and
development. We will focus on forward-looking research for
developing the LED lighting products with market potentials
and high technology, while introducing assessment mechanism
and informative approach to enhance the product lifecycle
management and push forward the standardization of product
development. In order to increase our domestic and overseas
LED lighting market shares, we will enrich the product lines and
enhance the price-performance ratio, so as to become the leader
of LED lighting product industry.

Acknowledgement

Our stable development for more than 10 years depends entirely
on the wholehearted contributions and persistent support from
the Board and all staff members. | would like to express my
heartfelt thanks to the long-term support of all shareholders,
clients, suppliers and distributors. In the future, we will strive
forward steadily as in the past with full responsibility to all
shareholders, clients, suppliers and distributors, with an aim to
make NVC Lighting a world-wide respected brand and secure
satisfactory results to repay the support from various sectors.

WANG Donglei
Chairman

Hong Kong
5 April, 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B WmED AT

Market Review

In 2015, the global economy was in a period of in-depth
adjustment. On one hand, the overall economic recovery of
the developed countries was unstable. Despite the continued
recovery of the U. S. A. economy, the Eurozone and Japan were
still in economic plights. On the other hand, the overall economic
growth of emerging markets and the developing countries
continued to slump. The changing monetary policies of major
economies have aggravated the global capital flow, together with
the weak global economy, the pace of recovery was uncertain.

As indicated by the National Bureau of Statistics, the nationwide
GDP had a 6.9% vyear-on-year growth in 2015, representing
a drop of 0.4% as compared with the growth rate of last year
and the lowest level in the last 25 years. The growth rate of the
real estate industry which was closely related to the lighting
industry slowed down as well. In 2015, the nationwide house
construction area of real estate development enterprises had
a year-on-year growth of 1.3%. The new house construction
area had a year-on-year drop of 14.0%, coupled with a year-on-
year fall of 31.7% in terms of the area of land acquired by real
estate developers. Despite the slowdown for both domestic and
international economic growth, traditional lighting lamps and
luminaries have been rapidly replaced by the use of LED lighting,
showing a gradual transition from the era of replacement to the
era of popularity with LED lighting applications.

Notwithstanding the continued rise of the demand for LED
lighting and rapid replacement in the traditional lighting
application market, the oversupply in the industry has caused
a sharp decline in the average cost of LED lighting products,
resulting in fierce competition and expedited the exit of small and
medium enterprises from the market. The integration, reshuffling
and upgrade of the lighting industry speeded up in light of the
new circumstances. Industry concentration will continue to rise in
the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

2015 is the year of restoration and adjustment for the Group,
where it was recovering from the turmoil while adjusting its
operation. In respect of the marketing model, the Group
continued to capitalize its engineering project advantages and
secured substantial orders for the supply of lighting products
such as supply of lighting products to Sinopec Group during
the Reporting Period, The Company also closely adhered
to the market demand by developing the household lighting
business to create new profit growth points, leading to the
business model of the joint development of both engineering
and household products. In relation to channels expansion,
the Group has proactively reached out to hardware business
distributors and improved various systems so as to further
enhance the brand penetration. In respect of the supply chain
management, by streamlining the original suppliers through
public tender, eliminating unqualified suppliers and introducing
premium suppliers, the annual cost of procurement decreased as
the result of the improved quality of the supplier team. In terms
of production management, the establishment of the central
planning centre and the lean production office, coupled with the
optimized flow of production and stringent control on costs have
all contributed to the improved profit level of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B WmED AT

Sales and distribution

As for the NVC Brand in the PRC market, the Group incorporated
38 exclusive regional distributors during the Reporting Period.
The exclusive regional distributors had a total of 3,529 exclusive
outlets (100.0% coverage rate in the provincial capital, 97.2%
coverage rate in the prefecture-level cities, 67.1% coverage
rate in the county-level cities, and 2.3% coverage rate in the
town centers), representing a decrease of 176 exclusive outlets
as compared with the Corresponding Period. Such decrease
was mainly due to centralizing the advantageous resources and
enhancing the operating efficiency of various exclusive outlets by
streamlining and rectifying the exclusive outlets comprehensively,
as well as upgrading and increasing the area of advantageous
exclusive outlets. Apart from the exclusive regional distributors,
the Group had a total of 1,435 exhibition counters and exhibition
walls during the Reporting Period. Over 80.0% of these outlets
were located in town centers to supplement its insufficient
exclusive outlet coverage in the area. Furthermore, during the
Reporting Period, the Group constructed and operated 020
platform smoothly and established a comprehensive 020
marketing system, transferring online traffic to offline business.
In order to develop O20 business throughout Mainland China,
the Group set up the retail management center and complete the
construction of 24 020 experience outlets during the Reporting
Period while another 114 outlets are under renovation, aiming at
reforming and upgrading 3,529 exclusive outlets gradually by the
modern O20 model and becoming the leader in retail industry to
cater the market demand.

HERDH

FHBRETREMEIAE @ AEERE
EFENEESBEBREHLHERE -
BREHCHEHEETHE32KEE
E (AWM BEEEE100% : AR H
MBEEXREI7.2% : BATRERHK™T
BEXRER6TA%: HEKRTEEEXA
2.3%) REAIHMBIT6RBEE - £
ERATEFEBRERESEEEEN
EEME  HEBEEHET2AMNERER
U8 FIREELEREETSUER -
WEEEEE BREEEIN  AEER
BREFEALERE BEAZBHL
1,435% * 80.0% A £ &9 48 B 5 #5 7R 48
BT AR T EEECAEMEES
EHRE o i AEBRBEFENR
JIEF#& 2 W B 1T020F & » B & &
Q0% B X LR EREYVEEL
BETELE RESERZEEBEAN
020/ ' AEERBEFERNRLE
EEREFL - WEK24FR0208 5 /5K
EBR ZEI1UREGEEE  8EER
RO20ME R HL3,520R H & 5 15 &
FHik - B BITESEBRER  F
ZERRETIBEImEER K



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Management Discussion and Analysis

In respect of the NVC brand in the international market, the
Group has adhered to its self-owned brand strategies and
continued the in-depth channels cultivation, making LED office
lighting as well as commercial lighting and LED lamps as its
core product lines. During the Reporting Period, the Group
strengthened the expansion of emerging markets in Indonesia,
the Middle East, Brazil and Africa with remarkable development
in the Middle East. The Group has been recognized as a
qualified supplier by the Ministry of Justice of Saudi Arabia and
successfully secured the engineering project of a famous hotel
in Dubai, resulting in the increase of market share of the Group
rapidly. However, because of the relatively bigger drop in the
traditional lighting products during the Reporting Period, coupled
with the falling prices of LED lighting products, the international
sales volume of NVC brand products dropped 10.1% from the
Corresponding Period to RMB396,724,000.

For the non-NVC brands in the PRC and the international
markets, the Group mainly supplied well-known lighting
enterprises with energy-saving lamps, energy-saving light tubes
and accessories in the form of ODM. During the Reporting
Period, the sales volume of the Group’s traditional lighting
products declined while the sales volume of the LED lighting
products was on the rise, resulting in an increase of 3.1%
in the sales revenue of non-NVC brand products to reach
RMB1,111,409,000.

BEERWED AT

FEERETREMSIE  AEEREF
ETETREEE S8 LEERHE
£ - HSLEDH# A RRAT - B S BRBAAMLED
RBERBEERLERRE RBREFE
N AEBMAEHFTETESHARSD
[E - ERFRENE - PR B FEM
EmHe-HP AR RERMHBFETHE
EMBRE  SEDENABRIEBIA
ERHEREE KW EFNIHFZES
ERBETIRER  ARESASKER
EHHMISEAEER - BEERBREFER
BREHERMEETHREERA L
LEDRBFHEREBRTK  FEELME
EMHBEEREERERRABETR/F10.1%
EARMEZ96,724F 7T °

ERBELBEERFEELRET ST @ - &
SETZ2LAODMEA BB IRAAL XL
HETRERE - BiBEBE R EmM - N
TEEN AREERBRAERHE T
& - MLEDRAAEMRIFE LT IR
TmfEEMmEERARRHE RS A% -
ZAR¥1,111,409F T °
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Product research, development and design

During the Reporting Period, the research and development
of the Group focused on LED lighting with reference to market
demand and developed a batch of high-tech products well-
received by the market. Among which, the brand new LED
Leiting lighting products have drawn the biggest attention.
With full application of flip-chip and dual-core technologies, the
product line covered over 200 products including LED lamps,
LED ceiling light and spot luminaries series, LED grid spot
light, LED track spot light, and LED lamp holder. This product
line upgraded various safety technologies related to the users
and sufficiently meet the commercial and professional lighting
requirements. Furthermore, the Group applied for 112 new
patent applications and 52 were granted during the Reporting
Period. The Group invested RMB59,634,000 in the research and
development, accounting for 1.6% of the Group’s revenue.

Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. During the Reporting
Period, the turnover of the Group increased 10.8% from the
Corresponding Period to RMB3,845,650,000. In particular, the
LED lighting products recorded revenue of RMB2,223,989,000
with an increase of 81.1% from the Corresponding Period.

EmBRRRE

RBEFEAN - AEENHAEELESD
fELEDHRAASES, - WEIZM S F K - H
BT —HEAMGHY  SREMSEN
Eme HhUHMELEDEEFT mxAE
B ZEREBTHIERTHEESIR RE
ANE BRI - E MR ELED R » LED
RAIERE - &% &5 - LEDIE 57 & -
LEDEE #h 51 /& FLED & £2 55 % {# 48 13 4
00 RER 2EALTEHBFAE
AN ZEZEREM - Ao mEmEEH
EEREFTRK I AEBRBREF
EAFEBEBEMNF1127E - BERELR
THFNAEL2E - REBEMAFIERFIRA
SHE A ARES9,634F 7T (HAREEH
EIWARI1.6% °

B % B R
HEWA

HEWRAEBDEEYNREEE &
MBREEMPTNOFE - RBEFE
N AEEDRSHEHERARBARKE
38,845,650F 7T+ ¥ [A A 1% &10.8% -
HEFILEDRHAERDEHEHERAARE
2,223,989F 7T - WA AAIERE1.1% °



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWEDT

Revenue by product segments HERDSE D B A
The table below sets forth the revenue by product segments TREIIRED DS (FEEAE - YRR
(luminaire, lamp and lighting electronic products) and the growth BAERR) S0 AR E DA REK -

rate of each segment.

Years ended 31 December
HBZE12A31ALLEE

2015 2014 Growth rate
20155 2014% BRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR¥ FARY
Luminaire products P& B E 2,588,368 2,108,622 22.8%
Lamp products JIRE o 1,040,485 1,149,045 (9.4%)
Lighting electronic products FRRAERE M 216,797 213,347 1.6%
Total CEll 3,845,650 3,471,014 10.8%
During the Reporting Period, the sales of luminaire products RBEEFER BEEREEEER
increased 22.8% mainly attributed to the newly developed 228% FE/ERNFTHENREEER
business of household luminaire products as well as the ¥BRLEDEEEMMEZEBEE XK
comprehensive sales of LED Leiting products. The sales of EmEETH.4%  FEXILEDRHE
lamp products decreased 9.4% mainly due to the impact from mEE  REERNREDIEE T -
LED lighting products, leading to the gradual transformation of KRR E P FLEDF R E mEs A ; AR AF
traditional lamp products with declining sales towards LED lamp EREMEEER1.6%  RBEFER
products in future. The sales of lighting electronic products grew FEMNBINEFPFREE - BLEDES
1.6%. During the Reporting Period, the demand from overseas EmG A HARARE EF -

clients was stable with LED electronic products accounting for
a significant increase in the sales proportion compared to the
Corresponding Period.
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Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and BHENERE L mEEIE L @
non-NVC brand sales EZ 5 KA

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographical locations, TREFIZMWBMNEMNELRBEERM
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the FELTHEERESHHEERARSE
growth rate of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily EMEEX - RPMIEETREERE
consist of ODM products. B HODME mAR °

Years ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2015 2014 Growth rate
20154 20144 ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
Sales revenue from PRC REFEOESKRA
NVC brand ELmE 2,337,517 1,951,973 19.8%
Non-NVC brand JEE L Mg 278,018 320,507 (13.3%)
Subtotal IEF 2,615,535 2,272,480 15.1%
Sales revenue from REBERHOEERA
international market
NVC brand Bt mh 396,724 441,286 (10.1%)
Non-NVC brand IEFE TR 833,391 757,248 10.1%
Subtotal INEf 1,230,115 1,198,534 2.6%

Total = 3,845,650 3,471,014 10.8%
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Revenue by LED lighting products and non-LED lighting #ZLEDAR 85 iia M FELED AR 85 & dn 7 58
products b

The table below sets forth our revenue from LED lighting TR YL LEDIR AR &= b A JELEDHR A5
products and non-LED lighting products and the growth rate of mElDHRARZSIEEIBRE -
each item.

Years ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2015 2014 Growth rate
2015% 20144 HRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARME
LED lighting products LEDRRPAE 2,223,989 1,228,131 81.1%
Non-LED lighting products JELEDHRRAE 1,621,661 2,242,883 (27.7%)

Total =X 3,845,650 3,471,014 10.8%
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials,
outsourced manufacturing costs, labor costs and indirect costs.
Major raw materials of the Group include iron, aluminium and
alloys, fluorescent powder, glass tubes, electronics components
and LED packaged chips. Outsourced manufacturing costs
primarily include the cost of purchased semi-finished products
and finished products produced by other manufacturers and
used in the production of our products. Indirect costs primarily
include water, electricity, depreciation and amortisation and
others. The table below sets forth the composition of our cost of
sales:

$HE AR

HEKXATEZEBRERMBKA - IMEE
FERZN ~ BEMER S TRANEZE
A AEENTERMHBESE - 2 K&
B &XH KEE TN
KMLEDHENFF - INEEEXRETEE
BREBEMREHEED - ARHMA
B EE A 7E )+ B dn A S AK R B B o
BHREBAKNAIEZBHEK B HEM
BIHARHEAD - TRINIRIHEK AR E
AR

Years ended 31 December
HE12A31ALEE

2015
2015%
Percentage in

2014
20144
Percentage in

RMB’000 revenue (%) RMB’000 revenue (%)

fEWA (1 ON

TARY L 5l (%) FARE LE151(%)

Raw materials R 1,948,892 50.7% 2,071,170 59.7%
Outsourced manufacturing costs SNELHE EERR R 484,315 12.6% 206,345 5.9%
Labor costs TR 331,766 8.6% 260,805 7.5%
Indirect costs HZEER 179,672 4.7% 191,118 5.5%
Total =il 2,944,645 76.6% 2,729,438 78.6%

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales as a percentage
of the revenue dropped from 78.6% to 76.6%. The gross profit
margin increased from 21.4% to 23.4%, mainly because of the
comprehensive cost saving measures implemented by the Group
including mainly the restructuring of the production flow, the
increase in the production efficiency, and the public procurement
tender, resulting in the notably higher gross profit margin.

RBEFERN HEXNNEGRANET
D E #H78.6%F% £76.6% 0 F F K )t
21.4%F £23.4%  TERAEEHE
ZHEHBEKAERE  TE2RRNELEER
FEMNRSINBFERS °
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ERNRENZ

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

EMEHERABEHEX AR OF

cost of sales. L

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less

During the Reporting Period, gross profit was RMB901,005,000,
representing an increase of 21.5% as compared with the

RBEFERN BEREEEFNAA
R #901,005F o » EHE AL &KL

Corresponding Period, gross profit margin increased from 21.4% 21.5% -+ 8 & E M X #21.4%H =
to 23.4%. The gross profit and gross profit margin by segments 23.4% o & n EBHYEF KX FEF EF R 40
are as follows: N

(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit 0] TEHWEZERSZ (BE - %
margin by product segments (luminaire, lamp and lighting JEAIBRRASE 2S) MEFMFMER X ¢
electronic products):

Years ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
FARYE (%) FARHE (%)
Luminaire products BEEMR 671,651 25.9% 503,554 23.9%
Lamp products FIRE @ 187,930 18.1% 198,744 17.3%
Lighting electronic products  BRBAEE 28 &= & 41,424 19.1% 39,278 18.4%
Total kil 901,005 23.4% 741,576 21.4%

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin RWEFERN  BRAEREFE
of luminaire products increased by 2.0% to 25.9% BEH EH2.0%E25.9% ' £ &

as compared with the Corresponding Period, mainly SErREFERNENEGHR

attributed to the contribution from household luminaire
products and LED Leiting products with high gross
profit margin, big sales volume and implementation of
the comprehensive cost saving measures during the
Reporting Period; the gross profit margin of lamp products
rose 0.8% from the Corresponding Period to 18.1%;
the gross profit margin of lighting electronic products
rose 0.7% from the Corresponding Period to 19.1%,
which was mainly attributed to the Group’s proactive
measures including the lean production management,
the restructuring of the production flow and the cost-
cutting through procurement tender, leading to an overall
decrease in the cost of procurement and production.

EEEERKLEDEEZEEREE
RUARERENZ &R AEIE - K
TRE B EN R FH EFH0.8%
£181% F MBPAEREMEF
EREH EH0.7%E19.1% * &
FEBRRAEBHTHOBRE
EERE - £EREME  KEBER
EREKAFERGIENE - B
s MBS AB AT R o
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TRIRAT R AR IEM B
profit margin by geographical locations and NVC brand FELTRIETRENENRE
products and non-NVC brand products: FZ& -

(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross (ii)

Years ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
TARE (%) FARE (%)
Gross profit from TEIHEELN
PRC sales: EF :
NVC brand ELmkE 600,856 25.7% 465,841 23.9%
Non-NVC brand FEELTHE 37,881 13.6% 34,951 10.9%
Subtotal IE 638,737 24.4% 500,792 22.0%
Gross profit from BERRHEEEM
international sales: ER :
NVC brand ELTmE 97,134 24.5% 101,780 23.1%
Non-NVC brand FELRE 165,134 19.8% 139,004 18.4%
Subtotal I 262,268 21.3% 240,784 20.1%
Total At 901,005 23.4% 741,576 21.4%
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T & # JILEDR B & & A & 3F
LEDRRBHE ) EF REM =

(iif) The table below sets forth the gross profit and gross profit (iii)
margins of LED lighting products and non-LED lighting
products:

Years ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEEE

2015 2014
201545 20144

RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)

FARM (%) FARE (%)

LED lighting products  LEDJRFRE M@ 604,732 27.2% 309,727 25.2%
Non-LED lighting JELEDHRRRE &

products 296,273 18.3% 431,849 19.3%

Total gross profit BEF 901,005 23.4% 741,576 21.4%

Other income and gains H i A K Wz

Other income and gains mainly consist of trademark license fees,
rental income, gain on sale of scrap materials, government grants
and interest income (please refer to note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 211 to 212 of this annual report
for the composition of other income and gains). We received
various types of government grants as tax subsidies and
incentives for research and development activities and expansion
of production capacity of energy-saving lamps. Government
subsidies are provided by relevant authorities at their discretion,
and may not necessarily be recurring in nature. We licensed our
trademark to a limited number of related companies and a third
party company at one to three percent of the companies’ sales
amount as trademark license fees. During the Reporting Period,
other income and gains were RMB66,143,000, representing an
increase of 2.6% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

HRARBZFEBEBRRIIE
HEWA -~ HEEHKR - AR R
FLEBWAE (H WA K&K 848 5K &5
2BRANEEREF2IMEE212BZAH
WS mANES) - MPIWBI S EERT
W A7 B DA I B B HE 1T L B I B AN K BT
BEREREMBUNMHE - ELBTMALA
KBNS ER  REBREFEME -
M ERNBER AR —RE=F
AR ABMNERETIHE - WAE
ERRHEENEI I —E2=EABE
A E o NIEFER - Mg A R
mR R R2.6% = AR ¥66,143
FiT e
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Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and others.
Others include office expenses, custom clearance expenses,
travelling expenses, depreciation and amortisation, insurance
fees and other miscellaneous costs.

During the Reporting Period, our selling and distribution costs
were RMB371,754,000, representing a decrease of 3.9%
as compared with the Corresponding Period. The decrease
was mainly attributed to the decrease of the advertising and
promotion fees compared with the Corresponding Period.
Our selling and distribution costs as a percentage in revenue
decreased from 11.1% to 9.7%.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs,
amortisation and depreciation, research and development
expenses, office expenses and others. Others mainly include
taxes, audit and other professional fees, bad debt provision and
miscellaneous items. These taxes mainly include land use tax
and stamp duty in connection with our administrative functions.

During the Reporting Period, our administrative expenses
were RMB369,916,000, representing a decrease of 13.2% as
compared with the Corresponding Period. The high administrative
expenses in the Corresponding Period were mainly attributable
to a large amount of bad debt provision. Our administrative
expenses as a percentage in revenue decreased from 12.3% to
9.6%.

Other expenses

Other expenses include modification loss of trade receivables,
losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment, donation,
exchange loss and other miscellaneous expenses.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interests on bank loans and other
interest expenses.

HERDTHEN

HERDHERIZEEESR SEM
WEE S TKRANMEM - EtteiEH
~E - BEE BT TEMEE-
REREMEMMEREA -

RBEFEA - KPINHEERSHER
B[R BT PE3.9% @ #E AR371,754F
T Z TREFERELESBEESRAY
B4R - BRPIMEERSHEEAGK
AR BIER11.1% TBEEI.7% °

EEER

EEERTEREREBTRA - EHEMT
E ZE RABMLHEM HibE
ZERERE BB HUEXER .
ERBREMEAMMIE - ELRATEE
RERPIHTTHREFI A B LB AR
FIENFERE ©

RBEFEAN - BMNERERRES
Tp&13.2% + & A R #369,916F T
RAEEERSCTERMIRTAEE
BRI - RPN EEE ARG WRAR LY
H12.3% BEZE9.6% °

Hi & H
HERERESBRRERNEER
X RBREDE BFE - RENEX B
B ERERMEMBERFX
8 M

PHBERR/RITERN B REMF B X
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Share of loss of Associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net loss in the
associates during the Reporting Period.

Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expense
increased significantly to RMB75,351,000 as compared with
the Corresponding Period, which is mainly attributable to the
high income tax rates of the profitable subsidiaries including
Zhongshan NVC and Zhejiang NVC.

Profit for the year (including profit attributable to non-
controlling interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our net profit for the year
(including profit attributable to non-controlling interests) was
RMB127,737,000 during the Reporting Period.

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

During the Reporting Period, our exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations were RMB12,909,000. These
exchange differences primarily arose from the translation of
the financial statements of the Company and the overseas
subsidiaries which are denominated in foreign currencies.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners
of the parent was RMB55,759,000 during the Reporting Period.
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests for the year

During the Reporting Period, profit attributable to non-controlling
interests was RMB71,978,000.

BEERWED AT

BEBE D REE

AERBRBEFEALEE LR EQ
AP AR R BB o

IECE

RBEFEAN  AEBAEHAZERA
HRIEE R - EARKT?5,351F L
TZRPLUELT HIFLTZERFRAR
GFEM B AR B R ER R °

REFANE (BREFEHMEERE
16 REER42)

AR EAE RBEFER - RN
FFFE (B I8 FE 1 14 4 2= FE A5 7 B
1) BAREE127,737F T °

BEBIRBEELENELEZRE

RBEFEAN > ROWBEFINETE
EMESEZRAARE12,900T 7T » It
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BN B AR RRAVBEIEX -
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Cash Flow and Liquidity RERERREM

Cash flow HERE

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our TEREIMERPNESHEERERPE
consolidated statement of cash flows. BHIRESREHUE -

31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARE
Net cash flows from/(used in) RS (FTA)
operating activities ReReF58 626,313 (383,017)
Net cash flows (used in)/from WEES (FrR),/ R
investing activities WemEFHE (597,790) 317,874
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEZBE,(FTA)
financing activities ReEmeFE 76,152 (56,298)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekR&EEYLM
cash equivalents CR) FEE 104,675 (121,441)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRE R
beginning of year REFEY 796,694 918,905
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ R B Eh g/ &% 58 16,584 (770)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REeEHReRERTEIH
the consolidated statement of cash flows B FREEBY 917,953 796,694
Cash and bank balances classified as N RB/AEFEEED
assets held for sale ReRBEESEED (14,104) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REHP B R TP 25H
consolidated statement of financial position B FIRGEBY 903,849 796,694
At the end of the Reporting Period, the cash and bank balances NARFEFEE R NEBKWIR S LIEIT
of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB, HK$, GBP, BRL AT I ARKE CEI . g DK
and US$. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, RETHHE AREBAGTAHRERAHR
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control i W o SR - ARIE B U EY (HMNE
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment EIBEM)Y RGEE - EERTES IR
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to HTEY  ANEBEEFBBESEETI

exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to FEEXBRETEAREY AR ME
conduct foreign exchange business. HE o
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Liquidity TEN M

FROEEREELETH A EM

Net current assets and working capital sufficiency

TERFBINBEFERNRBDEE - R
BRELFRBEE -

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and
net current assets as at the end of the Reporting Period.

31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH FAREE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 495,450 689,333
Trade and bills receivables Z S5 MER IR 1,189,914 1,218,824
Prepayments, deposits and BRR - REER
other receivables H A U BR X 344,778 342,140
Income tax recoverable SENIEIEES 7,998 -
Other current assets HEfbmeh&eE 16,515 34,369
Restricted bank balances and SR B AR TAE R
short-term deposits ySE e 660,307 125,233
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEBY 903,849 796,694
3,618,811 3,206,593
Assets of disposal group classified BN BREEREN
as held for sale BEREEE 27,005 -
Total current assets REEE/DG 3,645,816 3,206,593
CURRENT LIABILITIES pE =R
Trade and bills payables H 5 MEBEMERR 611,498 598,065
Other payables and accruals Hi e RERER 483,032 383,758
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings SARERRER 174,122 40,948
Government grants BB 2,034 2,137
Income tax payable FET FTIS TR 38,381 18,828
1,309,067 1,043,726
Liabilities of disposal group classified BN EFEFEN
as held for sale EEREEE 4,704 =
Total current liabilities FREAE D 1,313,771 1,043,726
NET CURRENT ASSETS BERBEE 2,332,045 2,162,867
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As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, net current
assets of the Group amounted to RMB2,332,045,000 and
RMB2,162,867,000, respectively, and the current ratio was 2.78
and 3.07, respectively. In light of our current liquidity position,
the unutilised banking facilities available to the Group and our
projected cash flows generated from operations, the Directors
believe that we have sufficient working capital for our present
requirements and for the next 12 months.

Capital management

The table below sets out our gearing ratio as at the end of the
Reporting Period.

M2015%F 128318 12014412 A 31
H AEERFRBDEELBEIRIAA
R#2,332,045F ;L F1 A R #2,162,867
T RBLE DR R2.78M3.07 «
REME AT RE MR - NEBER
THERFERANEERERFEHRERLE M
EEMBEe  EFRARBMAEEZEHN
LB B S IREN BRI RARKI2EAHE

Py
=
THERK o
EXEE

TRHFINBEFERNEABBL

31 December

12A31H

2015 2014
2015%F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARK
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings SAEERMER 174,122 40,948
Total debt BEISEAET 174,122 40,948

Less: cash and short-term deposits BB e REBRER
(excluding restricted bank balance) (PR Z R HIRITFER) (1,523,502) (867,799)
Net debt FRETS N/A N/A
TEA A 5E A

Total equity attributable to [SYNSIET PN

owners of the parent JE{h AR TS 3,316,907 3,247,462
Gearing ratio BEAAEBLEE N/A N/A

T 5

i
H
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The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the
stability and growth of our financial position. We regularly review
and manage our capital structure and make corresponding
adjustments, after taking into consideration changes in economic
conditions, our future capital requirements, prevailing and
projected profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.
We manage our capital through monitoring our gearing ratio
(which is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity
attributable to owners of the parent). Net debt is the balance of
interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-term
deposits (excluding restricted bank balance).

Inventories

The balance of inventories represents our balance of stock of
raw materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the
end of the Reporting Period. We monitor our inventories on a
regular basis. For the year ended 31 December 2015, turnover
of average inventories (in days) (average inventories equal to
the inventories at the beginning of the year plus inventories at
the end of the year (after provision), divided by two. Turnover of
average inventories (in days) equals to the average inventories
divided by the cost of sales and then multiplied by 365) was 73.4
days, while it was 89.7 days in 2014.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 247 of this annual
report.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. Our trading terms with our customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit periods generally range
from 30 to 180 days for major customers. We seek to maintain
strict control over our outstanding receivables and have a credit
control management system to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that our trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Overdue interests of
several trade receivables are calculated at 12%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, turnover of average trade
and bills receivables (in days) (average trade and bills receivables
equal to the trade and bills receivables at the beginning of
the year plus trade and bills receivables at the end of the year
(before provision), divided by two. Turnover of average trade and
bills receivables (in days) equals to the average trade and bills
receivables divided by revenue and then multiplied by 365) was
127.4 days, while it was 139.3 days in 2014.

More details about the trade and bills receivables are provided in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 248
to 2583 of this annual report.

Trade and bills payables

During the year ended 31 December 2015, turnover of average
trade and bills payables (in days) (average trade and bills
payables equal to trade and bills payables at the beginning of
the year plus trade and bills payables at the end of the year,
divided by two. Turnover of average trade and bills payables (in
days) equals to average trade and bills payables divided by cost
of sales and then multiplied by 365) was 75.0 days, while it was
74.1 days in 2014.

More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 260
to 261 of this annual report.
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Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

BEERWED AT

T REMREN

31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
2015% 20145
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 interest rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000
BRFE(%) HHHMR  TARH BHIFE (%) HEEE  FARE

Current b ikl
Bank loans - BITER -
secured B Base*+1.90  On demand' 22,153
EAF = +1.90 BRERE
5.35 2016%3 27,800
5.35 2016%3 22,200
3.20 20162 101,969
Total At 174,122

U The secured bank loan represented a GBP-dominated secured
facility amounting to GBP5,000,000 (2014: GBP5,000,000), of
which GBP2,304,000 (2014: GBP4,291,000) had been utilised
as at the end of the reporting period. The bank loan was
secured by the pledge over certain trade receivables amounting
to RMB22,153,000 (2014: RMB40,948,000) and time deposits
amounting to RMB51,000,000 (2014: RMB54,100,000). In
accordance with the contract, the loan was repayable upon the
collection of the factored trade receivables.

“Base” means the Bank of England base rate.

e The secured bank loans represented RMB-denominated secured
facilities. The bank loans were secured by the pledge of time
deposits amounting to RMB151,850,000 (2014: Nil).

e The loan agreements contain repayment on demand clause.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of interest-bearing loans
and borrowings approximated to their carrying amount largely
due to the short-term maturities.

Base*+1.90 On demand’ 40,948
BEARFE +1.90% BESAT

40,948
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Capital expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from
operations and bank loans. Our capital expenditure is primarily
related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments and other intangible assets. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
RMB69,509,000, mainly attributable to an increase in machinery
equipment, moulds, non-productive equipment and intangible
assets.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

We did not have any outstanding derivative financial instruments
or off-balance sheet guarantees for outstanding loans. We did
not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded
contracts.

Capital Commitments

The details of capital commitments are referred to in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 282 of this annual
report.

Merger, Acquisition and Investment

On 10 November 2015, the Group entered into an agreement
with a third party in connection with the disposal of its entire
equity interest in Zhangpu Phoebus, the then indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Subject to the approval from
the local government authorities, the directors of the Company
expects the disposal will be completed in 2016. Other than that,
the Group did not acquire, merge or dispose of any subsidiary
and associate during the Reporting Period.

Significant Investment

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no significant
investment. Saved as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 7 May 2010, the Group did not have any plan
for significant investment as at 31 December 2015.
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Contingent Liabilities REEE
(@ As at 31 December 2015, contingent liabilities not (@) EHZE2015F12A3181 * ARE
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were HEUBERRFTIRBENXIAGRE
as follows: N
31 December
12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
(Restated)
(#&E2)
Purported guarantees given to HREFTHAR ATEEM
banks and a finance company BRI E—FKIBEAFH
in connection with facilities FreBiER -
granted to:
2 PRC companies and MEFREAR KR Z L
Ms. WU Lian, an individual (ERAT) 131,497 131,497
(o)  The Group currently acts as defendant in lawsuits brought b) AEERAHAMRPEIRITR—
by 2 PRC banks and a PRC finance company alleging R BB R BB IE & -
that the Group should assume guarantee liabilities and ZEPERITRPEP B ARG
interests according to purported guarantee agreements VRSB ERBEEFRAEEE
entered into by NVC China. The directors consider that EEERETEFBENFANR
the likelihood of the Group sustaining further losses from Ho EERRAEBAEARZE
the purported guarantees is remote, and accordingly FreB B RME — TEANITAEN
no provision for claims arising from the litigations is TR Al REBEEREAM
considered necessary as at 31 December 2014 and 2015, RAE RN - BAFEE2014F
save for the related legal and other costs. N2015%F12A31B It EEARA

A ERABHERRE SRR
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Pledge of Assets

Save for those disclosed in other parts of this annual report, at
the end of the Reporting Period, certain assets of the Group
were pledged as follows:

(1) As at 31 December 2015, certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of RMB49,633,000 (31
December 2014: Nil) and certain buildings included in
property, plant and equipment with aggregate carrying
amounts of RMB248,348,000 (31 December 2014: Nil)
were pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.

2) As at 31 December 2015, certain trade receivables with
carrying amounts of RMB22,153,000 (31 December
2014: RMB40,948,000) were pledged to secure the bank
borrowings.

(3) In accordance with agreements of deposits, deposits
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB202,850,000
(31 December 2014: RMB54,100,000) were pledged to
certain banks to secure bank loans of subsidiaries of the
Group.

(4) In accordance with several letters of guarantee, deposits
with carrying amounts of RMB20,258,000 (31 December
2014: RMB10,428,000) were pledged for issuing letters of
guarantee.

5) The amount represented deposits with carrying amounts
of RMB26,501,000 (31 December 2014: RMB1,500,000)
pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.

(6) Deposits with carrying amounts of RMB4,613,000 (31
December 2014: Nil) were pledged for issuing bank
acceptance bills.
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Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course
of business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the
adverse effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign currency risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises
from sales or procurement by an operating unit in currencies
other than its functional currency. As a result, we are exposed
to fluctuations in the exchange rate between the functional
currencies and foreign currencies. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had entered into several forward currency contracts
in place to hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not
experience any material difficulties or negative impacts on our
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency
exchange rates.

Commodity price risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
which are influenced by global changes as well as regional
supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw
materials could adversely affect our financial performance. We
did not enter into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the potential commodity price changes.

Liquidity risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by considering
the maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and
liabilities and projected cash flows from operations. Our goal is
to maintain a balance between continuity and flexibility of funding
through the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
Our Directors have reviewed our working capital and capital
expenditure requirements and determined that we have no
significant liquidity risk.

BEERWED AT

™ 5 Bk

EEEEBARES  HAEE N AEE
Mg R o TAPTEE R B I R RS A
BUERBHBRFIMGEENTERE
K -

=

X

SRR

BPIAREEZXZER - X 5E B EZ
BEMUE TR AINNEEETTH
ERIBMES - Hit - RAEEREE
B EINE 2 HNEXZBOER - 1
BEFER  AEERITETEREH
B RAS R E R R - F it &N S
EXHEBMSRMALEIRBDESH
REMNEAR#XAETZE -

7 B E B

BPIARRM B ERRBNER - R
FHEAR X 2 IR ) Kt & 1M kAR &9
FE o R FRHERHKE AT BE S AP
MBREEETHEE - ARAHAR
TR @ OTAE T A A BN

RUER S -
REBETER

IMEsZERMeRERE SREE
LEENIHAMBEFEEEEMNR
TREXREZEETRBRNER - IR
BRRBEBERRITERMEMFTEE
REESNEREMBLZERT T -
BPMEZCDERRMANEEESRE
ARXENXR  WEERFILBEERNRD
BExRk -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BMR AR | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Management Discussion and Analysis

B WmED AT

Credit risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial
number of trade and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables from debtors. We have policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit limit, and we have strict control over credit
limits of trade receivables. Our cash and short-term deposits
are mainly deposited with registered banks in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. We also have policies that limit our credit risk
exposure to any financial institutions. The carrying amounts of
trade and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and short-term deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent our maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no
other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit
risk. In 2015, we entered into a number of one-year insurance
contracts with China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation,
which covered up to 85% of uncollectible receivables from PRC
sales and 90% uncollectible receivables from international sales
between the period from 1 December 2015 to 30 November
2016 with a maximum compensation amount of RMB19,200,000
for PRC sales and US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB194,808,000) for international sales. We purchased such
insurance in order to minimise our exposure to credit risk as we
expand our business. We plan to renew such insurance contracts
when they become due.

Employees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 7,125
employees in total (31 December 2014: 8,414). The Group
regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees
according to the relevant market practice and individual
performance of the employees. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, and
discretionary incentive and share option schemes.
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Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Donglei (£ % &), aged 52, is an
Executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. WANG
joined the Group in January 2013. He has
many years of experience in product research
and development, manufacturing and business
management. In 1996, Mr. WANG participated
in the founding of Zhuhai China Resources
Electric Co., Ltd.* kB E B ERZ AR 2 7)
(which was subsequently renamed as Elec-Tech
International Co., Ltd. (EREZEEEIRHE
R 2 7)) and which was listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in China in 2004) and served
as the chairman and the general manager. Since
2001, he has been serving as the chairman
and a director of ETIC. At present, Mr. WANG
also holds positions in various subsidiaries of
Elec-Tech International Group which include:
the chairman of Zhuhai Hansheng Precision
Machinery Co., Ltd.* (FREBEREZEMAREAD
8]), the chairman of Appliance Co. of America
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.* Jt X B8R (K E) BR A
7)), the chairman of Elec-Tech (Hong Kong)
Optoelectronic Technology Co., Ltd.* (% (&
) HERFE AR A F), executive director of
3E Semiconductor (Wuhu) Co., Ltd.* (=& (%
) - EEE AR N F]), executive director of Elec-
Tech (Dalian) Investment Co., Ltd.* (& = (X
&) & AR AT, director of Zhuhai Elec-Tech
International Co., Ltd.* (K& EZEETRER
2 al), director of ETI-LED Solutions Japan Co.
Ltd, director of Elec-Tech US Inc., director of ETI
Solid State Lighting Inc. and director of ETI LED
Solutions Inc.. Mr. WANG graduated from China
Dalian Institute of Technology (subsequently
renamed as Dalian University of Technology)
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr.
WANG Donglei is the elder brother of Mr. WANG
Dongming and Mr. WANG Sheng.

Mr. WANG holds 90% equity interest in Wuhu
Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* @EHRiE=IRER
R 2 8]); Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.*
EREZREABRAF) in turn holds 20.94%
of the shares of ETIC. ETIC held 27.03% of the
total issued shares of the Company as of 31
December 2015.
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Mr. WANG Dongming (£ %), aged 45, is an
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. WANG
joined the Group in June 2013. Mr. WANG
has more than 17 years’ of experience in
electrical and finance industry, and has many
years of experience in manufacturing, finance
and business management. He was the
vice finance manager of China Infrastructure
Materials Corporation* (f Bl E#E ¥ & £ 1
Al) and the general manager of its Shenzhen
subsidiary, respectively, from 1992 to 2000.
From 2000 to 2013, Mr. WANG acted as an
executive director, a vice general manager, the
chief financial officer of ETIC, which is listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China,
and the general manager of lighting division
of ETIC. Mr. WANG is currently an executive
director of Elec-Tech International (H.K.)
Company Limited. Mr. WANG graduated from
Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics
(PR 74 BF 4% 2 FT) with a bachelor degree in
finance and accounting in 1992. Mr. WANG
Dongming is the younger brother of Mr. WANG
Donglei and Mr. WANG Sheng.
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Mr. XIAO Yu (B 5F), aged 56, is an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. XIAO joined the
Group in May 2014 as a Non-executive Director
and re-designated as an Executive Director in
August 2014. Mr. XIAO graduated from Dalian
Institute of Technology (later renamed as Dalian
University of Technology) with a bachelor’s
degree in 1985 and also graduated with an
EMBA’s degree from School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University in 2008.
He holds the engineer’s qualification certificate.
From July 1986 to June 1996, Mr. XIAO worked
in Beijing Beinei Group* (Lt RILAEE) as the
deputy chief coordinator and the party secretary
of the Communist Party of China of the Central
Coordination Office, during which he was
awarded the titles of Beijing Model Worker and
Beijing Excellent Young Intellectual. He was
the chairman and general manager of Westar
(Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* (EHiEE s (h 1) REFRLQA),
a subsidiary of Elec-Tech International Group
from July 1996 to August 2004, was the deputy
general manager of the Elec-Tech International
Group and the chairman of Westar (Zhongshan)
Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (&
HriEsE2s (h1l) ZEHBRAF) from September
2004 to February 2008, and was senior
vice president of ETIC from March 2012 to
December 2014. From May 2008 to the present,
he has successively served as the consultant to
the president of Elec-Tech International Group,
the chairman and general manager of Elec-
Tech Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.*
(REEZRHERIEARAT) and the general
manager of Elec-Tech Photoelectric Technology
(Wuhu) Co., Ltd* @B BHEXEREE
[R2 7). Currently, Mr. XIAO works in different
subsidiaries of Elec-Tech International Group as:
a director of Zhuhai East Yingcheng Precision
Die-casting Co., Ltd.* (Bk/8 T 5 2 B A B
BAMR AT, a director of Appliance of America
(Zhuhai) Limited* JtEE & (%E8) BR A7),
an executive director of Elec-Tech Photoelectric
Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KiEEZ= N ER
R AR A 7)) and an executive director of Leitong
Photoelectric Device (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.* (Z&/M
BENXERMFARAT). Mr. XIAO has extensive
experience in production management. He once
served as a senior officer in companies listed in
Mainland China for several years and therefore
has in-depth knowledge and understanding
on corporate governance and corporate
management.
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Mr. XIONG Jie (B&f4), aged 49, is an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. XIONG joined the
group in August 2014. Mr. XIONG has many
years of experience in product manufacturing
and business management. He served as
a business representative of Jiangsu Local
Industrial Supply and Marketing Corporation*
(I# & 77 T ME52E]) from 1988 to 1992
and worked as the Secretary to the General
Manager, Section Chief of the GM Office and
Section Chief of Operational Work Division of
Jiangsu Provincial Petroleum Corporation* ()T
B A LR AR) from 1992 to 1997. From
2000 to 2006, he worked as the Director of
the Human Resource Department of the Air-
conditioning Business Division, Director of the
Operation and Management Department of
the Refrigeration Appliances Group, Director
of the Management Department of the
Commercial Air-conditioning Business Division
of Guangdong Midea Group* (ERER%E),
Director of the Operation and Management
Department of Guangzhou Valin Group* (B /M
X EE), Assistant to the General Manager
and Director of the Management Department
of Chongqging Midea General Refrigeration
Equipment Co., Ltd.* (EEFHBERELRME
AR A F). From August 2006 onwards, he
worked as the Director of the Operation and
Management Department, Assistant to the
President of ETIC, General Manager and Vice
President of Appliance of America (Zhuhai)
Limited* (JtEE2 (FKE) BRAF]), General
Manager and Vice President of New Energies
Business Department, General Manager of
Elec-Tech Photoelectric Technology Dalian
Co., Ltd.* (REEFHKBERKRARAF). He
was the Executive Vice President of ETIC from
April 2014 to December 2014. Mr. XIONG
completed a graduate program and obtained
a MBA degree from the National University of
Singapore in July 1999.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIN Ho-Ping (##1F), aged 44, is a Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. LIN
joined the Company in October 2006. He
joined SAIF Advisors Ltd. (“SAIF”) in 2001 and
is currently a general partner and a managing
director of SAIF as well as the president and
chief investment officer of SPQ Asia Capital
Ltd. (an affiliate of SAIF). Prior to joining
SAIF, Mr. LIN was a vice president in the
investment banking division at Credit Suisse
First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited, which he
initially joined in 1997 with Donaldson, Lufkin
& Jenrette (acquired by Credit Suisse First
Boston), and he was an associate in Sullivan
& Cromwell LLP from 1994 to 1997. Mr. LIN
was previously a director of China TransInfo
Technology Corp., (a2 company which has
completed privatization and been delisted
from the NASDAQ Global Market since 31
October 2012). Mr. LIN graduated from
Stanford University with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1991 and from Harvard
University with a Juris Doctor law degree in
1994. Mr. LIN was admitted to the State Bar
of California in 1994.
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Mr. ZHU Hai (45)8), aged 51, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. ZHU joined the
Company in October 2011. He has over 19
years’ of experience in the electric industry.
Mr. ZHU worked for Schneider Electric since
1996 and has held various management
positions throughout Schneider Electric group.
He served as China chief representative for
Schneider Automation Company, Schneider
Electric sales director for automation business,
general manager for Schneider Shanghai
Power Distribution Electrical Apparatus Co.,
Ltd. and low voltage product activity director.
In 2004, he joined Schneider Electric’s global
headquarters in France as a senior vice-
president of OEM business. Mr. ZHU is
currently the executive vice-president and
president of China for Schneider Electric. Mr.
ZHU received a bachelor’s degree from Peking
University and holds a master’s degree in
Computer Science from the Chinese Academy
of Sciences. He also holds an EMBA degree
from the China Europe International Business
School.
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Mr. LI Wei (Z12), aged 45, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. LI joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. LI graduated
from Department of Economics, Renmin
University of China in June 1995 with a
Master’s degree in economics. He is a certified
public accountant in China and a sponsor
representative approved by China Securities
Regulatory Commission. From June 2006 to
July 2008, Mr. LI was the general manager of
the headquarter of investment banking division
of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. (F
REBIFHRM AR DA, From July 2008 to
the present, he is the managing director of the
headquarter of investment banking division of
China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. (FREI$RA
FBHERMHAERAT). Mr. LI has many years’ of
experience in investment banking services of
financial institutions and profound knowledge
on domestic and overseas economies and
capital market. His long involvement in
investment banking business has enabled
him to acquire insightful understanding
and extensive experience in corporate
development strategies, corporate governance
and financial management.
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway (Z/#77), aged 61,
is an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. LEE joined the Company
in November 2012. He received a bachelor
of arts degree from Kingston University
(formerly known as Kingston Polytechnic) in
London and further obtained his postgraduate
diploma in business from Curtin University of
Technology in Australia. Mr. LEE served as a
partner of Ernst & Young (“EY”) for over 29
years, until 2009, during which he held key
leadership positions in the development of EY
in China. Mr. LEE is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
Australia and New Zealand, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Macau Society of Certified Practising
Accountants. Mr. LEE currently also serves as
an independent non-executive director of the
following companies: Chaowei Power Holdings
Limited, West China Cement Limited, China
Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., GOME Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited, Tibet Water
Resources Ltd., Yashili International Holdings
Ltd., GCL New Energy Holdings Limited, WH
Group Limited, China Greenland Rundong
Auto Group Limited (all of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange) and
CITIC Securities Company Limited (a company
listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He acted
as an independent non-executive director of
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited (a company listed on main board
of the Stock Exchange) from October 2009
to August 2013 and also acted as a non-
executive director and vice chairman of Merry
Garden Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the main board of Stock Exchange) from
July 2014 to September 2015. Mr. LEE was
a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Hunan Province
(FEU#HREEEI%HZ B) in China since 2008.
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Ms. WU Ling ((R1%), aged 58, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company.
Ms. WU joined the Company in June 2013.
Ms. WU has over 10 years’ of experience in
semiconductor lighting industry. She acted
as the director of Semiconductor Lighting
Major Project Management Office of the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the
PRC (FEIRIZR A+ ERRAEANIER BT
9% A %), a deputy director of the National
Semiconductor Lighting Project Coordination
and Leading Group Office (B 3 & &2 {8 B
TRRWpFAEE DA AZE) and the director of
Beijing Semiconductor Lighting Technology
Promotion Centre (1t 7 ¥ & RE ARl (2 3
FI0) in 2008, the secretary-general of China
Solid State Lighting Alliance (B3 ¥ & &2 &
AT 2R R EZEBE) in 2004, a standing
director of China Material Research Society (1
EMEHFFTE®), a standing director of China
llluminating Engineering Society (71 B&RAHE
&) and a standing director of China Industry
University Research Institute Collaboration
Association (F B ZE 2t & E 2 & g) in
2009. Ms. WU was also elected as the first
chairwoman of International SSL Alliance (B[
HEEEIEBARE ) in 2010, the director-general
of State Key Laboratory for Joint Innovation
of Semiconductor Lighting (338 8 BRARES & &l
FEREHEHE) in 2011 and the director-
general of Beijing Innovation Alliance (& #B&l ¥t
KE#ER) in 2014, respectively.
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Mr. WANG Xuexian (E2%%), aged 51, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. WANG joined the Company in
May 2014. Mr. WANG graduated from Renmin
University of China with a Master’s degree in
Civil Laws in January 1990. He is a lawyer in
China, and his qualification for serving as an
independent director has been approved by
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From January
1990 to the present, he has worked as an
assistant professor and lecturer in Dalian
University of Technology. He currently serves
as a deputy professor of Dalian University of
Technology, a lawyer of Heng Xin Law Office*
(EEEBEREAMEFA in Liaoning, and an
independent director of ETIC (a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange of China,
Stock Code: 002005) and Yantai Zhaojin
Lifu Precious Metals Co., Ltd* (BEH&EE
ESEBRMHARAR). Mr. WANG is also an
arbitrator of the Dalian Arbitration Commission.
Mr. WANG has extensive experience in law
studies, teaching and the work of lawyers,
once served as an independent director of
several listed or unlisted companies in the
Mainland China, and has in-depth knowledge
and understanding on domestic and overseas
laws, corporate management and corporate
governance.
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Mr. WEI Hongxiong (B87%), aged 41, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. WEI joined the Company in
May 2014. Mr. WEI graduated from Xi’an
Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. Mr. WEI is currently
a full-time lawyer of China Commercial Law
Firm in Guangdong* (& & # & 12 6l 2= 7% F)
and a law expert of the Expert Pool of the
Shenzhen Nanshan Science and Technology
Commission. He is a statistician and patent
agent in China. In 1998, he started to work
in the Shantou Haojiang Development and
Reform Bureau, mainly engaging in the
planning and studies of economic and social
development, and the feasibility studies and
approval of major projects. From 2006 to the
present, he has worked as a full-time lawyer.
Mr. WEI once served as a deputy director of
the Legal Services Commission of the Cultural
Industry of the Shenzhen Lawyers Association.
Mr. WEI is mainly engaged in corporate
establishment and regulatory governance,
restructuring and reorganization, issuance and
listing of shares, acquisitions and mergers,
private equity, intellectual property rights and
other law services. He once served as a long-
term legal advisor of many enterprises, had/
has been dealing with and participating in the
restructuring and listing of many enterprises
(A shares, red chips) and special law services
such as those for the construction of major
projects. He has many years’ of experience in
the provision of law services such as those for
corporate governance, securities and capital
market and intellectual property rights.
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Senior Management

Mr. WANG Donglei (E%%), aged 52, is the
chief executive officer of the Company. His
biographical details are set out above under
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

Mr. XIAO Yu (B ), aged 56, is the vice-
president in charge of the components system
of the Company. His biographical details are
set out above under the paragraph headed
“Executive Directors”.

Mr. XIONG Jie (F&f£t), aged 49, is the vice-
president in charge of the production and
quality control department of the Company.
His biographical details are set out above
under the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors”.
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Mr. ZENG Xian-jin (E# %), aged 42, is the
vice-president in charge of the domestic sales
system of the Company. Before joining the
Group in 2015, Mr. ZENG worked with Haier
Group from 1998 to 2011, in the capacity
of the chief marketing and planning officer
(China) of Haier Group from 2004 to 2005, the
chief officer (western region, Haier) cum the
general manager of Chengdu Haier Industrial
And Trade Co., Ltd. from 2007 to 2008, the
chief officer (eastern region, Haier) cum the
general manager of Shanghai Haier Industrial
And Trade Co., Ltd. and the vice chairman of
Shanghai Commercial Trade Association
Of Household Electric And Electronic
Appliances from 2009 to 2011. Mr. ZENG was
the chief officer of home electric appliances
(western region) of Samsung (China) from
2012 to 20183, and the general manager
(safety chair business division) of Goodbaby
Group, the world’s biggest manufacturer of
maternal infant care products from 2013 to
2014. Mr. ZENG with years of experiences
in marketing and corporate management,
is very familiar with the operation of the
manufacturer’'s whole industry chain, and in
particular, possesses in-depth understanding
and abundant hands-on experiences in
product development, marketing management
and team construction. Mr. ZENG was a
graduate of Shandong University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor degree in
economics.
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Mr. LUO Huagang (Z&#£H[l), aged 39, is the
vice president of the administrative support
system of the Company. Mr. LUO joined
the Group in December 2015. Mr. LUO had
obtained a master degree in 2008 from
Guangdong University of Technology. He was
the chief officer for home air-conditioning
business channel, the chief sales officer
and the chief officer for human resources
management of Midea Group, he became the
chief operation officer and the chief business
officer (electric appliances) of Midea after
2011 and was a executive director of Welling
Holding Limited under Midea Group in 2013.
With abundant experiences in company
operation and management, business
process reengineering, enterprise operation,
mechanism reform and innovation as well as
human resources management. Mr. LUO is
well-qualified for organizing reform and cultural
innovation.
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Mr. WANG Sheng (£/&), aged 49, is a vice
president of procurement logistics system of
the Company. Mr. WANG has over 20 years’
of experience in procurement management.
Before joining the Group in 2014, Mr. WANG
has taken up the posts of deputy general
manager, vice president and vice chairman at
ETIC from 1996 to 2014. In 2004, Mr. WANG
obtained the master degree in Business
Management at Zhongshan University. Mr.
WANG is Mr. WANG Donglei’s younger brother
and Mr. WANG Dongming’s elder brother.

Mr. TAN Ying (X [E), aged 49, is the chief
financial officer and vice-president of overseas
sales system of the Company. Before joining
the Group in 2006, Mr. TAN was the financial
accountant in Goodman Fielder Ingredients
Limited from 1999 to 2000 and the financial
director in Shenzhen New World Sunlong Tech
Co., Ltd.* (FRYIFTHEAPEAEEMER QR
and Shenzhen Sun Long Communication Co.,
Ltd.* (RN AEEBA AR 2 A) from 2000
to 2006. Mr. TAN received an MBA degree
from University of Manchester in 2007. He
is a fellow member of the Financial Service
Institute of Australia.
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Mr. HONG Xiaosong (it M #2), aged 48,
is a vice-president of our Research and
Development Department of the Company. Mr.
HONG served as the manager of Shenzhen
Golden Decorative Lighting Corp. Ltd.* (&3l
=EEEIEE) from 1995 to 2000. He was the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Golden
Lighting Engineering Corp. Ltd.* (%3I< 8RR
T#E27A]) from 2000 to 2004 and Shenzhen
Jinyueliang Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (%
Y et =R EMB R A R) from 2004 to
2007, respectively. After joining the Group
in 2007, Mr. HONG successfully developed
various kinds of lightings specifically designed
for the Olympic Games, which paved the
way for our products to be used in the
Olympic Games. Mr. HONG is a qualified
national registered senior lighting designer
and a senior member of China Illuminating
Engineering Society. He has been committed
to the development and promotion of new
type energy-saving lamp products since 2004.
He is one of the pioneers engaged in the
promotion of LED engineering application in
China and has obtained various patents for
product technologies. Mr. HONG obtained a
bachelor’s degree in mechanical manufacturing
from Chongging University in 1989 and
also received an EMBA from China Europe
International Business School in 2015.

MM E A - IRF48E 0 =
RNARAERGHEIBE -
At A 2 9954 2000
FEERI=cEME R
42 38 2000 F2004F K&
20044 Z=20074F 7 Bl #& 1
FYIE BRBE T2 A & FFI
meti X REMT AR AR
Bl B4R o A £ 20074
MAREEE - KIS
EREeEAEA FLAE
EEMIZIARESEY -
HAEER BERFHERE
BARRETED ] R EREAES
=& g8 B2004F A A
B PR FT BY B B8 S R B0 I 2%
MHEE RERAKE—#t1
EHELEDIREEAMNAER
Z2— BISZEELEME
F o St EMN1989F BB E
BEREMMBETESE L2
fif » WH2015FE WS EH
BIFERaREBEAET
5 12 RE £ (EMBA) 41 -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE

Joint Company Secretaries

Ms. LO Yee Har, Susan (E#E), aged 57,
was appointed as a joint company secretary
on 24 March 2010. Ms. LO is an Executive
Director of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow
member of both The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She
has over 30 years’ of experience in corporate
advisory services. Prior to joining Tricor
Services Limited, Ms. LO served as a director
of the company secretarial department of
Tengis Limited (now known as “Tricor Tengis
Limited”). Ms. LO has provided various
secretarial and corporate services to many
listed companies.

Miss LEUNG Ching Ching (2& &), aged 35,
was appointed as a joint company secretary
on 1 April 2014. Miss LEUNG is a manager of
corporate services of Tricor Services Limited.
Miss LEUNG has over 10 years’ of experience
in company secretarial industry, and provided
services to clients ranging from private
companies to public companies listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Miss
LEUNG is currently named company secretary
to three listed companies which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Miss LEUNG is a Chartered Secretary and an
Associate of both The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom. Miss LEUNG graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and admitted to the bachelor’s degree of
Social Science. She also received a master
of arts degree in Professional Accounting and
Information System from City University of
Hong Kong.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
(“Financial Statement”).

Principal Activities

The Company was redomiciled from the British Virgin Islands to
the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 and incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Group’s operations
are conducted mainly through the direct and indirect subsidiaries
of the Company. The Group is principally engaged in the design,
development, production, marketing and sale of a variety of
lighting products including three principal product categories,
namely, luminaire products, lamp products and lighting
electronics products. During the Reporting Period, there is no
significant change in the Group’s principal activities. The analysis
of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of the consolidated financial statements on page 140.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 307 of this
annual report.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK1 cent
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.8 cents) per ordinary share
for the year ended 31 December 2015. Upon shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the final
dividend is expected to be paid to the eligible shareholders by
no later than 30 June 2016. Based on the 3,128,448,000 shares
in issue as at 31 December 2015, it is expected that the final
dividend payable will amount to approximately HK$31,284,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB26,210,000) (before tax). Final
dividends proposed are classified as a separate allocation of
share premium within the equity section of the consolidated
statement of financial position. No shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 13 June 2016 to Wednesday, 15 June 2016 (both
dates inclusive) and from Tuesday, 21 June 2016 to Wednesday,
22 June 2016 (both dates inclusive), during which periods
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 10 June 2016. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend (subject to the approval
by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at the abovementioned address for registration
before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20 June 2016.

Business Review

The discussion for the business review of the Reporting Period
of the Group as well as the major risks and uncertainty factors
facing the Group are set forth in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 12 to 36 of this annual report. The
future business development of the Group are set forth in the
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 11 of this annual report.
The critical indices adopted in the financial statements for the
analysis of the performance of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set forth in the “Financial Highlights” on pages 6 to 7
of this annual report.

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations
affecting the operation of the Group significantly.
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As confirmed by the Group, our employees, clients and business
cooperative partners are the key to our sustainable development.
The Group is committed to the establishment of close
relationship with our employees and the provision of application
solutions for our clients’ premium lighting, and strengthens the
cooperation with our business cooperative partners so as to
attain the win-win outcome for various parties, and push ahead
with the healthy and rapid development of the lighting industry.

The Group is committed to the support for the sustainable
environmental protection. As the leading supplier for lighting
products, the Group shall comply with various environmental
protection laws and regulations formulated by the relevant
government department. The Group is the advocate pioneer
for green lighting and committed to the promotion of “Lighting
Environment”: to beautify the commercial and living space
with artificial lighting, protect the healthy living environment for
mankind with energy-saving lighting for environmental protection,
and support the energy-saving environmental protection
business for the PRC and even the whole world with action
taken. Meanwhile, the Group has proactively performed its social
responsibilities such as having advocated and pushed forward
with the public welfare project of “luminosity charity walk” for
years since 2007 with the footprints of charity covering over ten
provincial cities to take lighting and warmth to the local children
by means of improving the lighting environment, supporting
education with love, fulfilling their wishes and so on. The Group
will go further to continue to carry out the enterprise social
responsibilities as a means of feedback to our society.

Issue of Shares

The Group did not issue any shares during the Reporting Period.
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Issue of Debentures

The Group did not issue any debentures during the Reporting
Period.

Equity-linked Agreement

Apart from the Share Option Scheme of the Group set forth on
pages 66 to 71 of this annual report, the Group neither entered
into nor had any equity-linked agreement during the Reporting
Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each
director is entitled to the compensation out of the assets and
profits of the Company for all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages, expenses or liabilities incurred due to the execution
of his/her duties or taken place related to such execution. The
Company has taken out the appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy for the directors and officers of the
Group as a means of security.

Use of Net Proceeds Received from the Initial
Public Offering

On 20 May 2010, net proceeds received from the initial public
offering, including the exercise of Over-allotment Option, after
deducting related expenses, were approximately HK$1.467
billion. Out of which, as at 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$367 million was used for capital expenditure, approximately
HK$367 million was used for the continual implementation of
our branding strategies and enhancement of our sales network,
approximately HK$147 million was used for enhancing our
research and development efforts, approximately HK$352 million
was used for our expansion plans, both in the PRC and the
international markets and approximately HK$147 million was
used for working capital and other general corporate purposes.

Report of Directors

EEEWS

RITES

AEERHEFEANLBEEHITEME
%0

SH R

BRAFEREFOAEET1ASHIMA
AEENBRETS RBEEFER -
AR B BT R AF IR 15

2
X

ERF YRR R

REARRZABERMAR  BUES
BRERECHA SRR TEBB A
RSB AR — ek B
A RE - BK BT B REER
ARBEEMNBEHESREE AQF
ERAEEEENSABREBEEEN
EENaABEREERRIERRE -

HXAARBETHERERHE
HY FE F

MR2010F5 8208 + B R RARBITAE
FIBFRE (BIEfTHHBRERARE - &1
BRIEFEMAY) Y B1,46788E T - BE
2015F12A318 Ik ZB X AFAET
FIfSRIBFREPEBLITEE BT
BEEARTH #3678 BB TLE AR
FEBETHRMN @E S RIG R M8
HEMB  L147TEEBTERRINA
MEETIE - #3528 BB TLERREM
B R ER IS E TR ERET 81 K&
MATEERBTEREREESMEM
—EERE -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BMR AR | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Report of Directors

EEEWS

Financial Highlights

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five reporting periods is set out
on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements on page 264 of
this annual report. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total
current interest-bearing loans and borrowings amounted to
RMB174,122,000 (2014: RMB40,948,000) and we had no non-
current interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions, Potential Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, the Group did not grant any
loans to any entities, nor did it offer any financial assistance to
its associates or make any guarantee for the facilities granted to
its associates.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment for

the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 227 to 229 of this annual report.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital for the Reporting

Period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 266 of this annual report.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 272 to 273 and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 144 to
145 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB1,573,726,000, of which
RMB26,210,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
Reporting Period.

Public Float

As of the date of this annual report, based on the information
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period and at any
time prior to the date of this annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or applicable laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated.

Tax Allowances
The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances

granted to the Company’s shareholders due to their interests in
its securities.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
WANG Donglei appointed on 11 January 2013 and
re-designated as an Executive
Director on 2 February 2015

WANG Dongming appointed on 21 June 2013

XIAO Yu appointed on 29 May 2014 and
re-designated as an Executive
Director on 8 August 2014

XIONG Jie appointed on 8 August 2014

Non-executive Directors

LIN Ho-Ping appointed on 4 October 2006
ZHU Hai appointed on 20 October 2011
LI Wei appointed on 29 May 2014

Independent Non-executive Directors

WANG Jinsui appointed on 27 April 2010 and
resigned on 2 February 2015

LEE Kong Wai, Conway

WU Ling

WANG Xuexian

WEI Hongxiong

appointed on 28 November 2012
appointed on 21 June 2013
appointed on 29 May 2014
appointed on 29 May 2014

Directors’
Biographies

and Senior Management’s

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 37 to 53 of this annual report.

2

RBEEFEAMBERAFERSHE

KABIEERENT :

HITE=E

TRE MR2013F1 A11 B EZT -
WH2015F2 A2H AT A
WITES

T A8 R2013F6 21 HEZ T

B F MR20145F5 A20H EE (T -
WHH2014FE8 A8E AT A
WITES

Aeft MN20145E8 ASHERE

FHITESE

AN MR2006%10 A4 B EER(T

N R2011F10A20H EEE

=Z MN201455 A20 B EE (T

BYFHITES

T35 R2010F4 27 HEL(T -
W HR2015F2 A2 HEHE

TEE MR2012411 A28 HEZR T
R R2013F6 21 HEZ T
T MR20145F5 A20HEE(E

v ki3 MR2014F5 4208 EXR (T
EEREHNEEEER
WS A= ﬁfi@ﬁﬁf%ﬂiiﬁ%ﬁzi

FITEEEBEMNEETNSRE
[E]—%& o



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Directors’ Service Contracts

The relevant information on Directors’ service contracts is set out
in the section headed “Non-executive Directors and Re-election
of Directors” in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
114 to 115 of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

Saved for the connected transactions, potential connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions as disclosed
below, no Director nor an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company’s holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
Reporting Period.

Confirmation of Independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Ms. WU
Ling, Mr. WANG Xuexian and Mr. WEI Hongxiong, the annual
confirmation letter of their respective independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the
Independent Non-executive Directors were independent from
their respective date of appointment to 31 December 2015 and
remain independent as of the date of this annual report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
or Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or recorded in the register required to be maintained pursuant
to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in the Company
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Name of Director = Nature of interests  Class of shares underlying shares issued shares
HEBRTRG
EEnE EEME % 10 % 51 B3 RAHBE R BB BEWEDL
LIN Ho-Ping Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,274,000 (L) (Note 1) 0.71%
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Notes: Vo2

1. (L) represents long position.

1. (HRFKIFRE ©



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company have or
are deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded
in the register required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were notifiable to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of the Model Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2015, to the best knowledge of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following shareholders
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) had
5% or more interests or short positions in the issued shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:
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HEBTRMD
BRERERE EatE % 63 38 5 BB RAERR D HE HYME DL
Elec-Tech International Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 845,746,000 (L) (Note 1) 27.03%
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Class of shares

1B 40 51

Number of shares or
underlying shares

ROSIEFEROEE

Percentage of
the total
issued shares
HEBITRED
HYNE DL

SB Asia Investment
Fund Il L.P.

Schneider Electric Asia
Pacific Limited

Schneider Electric

Industries SAS

Schneider Electric SA

GS Direct, L.L.C.

The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc.

Beneficial owner

EnlEAA

Beneficial owner

EnEAA

Interest of corporation
controlled by the
substantial shareholders
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Interest of corporation
controlled by the
substantial shareholders
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Beneficial owner

EnAA

Interest of corporation
controlled by the
substantial shareholders
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EEEER

Ordinary shares

gL

Ordinary shares

gl

Ordinary shares

LBk

Ordinary shares

LBk

Ordinary shares

gl

Ordinary shares

LBk

578,711,000 (L)

288,371,000 (L)

288,371,000 (L) (Note 3)

(Hi23)

288,371,000 (L) (Note 3)

(Fi23)

177,351,000 (L)

187,335,757 (L) (Note 4)

(Bft4)
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5.67%
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(L) represents long position.

These shares were held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.)
Company Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to
be interested in all these shares.

These shares were held by Schneider Electric Asia Pacific
Limited. As Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric Industries SAS, which
in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SA,
Schneider Electric Industries SAS and Schneider Electric SA are
deemed to be interested in these shares.

These shares were held by GS Direct, L.L.C. (177,351,000
shares), Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance (5,725,000 shares),
Goldman Sachs International (3,987,000 shares), Goldman Sachs
Asset Management, L.P. (272,000 shares) and Goldman, Sachs
& Co. (757 shares), respectively. As all these companies are held
by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. directly or indirectly, The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by the aforesaid companies in the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so far as

the Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors

and chief executive) or corporation had 5% or more interests

or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company which were recorded in the register required to be

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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HE

Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme

(a)

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved and adopted at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 27 April 2010. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means of incentivising and retaining employees,
and to encourage employees to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and promoting the long-term
growth of the Company. This scheme will link the value
of the Company with the interests of the participants,
enabling participants and the Company to develop
together and promoting the Company’s corporate culture.
The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors), employees and
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, agents, customers, business partners and
service providers of any member of the Group who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group to participate in the Share
Option Scheme. The period within which the options
must be exercised shall be determined by the Directors
at the time of grant and such period must expire no later
than 10 years from the date when the Board resolves to
make the offer of options to the grantees. All outstanding
options shall lapse when the grantee is dead or retired,
the employment of the grantee ceases or where the
grantee is no longer an employee of the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% (the
Company may refresh the 10% limit in certain conditions)
of the aggregate of the shares in issue on the listing date
or 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant
of options which would result in the number of shares
issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit requires
shareholders’ prior approval with the relevant participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. At the time
of grant of the options, our Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The Share Option Scheme
does not contain any such minimum period.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Option
Scheme shall be no less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share upon its issue. The amount payable by a grantee
on acceptance of a grant of options is US$1.00. Life
of the Share Option Scheme is ten years and ends on
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. Further details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 7 May 2010.

During the Reporting Period, no option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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(b)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) as approved by
the Board on 15 October 2006 and amended on 23
December 2009 and 24 March 2010. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to assist the Company
in attracting, retaining and motivating key employees,
Directors, consultants and strategic suppliers. The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for
the period of time commencing on 15 October 2006
and expired on the day immediately prior to the date
on which dealings commence in the ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange. The Company may at any time
amend or terminate the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as advised by the Board at its discretion. The termination
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has no effect on
the outstanding share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. Any such outstanding share
options shall continue in effect in accordance with their
terms and conditions and the terms and conditions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The extent to which any
eligible person is entitled to be granted options pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to be determined
in the sole discretion of the Board, provided, however, that
the number of shares issued to or reserved for issuance
to any one person pursuant to the options and other
stock option plans or share compensation arrangements
shall not exceed 3% of the number of shares in issue
(on a fully-diluted basis), including those shares of
the Company which are issuable upon the exercise or
conversion of outstanding securities of the Company,
including the options previously granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any options granted under
other stock options, stock option plans or other share
compensation arrangements which the Company may
issue or establish in addition to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The aggregate number of shares subject to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 240,429,000 shares,
representing 8.11% of the issued share capital of the
Company following the IPO.
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Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and shall expire no later than 10 years
from the date the Board resolves to make the offer of
options to the grantees. Options granted to grantees
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall vest
immediately to the grantees, or vest to the grantees at
a rate not more than 25% of each such grant for each
year commencing from the date when the grantees can
exercise such options granted to them. The exercise price
of these share options was determined by the Board with
reference to the market value of the Company’s ordinary
shares and the Company’s equity value.

In the event that the Board allows a grantee to exercise
an option granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by delivering shares previously owned by such
grantee and unless otherwise expressly provided by the
Board, any shares delivered which were initially acquired
by the grantee from the Company (upon exercise of a
share option or otherwise) must have been owned by
the grantee at least six months as at the date of delivery.
The Company will not be obligated to deliver any shares
unless and until it receives full payment of the exercise
or purchase price therefore and any related withholding
obligations and any other conditions to exercise or
purchase have been satisfied. Unless otherwise expressly
provided, the Board may at any time eliminate or limit
a grantee’s ability to pay the purchase or exercise price
of any option granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by any method other than cash payment to the
Company. The Board may take all actions necessary to
alter the method of option exercise and the exchange and
transmittal of proceeds with respect to grantees resident
in the PRC not having permanent residence in a country
other than the PRC in order to comply with applicable
PRC foreign exchange and tax regulations. Further details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.
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As at 31 December 2015, details of outstanding options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

R20156FE12A31H » HIX AHETITH
BEIRERT BB T MR TE A BB 1S
W

Percentage of
the number
of Shares
Number of Number of outstanding as at
Shares Shares 31 December
outstanding outstanding 2015 to the total
as at as at issued shares
1January 31 December R2015%
2015 2015 12A31A
20158 20155  Exercise price HATEN
Relationship 1818 128318 (HKS per share) R# &R
Name of the grantee  Class of shares  with the Group MARTHEN HRTHEN TEE®  Date of grant Expirydate  HBRAKRA
REALR R &5 HASENEE BH#E vk (Br/ 1K) RTH HBR  BENEAL
LIN Ho-Ping Share options ~ Director 532,000 S 21 24March2010 24 March 2015 S
Wi BiE g2 10838248 2015F3A24R
Qthers (including senior Employees and
management) Share options others 6,200,000 6,200,000 21 24 March2010 24 March 2016 0.20%
ﬁﬁ)\a (2%
AB) g EEREM 2010F3A248  2016F3724A
1,000,000 1,000,000 21 24March 2010 8 February 2017 0.032%
010537248 2017%2A8A
Total
At 7,732,000 7,200,000 0.23%

For further details, please refer to note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 267 to 271 of this annual report
and the prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.

During the Reporting Period, out of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, none of the share
options was exercised or cancelled.
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During the Reporting Period, out of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 532,000 share options
lapsed due to the expiration of the share option. The lapsed
share options are as follows:

Report of Directors
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R|EFERZ R - B8R AT B E
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TTREHATE B HA T k2 o SRR BB A A 40
—F 0

Number of share options lapsed Exercise Price (HK$ per share) Date of grant Expiry date
KAMBRERHE TReER (B ) ®¥H A
532,000 21 24 March 2010 24 March 2015

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Saved as disclosed in sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” above, during the Reporting
Period, the Company or any of its subsidiaries was not a party
to any arrangement which would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate. None of the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 was
granted any right to subscribe for the shares or debentures of
the Company or any other corporate body or had exercised any
such right.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Period.

Interests of Directors and Controlling
Shareholders in Competing Business

Save for those disclosed in the connected transactions, potential
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
as disclosed below and those disclosed in the following
paragraphs by the Company, during the Reporting Period, none
of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete with the businesses of
the Group.
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Mr. WANG Donglei, an Executive Director, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, holds 90% equity
interest in Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (ZE#HEz=%
BAMR AR, Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (E#fEx
HEBRAF) in turn holds 20.94% of the shares of ETIC, and
ETIC in turn holds 27.03% of the shares (845,746,000 shares
as at 31 December 2015) of the Company. Mr. WANG is also
a director and chairman of ETIC. To the best knowledge of the
Company, ETIC was established on 14 May 1996 with issued
capital of RMB1,396,400,000 as at 31 December 2015. It was
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in June 2004. Based
on the preliminary annual result of ETIC dated 27 February 2016
(unaudited and subject to further adjustment), its operating
revenue for the year 2015 is approximately RMB4,511,215,000,
its net profit is approximately RMB19,938,000 and total assets
is approximately RMB13,175,828,000. The principal business
of ETIC is production and sale of small household appliances
and LED products, while the Group’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the production and sale of lamp products, luminaire
products and lighting electronic products, including a variety of
LED lamps, luminaires and electrical products. As a result, Mr.
WANG Donglei is deemed to be interested, directly or indirectly,
in the business that competes or may compete with that of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries.

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of ETIC
and Mr. WANG Donglei does not control the Board, the Group
is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the business of ETIC.

Controlling Shareholders and Their Pledge of
Shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any
controlling shareholders.
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Connected Transactions, Potential Connected BERXSE - AJEENBERS
Transactions and Continuing Connected RIFEBRERS

Transactions
Connected Transactions with Shang Yang
U] Sales Transactions

From 2009 to 2013, Huizhou NVC authorised a PRC
company, Shang Yang as its agent, to sell its professional
engineering products for large-scale projects in Chongging
(the “Sales Arrangement”). According to the financial
records obtained by Huizhou NVC, as at the date of this
annual report, the aggregate purchases made by Shang
Yang from Huizhou NVC amounted to approximately
RMB48 million. Huizhou NVC has taken legal action in
the PRC to seek to recover around RMB13 million of
outstanding liabilities arising from the Shang Yang Sales
Arrangement. Shang Yang’s position in those proceedings
is that it is not liable to Huizhou NVC, and the legal action
is still ongoing.

In addition, according to the financial records of
Chongqging NVC, as at the date of this annual report,
the aggregate purchases made by Shang Yang from
Chongaing NVC under the Shang Yang Sales Arrangement
amounted to approximately RMB3.86 million, and the
outstanding liabilities of Shang Yang to Chongging
NVC under such arrangement amount to approximately
RMB3.73 million, plus interest.

In connection with the Sales Arrangement, Huizhou NVC
and Shang Yang entered into several agreements, the
principal terms of which are set out below. Apart from
the agreements listed below, no other written agreements
between Huizhou NVC and Shang Yang relating to other
sales arrangements have been located. For more details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 13
May 2015 and 13 January 2016.
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2009 Sales Agreement

Time of entering
into the
agreement:

Parties:

Sales arrangement:

Effective period:

Agreement is undated but it
appears to have been entered into
in 2009

Huizhou NVC and Shang Yang

Huizhou NVC authorises Shang
Yang to sell its professional
engineering products for outdoor
projects in Chongging. The initial
sales target is RMB5 million.

From 20 September 2009 to 19
September 2010

2010 Sales Agreement

Time of entering
into the
agreement:

Parties:

Sales arrangement:

Effective period:

30 March 2010

Huizhou NVC and Shang Yang

Huizhou NVC authorises Shang
Yang to sell its products, with the
initial sales target set at RMB25
million. Huizhou NVC also agrees
to provide Shang Yang with credit
of RMB10 million, in connection
with its promotion of Huizhou
NVC'’s products.

One year from 30 March 2010
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The 2010 Sales Agreement also contains a
guarantee agreement signed by Ms. WU Ping,
Huizhou NVC and Shang Yang on 30 March 2010.
Under the guarantee, Ms. WU Ping, who appears
to be the authorized representative of Shang Yang,
personally guarantees Shang Yang’s liabilities to
Huizhou NVC under related credit arrangements
between Huizhou NVC and Shang Yang. The
repayment period is two years from the expiry of
the relevant repayment period or repayment date.

2011 Sales Agency Agreement

Time of entering in or around January 2011

into the

agreement:
Parties: Huizhou NVC and Shang Yang
Sales agency: Pursuant to the 2011 Sales

Agency Agreement, Huizhou
NVC authorises Shang Yang as
its agent to sell its professional
engineering products for large-
scale projects in Chongging. The
sales target was originally set as
RMB60 million.

Authorised Period: From 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2011

Report of Directors
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Credit Agreements

In or around 2011, Huizhou NVC, Shang Yang and
Ms. WU Ping entered into four credit agreements
which appear to form part of the Shang Yang Sales
Arrangement, pursuant to which Huizhou NVC
agreed to provide credit of a certain amount to
Shang Yang in respect of Shang Yang’s purchase
of products from Huizhou NVC. Ms. WU Ping, who
appears to be the authorized representative of
Shang Yang, agreed to personally guarantee Shang
Yang’s liabilities to Huizhou NVC under the above
credit arrangement between Huizhou NVC and
Shang Yang.

The principal terms of the Credit Agreements are
set out below:

Date of the Agreement

tfh 3% A 59

(4)

Credit Amount
E=¢:

=E &

R-T——FHAE &

MEL - HBEERRF ﬁi
BRI THMURHGHE
ZHF - BONERD

& BUHBEMNELRER
W REHE T EEMNIGE

g UHRBREMEL
RBEmMR  KR¥ELE (M
FRAEABHNEERR) B
ERHEBRE DA EME
THEBZBNEE LG
RTIBMELTHRERHE
fEAYER

EEWENETSHERDOT
FE

Credit Term
EEAR

Credit Agreement 1 Undated, but it appears to have
been entered into in 2010/2011
EBIHAS  BUTER

2%/ R —FRETN

—hEEHH

Credit Agreement 2 30 March 2011

F_NEEHE —E——F=H=1H
Credit Agreement 3 29 April 2011
F=DEEHZ —E——§WAZthH

Credit Agreement 4 Undated, but it appears to have
been entered into in 2011
BIHAS  BUTER

::YE__EAA uTm

mi EE G

RMB8 million

AR®B00ETT

RMB15 million

ARE1,5008 7T

RMB8.5 million

ARHB508 T

RMB22 million

ARE2 2008 7T

From 1 January 2011 to

9 April 2011
—2—%—-H-HA%
—F-—FMANA

Within 180 days from the
delivery of the relevant
products

BEBEMXTE1808R

Within 90 days from the
delivery of the relevant
products

BBERERRMZ0EA

From 27 December 2011 to
26 December 2013

“F—HtZA-ttRE
“Z-=Ft+-A=tiH
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(5) Supply of products by Chongqging NVC to Shang

Yang

The Sales Arrangement also covered products

supplied by Chongging NVC, another subsidiary of

the Company, although no written agreement of the
arrangement between Chongging NVC and Shang
Yang has to-date been located.

The Lighting Project Contract

Shang Yang is also a party to the Lighting Project

Contract dated December 2011, the principal terms of

which are set out below.

Principal Terms of the Lighting Project Contract

Time of entering
into the agreement:

Parties:

Project:

Duration:

In or around December 2011

Chongqing Garden Department,
Shang Yang and Huizhou NVC

Chongging Garden Department
authorises Shang Yang and Huizhou
NVC to install lighting decorations
on a street in Chongging and in
various premises located therein. The
contract consideration was around
RMB51 million.

For each piece of work, 90 calendar
days from the date of written
instruction to commence the relevant
work.
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EEEWS

The Company’s investigations have indicated that Shang
Yang was owned as to 48% by Ms. WU Lian, Mr. WU
Changjiang’s wife at the relevant time, from January 2009
to November 2014. Accordingly, at the time each of the
transactions (as described above) under the Shang Yang
Sales Arrangement and the Lighting Project Contract
was entered into, Shang Yang was an associate of Mr.
WU Changjiang and a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Mr. WU Changjiang did not disclose to the then-Board
of the Company that Shang Yang was a connected
person of the Company, at the time each of the
transactions (as described above) under the Shang Yang
Sales Arrangement and the Lighting Project Contract
was entered into. The Board only became aware that
Shang Yang was a connected person as a result of the
Company’s subsequent investigations. In any event, the
Board has no reason to believe that the transactions
(as described above) under the Shang Yang Sales
Arrangement and the Lighting Project Contract, at the
time entered into, were not on normal commercial terms,
fair and reasonable and/or in the interests of the Group
and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Having made all reasonable enquiries, the Board is not
aware of any further transactions with Shang Yang after
the year 2013 and believes that the works contemplated
by the Lighting Project Contract have all been completed.
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Potential Connected Transactions
Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements

In its announcements dated 8 October 2014, 19 November
2014, 13 May 2015, 13 August 2015 and 9 September 2015,
the Company, among other things, provided details of certain
pledge and guarantee agreements (the “Relevant Purported
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements”) entered into by Mr. WU
Changjiang purportedly on behalf of NVC China relating to bank
loans borrowed by Chongaging En Wei Xi, Lei Li Jie, Wu Ji, Jiang
Te and Wu Lian in 2013 and 2014. The information was provided
in the event that the Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements are determined to be legally valid and enforceable
and to be connected transactions.

The guarantee agreement signed on 16 October 2013 (the
“Guarantee Agreement 17)

Date of the Signed on 16 October 2013
Agreement:
Parties: NVC China and Nanyue Bank
Guarantee: Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement 1,

NVC China purportedly agrees to guarantee
En Wei Xi’s obligations under all agreements
entered into by En Wei Xi and Nanyue Bank
during the period from 16 October 2013 to
15 October 2014, up to RMB35,500,000.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is obtaining legal advice in relation to
the implications of the Guarantee Agreement
1, including as to its legal validity. In
addition, the Company is resisting the
proceedings brought by Nanyue Bank before
the Chongging First Intermediate People’s
Court to enforce the terms of the purported
Guarantee Agreement 1.
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Underlying loan
agreement:

HE

A contract between En Wei Xi and Nanyue
Bank entered into on 16 October 2013,
which provides for financing from Nanyue
Bank to En Wei Xi for an amount of up to
RMB35,500,000, effective from 16 October
2013 to 15 October 2014.

The guarantee agreement signed on 7 August 2014 (the

“Guarantee Agreement 2”)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Guarantee:

Signed on 7 August 2014

NVC China and Tongyi

Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement 2,
NVC China purportedly agrees to guarantee
Ms. WU Lian’s obligations under a loan
agreement, with a maximum loan amount of
RMB40,000,000.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is obtaining legal advice in relation
to the implications of the Guarantee
Agreement 2, including as to its legal
validity. In addition, the Company is resisting
the proceedings brought by Tongyi before
the Chongqing First Intermediate People’s
Court to enforce the terms of the purported
Guarantee Agreement 2.
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Underlying loan A loan agreement signed on 8 August 2014
agreement: and two related credit utilization agreements
signed on 7 August 2014, all of which were
entered into between Ms. WU Lian and
Tongyi. According to the loan agreement,
Tongyi provided Ms. WU Lian with a credit
facility with a maximum loan amount of
RMB40,000,000, effective from 8 August
2014 to 7 August 2015. According to the
two credit utilization agreements, Ms Wu
Lian took out two loans under the credit
facility in the amount of RMB20,000,000
and RMB14,000,000, respectively.

The guarantee charge agreement dated 29 November 2013
(the “Guarantee Agreement 3”)

Date of the 29 November 2013
Agreement:
Parties: NVC China and BOC Da Du Kou
Guarantee: Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement 3,

NVC China purportedly agrees to charge
RMB10.6 million, deposited with BOC Da
Du Kou in a separate account, as guarantee
for the underlying loan facility taken out by
Chongging En Wei Xi.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Guarantee
Agreement 3.

Underlying loan A RMB10 million loan agreement dated 29
agreement: November 2013 between BOC Da Du Kou
as the lender and Chongging En Wei Xi as

the borrower for a term of 12 months.
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HE

The guarantee charge agreement dated 3 December 2013

(the “Guarantee Agreement 47)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Guarantee:

Underlying loan
agreement:

3 December 2013

NVC China and BOC Da Du Kou

Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement 4,
NVC China purportedly agrees to charge
RMB89.4 million, deposited with BOC Da Du
Kou, in a separate account, as guarantee for
the underlying loan facility taken out by Lei
Li Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Guarantee
Agreement 4.

A RMB84.6 million loan agreement dated 3
December 2013 between BOC Da Du Kou
as the lender and Lei Li Jie as the borrower
for a term of 12 months.
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The guarantee charge agreement dated 18 July 2014 (the

“Guarantee Agreement 5”)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Guarantee:

Underlying loan
agreement:

18 July 2014

NVC China and BOC Da Du Kou

Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement 5,
NVC China purportedly agrees to charge
RMB73 million, deposited with BOC Da Du
Kou in a separate account, as guarantee for
the underlying loan facility taken out by Lei
Li Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Guarantee
Agreement 5.

A RMB69 million loan agreement dated 18
July 2014 between BOC Da Du Kou as the
lender and Lei Li Jie as the borrower for a
term of 6 months.
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The aggregated guarantee charge agreement dated 18 July

HE

2014 (the “Aggregated Guarantee Agreement”)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Guarantee:

Underlying loan
agreement:

18 July 2014

NVC China and BOC Da Du Kou

Pursuant to the Aggregated Guarantee
Agreement, NVC China purportedly agrees
to deposit RMB173 million as guarantee
for underlying loan facilities taken out
by Chongging En Wei Xi and Lei Li Jie,
respectively from BOC Da Du Kou. NVC
China will not, prior to the repayment of the
respective loans taken out by Chongging En
Wei Xi and Lei Li Jie, request a withdrawal
or return of the guarantee amount without
the written consent of BOC Da Du Kou.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Aggregated
Guarantee Agreement.

Each of the underlying loan agreements
to Guarantee Agreement 3, Guarantee
Agreement 4 and Guarantee Agreement 5,
as specified above.
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The pledge agreement dated 31 December 2013 (the “Pledge

Agreement 17)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Pledge:

Underlying loan
agreement:

31 December 2013

NVC China and ICBC Nanping

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement 1, NVC
China purportedly agrees to pledge RMB30
million, deposited with ICBC Nanping in
a separate account, as security for the
underlying loan facility taken out by Lei Li
Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Pledge Agreement
1.

A RMB30 million loan agreement dated 31
December 2013 between ICBC Nanping as
the lender and Lei Li Jie as the borrower for
a term of 12 months.
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The pledge agreement dated 16 May 2014 (the “Pledge

Agreement 27)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Pledge:

Underlying loan
agreement:

16 May 2014

NVC China and Minsheng Chongging

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement 2,
NVC China purportedly agrees to pledge
RMB20.5 million, deposited with Minsheng
Chongging in a separate account, as
security for the underlying loan facility taken
out by Wu Ji.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Pledge Agreement
2.

A RMB20 million loan agreement dated 16
May 2014 between Minsheng Chongging as
the lender and Wu Ji as the borrower for a
term of 5 months.

HAE—ZE—WERA+NAHEZHFH

Z ((EFGE—=)

B —PERAF+NH

HEIPE ErHEERERITEEDTT

B BELHEHBE"  ELPRIE
BESERERRERTERE
DITEBIRFHHARY2,050
B (EAYHEREENERH
BERMER o
AARERERFMER A
B NERER BRI EER
NEKEZER -

HEER RAERTEEST(HERER

WiE - AN) MER (ERBERAN) Z

MEBMA-ZT—MFRAT
ANECHBEALBEANARE
2,0008 TE M



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

The pledge agreement dated 3 July 2014 (the “Pledge

Agreement 3”)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Pledge:

Underlying loan
agreement:

3 July 2014

NVC China and Minsheng Chongging

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement 3, NVC
China purportedly agrees to pledge RMB52
million, deposited with Minsheng Chongqging
in a separate account, as security for the
underlying loan facility taken out by Lei Li
Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Pledge Agreement
3.

A RMB50 million loan agreement dated 3
July 2014 between Minsheng Chongging as
the lender and Lei Li Jie as the borrower for
a term of 6 months.
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The pledge agreement dated 22 July 2014 (the “Pledge

Agreement 4%)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Pledge:

Underlying loan
agreement:

22 July 2014

NVC China and Minsheng Chongging

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement 4, NVC
China purportedly agrees to pledge RMB35
million, deposited with Minsheng Chongging
in a separate account, as security for the
underlying loan facility taken out by Lei Li
Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Pledge Agreement
4.

A RMB34.1 million loan agreement dated 22
July 2014 between Minsheng Chongging as
the lender and Lei Li Jie as the borrower for
a term of 6 months.
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The pledge agreement dated 4 August 2014 (the “Pledge

Agreement 5”)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Pledge:

Underlying loan
agreement:

4 August 2014

NVC China and Minsheng Chongging

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement 5, NVC
China purportedly agrees to pledge RMB35
million, deposited with Minsheng Chongging
in a separate account, as security for the
underlying loan facility taken out by Lei Li
Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it is still seeking legal advice in relation
to the legal validity of the Pledge Agreement
o8

A RMB34.1 million loan agreement dated 4
August 2014 between Minsheng Chongging
as the lender and Lei Li Jie as the borrower
for a term of 6 months.
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The pledge agreement dated 18 June 2014 (the “Pledge

Agreement 6”)

Date of the
Agreement:

Parties:

Pledge:

Underlying loan
agreement:

18 June 2014

NVC China and ICBC Nanping

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement 6,
NVC China purportedly agrees to provide
a pledge amount of RMB100 million as
security for the underlying loan facility taken
out by Jiang Te.

The Company repeats its earlier statement
that it continues to obtain legal advice in
relation to the legal validity of the Pledge
Agreement 6.

A RMB100 million loan agreement dated 18
June 2014 between ICBC Nanping as the
lender and Jiang Te as the borrower for a
term of 12 months.
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Ms. WU Lian is understood to be the spouse of Mr. WU
Changjiang at the relevant time. As a result, Ms. WU Lian
was an associate of Mr. WU Changjiang and accordingly a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules
at the material time. Chongqging En Wei Xi is an associate of
Mr. WU Changjiang and accordingly a connected person of
the Company at the material time. Recent investigations of
the Company indicate that Jiang Te is an associate of Mr. WU
Changjiang and therefore a connected person of the Company at
the material time. Investigations are continuing as to the precise
relationship between Wu Ji and Lei Li Jie (on the one hand)
and Mr. WU Changjiang and the Company (on the other hand).
The Company has reason to believe that Wu Ji and/or Lei Li Jie
may be associates of Mr. WU Changjiang and may potentially
be connected persons of the Company at the material time. If
so, the Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements
would constitute connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules, should they be determined to be legally valid.

The Board would like to reiterate that the entering into of the
Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements was not
carried out with the knowledge of the current Board. Accordingly,
the Board is not presently aware of a fair and reasonable
justification for the entering into of the Relevant Purported
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements, nor has the Board been
provided with a proper explanation which indicates that the
Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements are in the
interests of the Company or its shareholders as a whole. NVC
China has commenced several proceedings in the PRC against
Mr. WU Changjiang and other defendants in connection with
certain Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements. In those
proceedings, NVC China’s position is that the Purported Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements are not legally valid or enforceable.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 14 April
2015 for more information.
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Counter Guarantees from Wu Ji

In its announcement dated 2 September 2015, the Company
provided details of eight letters of counter guarantee (the “Letters
of Counter Guarantee”) issued by Wu Ji, pursuant to which
Wu Ji provided counter guarantees to NVC China in respect of
its potential losses arising from certain pledge and guarantee
agreements. The information was provided in the event that Wu
Ji may be a connected person of the Company at the material
time.

Letters of Counter Guarantee

Date of the Copies of two of the Letters of Counter
Letters: Guarantee appear undated.

The dates of the other Letters of Counter
Guarantee are: 24 September 2013; 4
December 2013; 31 December 2013; 17
June 2014; 18 June 2014; and 18 July

2014,

Party: Wu Ji
Counter Pursuant to eight irrevocable letters of
Guarantees counter guarantee, Wu Ji provided counter
and guarantees to NVC China to compensate
Underlying it for certain losses arising from certain of
Loans: the Pledge and Guarantee Agreements in

connection with the loans described below:

(a) counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB20 million, in connection with
a loan of the same amount from
Minsheng Bank to Wu Ji;

(b) counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB118.2 million, in connection
with several loans totaling the same
amount from Minsheng Bank to Lei Li
Jie;
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counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB28 million, in connection with
a loan of the same amount from
Minsheng Bank to Hua Biao;

counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB84.6 million, in connection with
a loan of the same amount from BOC
to Lei Li Jie;

counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB30 million, in connection with a
loan of the same amount from ICBC
to Lei Li Jie;

counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB100 million, in connection with a
loan of the same amount from ICBC
to Hua Biao;

counter guarantee in the sum of
RMB100 million, in connection with a
loan of the same amount from ICBC
to Jiang Te; and

counter guarantee in the sum of
RMBG69 million, in connection with a
loan of the same amount from BOC
to Lei Li Jie.

The Company repeats its earlier statement

that the Letters of Counter Guarantee are

currently referred to in ongoing litigation
in the PRC involving NVC China, and the
Board notes that the court has not yet made

a determination in relation to their legal

validity and enforceability.
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At the time when the Letters of Counter Guarantee were issued,
it is believed that Wu Ji’'s sole executive director and legal
representative was Ms. WU Lian, the wife of Mr. WU Changjiang
at that time. Although the Company is currently unable to
confirm this, it has reason to believe that Wu Ji may be an
associate of Mr. WU Changjiang, and accordingly, may potentially
be a connected person of the Company at the material time. If
Wu Ji was a connected person of the Company at the material
time, then the Letters of Counter Guarantee may constitute the
receipt by the Company of financial assistance from a connected
person, and may therefore be connected transactions of the
Company.

The Board would like to reiterate that the Board only became
aware of the executed Letters of Counter Guarantees in 2015.
The Letters of Counter Guarantee relate to a number of pledge
and guarantee agreements, entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang,
purportedly on behalf of the Company. The Board was not
previously aware of NVC China’s purported entering into of
the pledge and guarantee agreements, and is obtaining legal
advice in relation to their implications. The Board is also not
presently aware of a fair and reasonable justification for the
Letters of Counter Guarantee and/or the pledge and guarantee
agreements, nor has Mr. WU Changjiang provided the Board
with a proper explanation which indicates that these letters
and agreements are in the interests of the Company or its
shareholders as a whole. Nonetheless, the Board notes that the
Letters of Counter Guarantees have apparently been granted
in return for the purported pledge and guarantee agreements
entered into by the Company in relation to the various loans
mentioned above. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 2 September 2015 for more information.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempted from Independent Shareholders’
Approval

Renewed framework trademark licensing agreement

We entered into a renewed framework trademark licensing
agreement on 19 December 2012 with Sheng Di Ai Si,
Chongging Enlin and Shandong NVC, which are associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr. WU Changjiang, the
former Executive Director and the then substantial shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of our Company, pursuant
to which we grant to each licensee a non-exclusive and non-
transferrable right to use our registered trademarks including
“NVC”, “EX”, “NVCETL” and “HIRIEZEXK" in the PRC. The
trademark licence fees are 3% of each licensee’s sales (including
value added tax) of products using licensed trademarks. The
trademark licence fees were agreed following arm’s length
negotiations and were on normal commercial terms. The term of
this renewed framework trademark licensing agreement is three
years commencing on 1 January 2013 or until the expiration date
of the licensed trademarks, whichever period is shorter.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts of trademark licence
fees receivable by us under the renewed framework trademark
licensing agreement for the years ended 31 December 2013,
2014 and 2015 are US$4,000,000, US$4,350,000 and
US$4,830,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount of trademark
licence fees received by us under the renewed framework
trademark licensing agreement was RMB909,000 which did not
exceed the annual cap.
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Framework contract manufacturing agreement

We entered into a framework contract manufacturing
agreement on 19 December 2012 with Shandong NVC, which
is an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr.
WU Changjiang, the former Executive Director and the then
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company, pursuant to which, Shandong NVC, as a contract
manufacturer, produces and supplies to us residential luminaires
based on our design and technical standards and labels those
residential luminaires with our brands. Under the framework
contract manufacturing agreement, the prices charged by
Shandong NVC will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations
between the relevant parties with reference to the prevailing
market rates. The term of this framework contract manufacturing
agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2013.
According to this agreement, Shandong NVC is not permitted
to cooperate with other contract manufacturing clients whose
products are identical or similar to ours during the contract
period.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable to Shandong
NVC under the framework contract manufacturing agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are
US$1,000,000, US$1,100,000 and US$1,200,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us to
Shandong NVC under the framework contract manufacturing
agreement was RMB1,873,000 which did not exceed the annual
cap.

AR ERER =

T IR2012F12 198 BB I R & + 7
ST —HEIREEERGE  ZARIR
RARAIPITESREIEZERR (TR
(EmRAN) RRIGENBBA (F
ERAC(ETHRAD) - BiIgZHZE - LR
BT (ERFTHNEER) BEREMH
R REMEERBMEERRHKE
BRAER MzEXEEEEMKM L
BMH Mg o ILRE T WM ERS S
S HRATERE2BMISEHRTE
BT o NI AEEERHZEB2013F
1A18#  BH=F - BEZH=H

RETEARBPBTSEHEREARRAF
HRSBEUHEMITNEERP&E -

& £2013%F » 20144 K2015F 12 A31
HIEFE » BMIBMET LT EEESR D
FMEXNFLEEINESFTEL
DRBIEEERT - 1.108 B X TH
1.2088%ETT -

R|EFEA - BAPIBET A EEERW
AMENUREINERSBE/ARE
1,873T 7T - REBBAFE LR -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Renewed framework contract manufacturing
agreement

We entered into a renewed framework contract manufacturing
agreement on 28 August 2013 with Chongqging En Wei Xi,
which is an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
Mr. WU Changjiang, the former Executive Director and the then
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company, pursuant to which Chongging En Wei Xi, as a
contract manufacturer, produces and supplies to us outdoor
luminaires based on our design and technical standards and
labels those outdoor luminaires with our brands. The prices
charged by Chongging En Wei Xi will be agreed following arm’s
length negotiations between the relevant parties with reference to
the prevailing market rates. The term of this renewed framework
contract manufacturing agreement is three years commencing
on 1 January 2013. According to this agreement, Chongging
En Wei Xi is not permitted to cooperate with other contract
manufacturing clients whose products are identical or similar to
ours during the contract period.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable to
Chongaing En Wei Xi under the renewed framework contract
manufacturing agreement for the years ended 31 December
2013, 2014 and 2015 are RMB50,000,000, RMB60,000,000 and
RMB72,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with Chongqging En Wei Xi under the renewed framework contract
manufacturing agreement.
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Framework finished products purchase agreement

We entered into a framework finished products purchase
agreement on 28 August 2013 with Sheng Di Ai Si, which
is an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr.
WU Changjiang, the then Executive Director and substantial
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company,
pursuant to which, the Company agreed to purchase home
furnishing lamp from Sheng Di Ai Si on a non-exclusive basis.
The quality, quantity and technical standards of the lamp
delivered by Sheng Di Ai Si must meet the Company’s standards
as set out in the sub-contract for each purchase order. The
prices charged by Sheng Di Ai Si will be agreed following arm’s
length negotiations between the relevant parties with reference
to the prevailing market rates. The term of the framework
agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2013.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable to Sheng Di Ai
Si under the framework finished products purchase agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are
RMB30,000,000, RMB56,000,000 and RMB96,000,000,
respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with Sheng Di Ai Si under the framework finished products
purchase agreement.
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Supply and demand cooperation agreement

On 13 February 2012, the Company entered into the supply and
demand cooperation agreement with Chongging Enlin, pursuant
to which Chongqging Enlin shall produce and supply to the
Company lights, heater and ventilator for kitchen and bathroom
use based on our design and technical standards and label those
products with our brands. As Chongging Enlin is an associate
of Mr. WU Changjiang and Mr. WU is the former substantial
shareholder, Executive Director and chief executive officer of
the Company, the transactions under the agreement therefore
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
The agreement has a term of two years, and the purpose of
signing of the agreement by the Company is to enhance our
operation efficiency through outsourcing the production of
relevant products. The fees charged by Chongging Enlin were
agreed based on arm'’s length negotiations with reference to the
prevailing market rates.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with Chongging Enlin under the supply and demand cooperation
agreement.

Renewed framework raw material purchase agreement

We entered into a renewed framework raw material purchase
agreement dated 19 December 2012 with World Bright, Quzhou
Aushite and Jiangshan Youhe, which are associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of Mr. WU Jiannong, a director and a
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
Zhejiang NVC, a subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which,
we agreed to purchase raw materials (on a non-exclusive basis)
including glass tubes from World Bright, phosphor powder from
Quzhou Aushite and tools and accessories from Jiangshan
Youhe. The quality, quantity and technical standards of the raw
materials delivered by these suppliers must meet the Company’s
standards as set out in the sub-contract for each purchase and
the prices charged by these suppliers will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the relevant parties with
reference to the prevailing market rates. The term of the renewed
framework raw material purchase agreement is three years
commencing from 1 January 2013.
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The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to World
Bright, Quzhou Aushite and Jiangshan Youhe under the renewed
framework raw material purchase agreement for the years
ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are US$19,790,000,
US$21,770,000 and US$23,940,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us under
the renewed framework raw material purchase agreement was
RMB8,141,000, which did not exceed the annual cap.

Renewed framework equipment purchase agreement

We entered into a renewed framework equipment purchase
agreement dated 19 December 2012 with Jiangshan Youhe,
which is an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
Mr. WU Jiannong, a director and a substantial shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of Zhejiang NVC, a subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which we purchase manufacturing
equipment and software from Jiangshan Youhe. The fees charged
by Jiangshan Youhe will be agreed based on arm’s length
negotiations with reference to the prevailing market rates. The
term of this renewed framework equipment purchase agreement
is three years commencing on 1 January 2013.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us under
the renewed framework equipment purchase agreement for
the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are
US$1,360,000, US$900,000 and US$900,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with Jianshan Youhe arising from the renewed framework
equipment purchase agreement.
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Trademark licensing agreement

Huizhou NVC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a trademark licensing agreement on 11 June 2013
with ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which, Huizhou
NVC grants ETIC, a non-transferrable right to use certain
registered trademarks of the Company, including “NVC” and “&
+”, as well as granting ETIC the right to use the Company’s
registered trademark in combination with ETIC’s own brand as
“NVCETI” and “&ZXf£%” on ETIC’s LED lamp products. The
licensing is worldwide but is exclusive only on certain ETIC’s LED
lamp products. The trademark licensing fee is agreed based on
arm’s length negotiations and is on normal commercial terms.
The term of the trademark licensing agreement is three years
commencing on 11 June 2013.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts of trademark licence
fees receivable by us under the trademark licensing agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 are
RMB16,000,000, RMB27,000,000 and RMB55,000,000,
respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount of trademark
licence fees received by us under the trademark licensing
agreement was RMB7,567,000 which did not exceed the annual
cap.
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Framework finished products and raw materials
purchase agreement

We entered into a framework finished products and raw materials
purchase agreement on 28 August 2013 with ETIC, which is
a substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the Company, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to
purchase finished products and raw materials including but not
limited to LED chips and LED lamp products from ETIC and its
subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. The quality, quantity and
technical standards of the products delivered by ETIC and its
subsidiaries must meet the Company’s standards as set out in
the sub-contract for each purchase order. The prices charged
by ETIC and its subsidiaries will be agreed following arm’s length
negotiations between the parties with reference to the prevailing
market rates. The term of the framework agreement is three
years commencing on 1 January 2013.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable to ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the framework finished products and raw
materials purchase agreement for the years ended 31 December
2013, 2014 and 2015 are RMB130,000,000, RMB170,000,000
and RMB170,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us to
ETIC and its subsidiaries under the framework finished products
and raw materials purchase agreement was RMB109,606,000
which did not exceed the annual cap.
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Framework sales agreement

We entered into a framework sales agreement on 28 August
2013 with ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which,
the Company agreed to sell finished products including but
not limited to LED luminaire products to ETIC on a non-
exclusive basis. The quality, quantity and technical standards
of the products delivered by the Group must meet ETIC and its
subsidiaries’ standards as set out in the sub-contract for each
sales order. The prices paid by ETIC will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference
to the prevailing market rates. The term of the framework
agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2013.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us under
the framework sales agreement for the years ended 31 December
2013, 2014 and 2015 are RMB50,000,000, RMB100,000,000
and RMB100,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with ETIC and its subsidiaries arising from the framework sales
agreement.
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Confirmation on Continuing Connected Transaction

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above
Continuing Connected Transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors, who confirmed that these
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(if) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iif) according to relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
the connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
a letter containing a conclusion that the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above have no non-
compliance with Listing Rule 14A.56. The auditor’s letter has
confirmed that nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;
(if) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with

the pricing policies of the Group as stated in this annual
report;
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(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
continuing connected transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded their respective annual caps for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 set out in the
previous announcements of the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been submitted by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered
into certain transactions with “related parties” as defined
under the applicable accounting standards, which include (1)
transactions that could constitute connected transactions in
the event that the Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements are determined to be legally valid, and (2)
transactions that constitute continuing connected transactions
for which the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with. Details of the material
related party transactions are disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Disclosures pursuant to Rules 13.21 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.
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Contracts of Significance

Saved for the continuing connected transactions and the
connected and potential connected transactions disclosed
above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business in which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, or its parent company was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the Reporting Period or at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate our
employees based on their performance, qualifications and our
results of operations.

The emoluments of our Directors and senior management are
determined by our Remuneration Committee with reference to
our results of operations, their individual performance and the
comparable market statistics.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under which
a Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Group’s five
highest-paid individuals are set out in note 10 and note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 215 to 220 of this
annual report.

EESH

B EXARBENRERER S NEER
AREMBERZIN  RBEFEAR LR
EEER  ARAREMBARHEZR
(R PNCIE RS YNCIE R RVAE RN SETE S

BHEEAZEMNERAXN  AEENER
TAERANTERKEREEEAE

N R

AEENFHBERASREEERE - &
N 8 AR VE IR o

ARREZRSNEEABNFHNHE
MEESKBEARFNLERE  BAA
RN AT LB T 5 SRR TR TE ©

RRARWREBRFMNESEHNEXRE
WEARFMAOLH - EFHMELRE
ERzeaiMALTHFBIRAFE
MEF215HEF220E A I BERE
BIEE10RIBIET1 ©



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Housing Fund and Pension Scheme

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
the housing fund and the defined contribution retirement plans
operated by local governments. Under these plans, the Group
is required to pay to the defined contribution plans based on a
certain percentage of the remuneration of its employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the housing fund
and pension scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions made under the housing fund and
pension scheme are charged in the statements of profit or loss
as incurred.

The Company may not utilize any forfeited contributions in order
to make fewer contributions than the current amounts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contributions to the
housing fund and pension scheme were RMB84,303,000. Details
of the Group’s contributions to the housing fund and pension
scheme are set out in note 8 on pages 213 to 214 and note 10
on pages 215 to 219 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.
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Charitable Contributions

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of
approximately RMB530,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from the sales to our
top five customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue and the purchases of goods and services from our
top five suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total purchases.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices and the Code on
Corporate Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Company had complied with
the applicable principles and codes provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, except for code provision A.2.1.
Please refer to Corporate Governance Report on pages 111 to
130 of this annual report for further details.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all Directors, and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with all relevant requirements
as set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period, the
details are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 111 to 112 of this annual report.
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Events after the Reporting Period

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Kong
NVC Lighting (“NVC HK”), has entered into the equity
transfer agreement with Gold Interact Investment Limited
(the “Transferor”) on 3 February 2016 (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement, NVC
HK agrees to acquire, and the Transferor agrees to sell, 75%
equity interest in LED Holdings Limited. The total consideration
for the acquisition is determined to be RMB500,000,000. The
Board considers that the intellectual properties owned by
LED Holdings Limited will benefit the Group in its technology
upgrading and new products development, hence enhancing the
Group’s competitiveness, developing the international market
of its products and improving of the Group’s performance.
In addition, its subsidiary and the Group will jointly invest
in household lighting appliances which will be an important
businesses operation unit and growth point of the Group. The
Board considers that the Company will benefit from household
lighting appliances’ advantages in research, design, production,
sales of luminaire, lamps and other lighting appliances and
LED lighting products through increasing investment and
shareholdings in household lighting appliances in order to
enhance its influence, which can in turn achieve greater
economic efficiency and development potential.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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Auditor

On 16 December 2015, the Board passed, by a majority,
resolutions to terminate the contract with Messrs Ernst & Young
(“EY”) as the auditor of the Company and appoint BDO Limited
(“BDO”) as the new auditor of the Company (together, the
“Change of Auditor”). The above-mentioned Change of Auditor
has been passed by the Shareholders in the Extraordinary
General Meeting which was held on 17 March 2016.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the
related notes thereto for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
set out in this annual report have been reviewed and agreed by
the Group’s auditor, BDO, to the amounts set out in the Group’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

A resolution to re-appoint BDO as our auditor will be submitted
for shareholders’ approval at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chairman
WANG Donglei

Hong Kong
5 April 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Directors are of the opinion that, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had fully complied with the applicable principles
and code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for Code
Provision A.2.1. which requires that the role of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The details of deviation are set
out in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below in this Corporate Governance Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code which was set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors, and all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.
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The Company has also established written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
the relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company
(“Employees Written Guidelines”).

The Company is not aware any incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant employees.

Board of Directors
Board Composition

During the Reporting Period, the Board comprises the following

Directors:

Executive Directors: Mr. WANG Donglei (Chairman,
appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer on 21 January
2015 and re-designated as
Executive Director on
2 February 2015)

Mr. WANG Dongming

Mr. XIAO Yu

Mr. XIONG Jie

Non-executive Directors: Mr. LIN Ho-Ping
Mr. ZHU Hai
Mr. LI Wei

Independent Non-executive Mr. WANG Jinsui (Resigned on
2 February 2015)

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway

Ms. WU Ling

Mr. WANG Xuexian

Mr. WEI Hongxiong

Directors:
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The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 37
to 53 of this annual report.

Except for that Mr. WANG Dongming and Mr. WANG Donglei are
brothers, none of other members of the Board is related to one
another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Donglei assumed the
roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Company
deviated from this code provision. Mr. WANG Donglei is the
chairman and general manager of ETIC, which is the controlling
corporation of the largest shareholder of the Company, Elec-Tech
International (H.K.) Company Limited. Mr. WANG Donglei has
many years of experience in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management. The dual role
arrangement provides strong and consistent market leadership
and is critical for efficient business planning and decision making
of the Company. As all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and its other relevant committees,
and there are four Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore
of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board will also
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for
the purposes of complying with the CG Code and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Jinsui has resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 2 February 2015.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. LEE Kong Way, Conway, Ms.
WU Ling, Mr. WANG Xuexian and Mr. WEI Hongxiong, the annual
confirmation letter of their respective independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the
Independent Non-executive Directors were independent from
their respective date of appointment to 31 December 2015.

Non-executive Directors and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-
executive Directors shall be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election, while code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years with effect
from their respective date of appointment unless terminated by
not less than three months’ written notice served by either the
Executive Directors or the Company. Each of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
with effect from their respective date of appointment. The above
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and in accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of
the Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain
the number of directors to retire by rotation) any director who
wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election. Any
further directors so to retire shall be those of the Directors
subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest in
office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise
agree among themselves) be determined by lot. Accordingly,
Mr. WANG Donglei, Mr. XIAO YU, Mr. LIN Ho-Ping and Mr. LI
Wei will be subject to re-election on the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. LIN Ho-Ping confirmed that he will not offer
himself for re-election at the annual general meeting due to other
business engagements which require more of his dedication.
Apart from this, Mr. WANG Donglei, Mr. XIAO Yu and Mr. LI Wei,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. None of the Directors who is proposed for re-
election or any other Directors has a service contract with us
that is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company and may request the joint company secretaries
and senior management to provide services and advice. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expenses.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous

RIBARRFENCE  EFNHESF
EREIATERR LT ARESH
& B MBENEI - BT
BEXBRNEETATRIRE

professional development during the Reporting Period:

Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws,
Rules and Regulations

Accounting/Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills

EER BEEH g5t BHE S EER
RAIRKRBNEFHER Hitt ¥R R
Attend Attend
Seminars/ Seminars/

Read Briefings Read Briefings

Name of Director Materials HEWE,  Materials HEWSE

EEfE MEER R BEER fHRE

Executive Directors HITESE

WANG Donglei (Note 1) TLET (KiF1) v v

WANG Dongming By v v

XIAO Yu HF v v

XIONG Jie AEfE v v

Non-Executive Directors FHITES

LIN Ho-Ping AT v v

ZHU Hai KB v v

LI Wei > v v

Independent BYKHITES

Non-Executive Directors

WANG Jinsui (Note 2) TR (Aaz2)

LEE Kong Wai, Conway TEE v/ v

WU Ling EES v v

WANG Xuexian TE5E v/ v/

WEI Hongxiong M v/ v

Notes: HaE -
1. Mr. WANG Donglei was re-designated as Executive Director from 1. TR EREN2015F2H20 M IEH

2.

Non-executive Director on 2 February 2015.

Mr. WANG Jinsui resigned on 2 February 2015.

TEFIAER/RPTES -

2. FEEEE R R 2015F2 A2 B BHE ©
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Board Committees

The Board has established six committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Strategy and Planning Committee, Emergency Committee and
Independent Investigation Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee include maintaining
relationship with the auditor of the Group; reviewing financial
information of the Group; supervising the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system of the
Group; and the duties of corporate governance designated by
the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to review annual and interim financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the interim period ended 30 June 2015 as well as significant
issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems, scope of work
and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for
employees to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without
the presence of the Executive Directors.
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Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to
comprise a minimum of three members with Independent Non-
executive Directors in majority and at least one member with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Jinsui has resigned as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 2 February 2015, therefore, he ceased to be the
member of Audit Committee. Mr. WANG Xuexian was appointed
as a member of Audit Committee by the Board on the same
date. As of the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists
of three members, namely, Mr. LIN Ho-Ping, Mr. LEE Kong Wai,
Conway and Mr. WANG Xuexian. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway
was the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all
directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model set out in item
(ii) under the code provision B.1.2(c) of the CG Code, i.e., making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters.
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Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules requires an issuer to establish a
Remuneration Committee chaired by independent non-executive
director and comprising a majority of independent non-executive
directors.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Jinsui has resigned as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 2 February 2015, therefore, he ceased to be the
Chairman of Remuneration Committee. Mr. WEI Hongxiong was
appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on
the same date. As of the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. ZHU Hai, Mr.
LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Ms. WU Ling and Mr. WEI Hongxiong.

In addition to the information about remuneration disclosed in
note 10 and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 215 to 220 of this annual report, the remuneration of other
senior management of the Company falls in the following bands:

TEERWE

(EMRAI) B3.25(54 F 1T ABKIL
FMEEE  BBUIFMITERELEE:
MBI FATESRIERZH

RBEFEAR - TRBEEFTERAIF
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MIUERKBHEK - DRIRKELE - F
BEEE RELZETRBRTEHERE -

BN AREEREF 2158 EF220E M
BHREM 1011 R B EH M E
SN RRREMEREEABNTIE
WAEATAERIA -

Number of Members
of Senior Management

EREEREAY
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001t 21,500,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 722,000,000/ 7T 1

Over HK$2,000,000 83E2,000,0007 7T

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services) to
implement the Board diversity policy and review such objects
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the Annual General Meeting.
The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance
of diversity perspective of the Board is maintained.

Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code requires an issuer to
establish a Nomination Committee chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-executive director and comprises a
majority of independent non-executive directors.
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As of the date of this report, the Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely, Mr. WANG Donglei, Mr. LEE Kong
Wai, Conway and Ms. WU Ling. Mr. WANG Donglei was the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Planning Committee

The primary function of the Strategy and Planning Committee is
to propose and formulate the strategic development plan of the
Company for the Board’s consideration.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Jinsui has resigned
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 2 February 2015, therefore, he ceased to be
the member of the Strategy and Planning Committee. As of
the date of this report, the Strategy and Planning Committee
consists of three members, namely, Mr. WANG Donglei, Mr. ZHU
Hai and Ms. WU Ling. Mr. WANG Donglei was the Chairman
of the Strategy and Planning Committee. During the Reporting
Period, one meeting was convened by the Strategy and Planning
Committee.

Emergency Committee

The Company established the Emergency Committee under
the Board on 8 August 2014. Following the establishment of
Emergency Committee, an emergency situation was declared in
a timely manner. The Emergency Committee has been authorized
by the Board, in the event of an emergency, to exercise the
powers and perform the duties on behalf of the Board, which
include without limitation, (1) conducting internal organizational
restructuring, appointing management personnel, executing
business contracts, making financial payments and other
matters, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company;
and (2) publishing announcements on behalf of the Board on the
website of the Stock Exchange. As of the date of this report, the
Emergency Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr.
WANG Donglei, Mr. XIAO Yu and Mr. WEI Hongxiong. During the
Reporting Period, one meeting was convened by the Emergency
Committee.
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Independent Investigations Committee

To advance the internal investigations into matters involving Mr.
WU Changjiang mentioned herein, the Company has established
the Independent Investigations Committee under the Board. The
Independent Investigations Committee has been authorized by
the Board to exercise powers and perform duties on behalf of the
Board in relation to the conduct of the investigations into, among
other things, the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang. The
Independent Investigations Committee has also been authorized
to consider and make recommendations to the Board with
respect to any potential proceedings arising from the internal
investigations. In connection with the Company’s investigations of
the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang, the Independent
Investigations Committee has instructed a third-party service
provider to conduct a forensic review of related irregularities
and an internal controls assessment of the Company and its
key subsidiaries. The forensic review and the internal controls
assessment are now completed. As of the date of this report, the
Independent Investigations Committee consists of four members,
namely, Mr. LIN Ho-Ping, Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG
Xuexian and Mr. WEI Hongxiong. During the Reporting Period,
two meetings were convened by the Emergency Committee.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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Attendance Record of Directors and
Committee Members

During the Reporting Period, the Company held five Board
meetings in total. The attendance record of each director at the
Board and Board Committee meetings and the general meeting
of the Company held during the Reporting Period is set out in

TEERWE

ZEENEHES
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EENR
HYRC 8%

RBEFEAR  ARBHBITARES
2eR REFHFERBRESFERITH
EXeEZRECERURARAIR
RAGHCEEIIN TR

the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

g/ EBETRY
Strategy and Independent Annual
Planning ~ Emergency  Investigation General
Audit ~ Remuneration ~Nomination ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Meeting
Name of Director Board Committee ~ Committee  Committee ~ EHHERH B3EH Bugs e
BEf4 28  #NzEg Mz RezEg 8¢ §EzZEE ZEE  jBFAE
WANG Donglei (Note 1)~ FRE (#it1) 5/5 11 171 17 11
WANG Dongming 48 4f5 17
XIAO Yu AT 5/5 10 11
XIONG Jie i 5/5 1
LIN Ho-Ping vin 5/5 33 212 1
ZHU Hai xi 4/5 1N 11 01
LI Wei R 5/5 1
WANG Jinsui (Nots 2) T8l (hz22) 000 00 00 00 00
LEE Kong Wai, Conway 2% 5/5 3/3 17 17 22 17
WU Ling R 505 111 111 111 11
WANG Xuexian T84 5/5 33 22 1
WEI Hongxiong Bnt 5/5 17 17 202 17
Notes: B -
1. Mr. WANG Donglei was re-designated as Executive Director from 1. TR EREN2015F282H HFE#H
Non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. TEFATAERTES -
2. Mr. WANG Jinsui resigned on 2 February 2015. 2. T ERF £ 2015F2 A2 HBHE -

BREMEFTEERIN RWMEFER
TREITEFERTES (BHEBILIFNTT
BER) BT -REF MATBRATES
HE o

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one
meeting with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive
Directors during the Reporting Period.
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Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 131 to 139 of this annual report. Shareholders are
advised to read the qualified opinion included in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB3,000,000 and
RMB2,408,000, respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of
the Company, EY and BDO, in respect of audit services and non-

audit services for the Reporting Period is set out below:

Service Category

%Eﬁ@éﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
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Fees Paid/Payable

RIEER e ENER
(RMB’000)

TFARE

Audit Services EIZRTE 3,000
Non-audit Services TR TS 2,408

5,408




NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ #BAZRER AT | 2015 Annual Report 3R

Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. During the Reporting
Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company has established internal audit systems including
internal audit department and risk control department to review
and improve the Group’s internal control measures and oversee
the measures to be implemented effectively. They all report
directly to the chief executive officer. It is complementary to the
duties of the external auditor and plays an important role in the
Company’s internal governance.

After receiving the confirmation from the management to the
Board the effectiveness of these systems, the Board is of the
view that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are well-established, effective and adequate.

Company Secretary

Ms. LO Yee Har Susan and Miss LEUNG Ching Ching of Tricor
Services Limited, external service provider, have been engaged
by the Company as its joint company secretaries. Its primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. TAN Ying, the chief
financial officer and vice-president of overseas sales system of
the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at Shareholders’ meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions put
forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted on by a show of hands and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after
each Shareholders’ meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) may be convened
by the Board upon requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit
of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, while all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the
requisition, sign the requisition and deposit the same to the
Board or the company secretaries or the primary contact person
of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision) or the Articles of Association of
the Company. However, shareholders who wish to put forward
proposal at general meetings may convene an EGM following the
procedures set out above.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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Primary Contact Person

Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions
for the general meeting or enquiries to the Board as mentioned
above to the primary contact person of the Company as set out

below:

Name: The Chairman of NVC Lighting Holding Limited

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2956 2192

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The
chairman of the Board as well as chairman of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees will
make themselves available at the annual general meetings to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company did not make any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.nvc-lighting.com.cn, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

Going Concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

R|EFEAR - ADQ B EEH QB A
ERELEAENR - AR ARHTOALS
ERMARAR BB RIS
)

RREERER AAAREHEL
www.nvc-lighting.com.cn » 48U & A 7
NAEBERNEE MBER %
EREREEAMEZTER REBEERN -
AEARALTER -

HEKERE

MEA BT EHSIEREER T
AEAYHARBNBELSEENERE
j(ﬁiﬁ:ﬂ °



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ ®BZER AR AT | 2015 Annual Report 3 KX

Independent Auditor’s Refort
B SR

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
A

B 1 +852 2218 8288 EHTFEH1118E

85 : +852 2815 2239 KRS58

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NVC LIGHTING HOLDING
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 140
to 307, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

(@)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts

As set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”)
entered into several pledge and guarantee agreements in
2013 and 2014 (the “Pledge and Guarantee Agreements”)
with certain banks in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), providing guarantees to the banks for their
loan facilities granted to certain borrowers. As at 31
December 2013, an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB160,000,000 was recorded as pledged time
deposits to the banks under the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, included in the “Restricted bank balances
and short-term deposits” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. During 2014, additional time
deposits were pledged to the banks under the Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements entered into in 2014. Counter
guarantees were provided by one of the borrowers of
the bank loans (the “Borrower”) to the Group. In 2014,
aggregate pledged time deposits of RMB550,924,000 had
been withdrawn by the banks due to default of the bank
loans under the guarantees of the Subsidiary.

The Group initiated legal actions to claim the counter
guarantees provided by the Borrower. As at 31 December
2014 and 2015, other receivables of RMB550,924,000
due from the Borrower were included in “Prepayments,
deposits and other receivables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position as set out in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements. The directors
are of the opinion that an amount of RMB265,564,000
(the “Recoverable Amount”) is recoverable as at 31
December 2014 and 2015, and accordingly a provision
for the unrecoverable amount of RMB285,360,000 had
been made and included in “Impairment loss of other
receivables due from a company” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 and there was no further provision or
write-back of provision for impairment loss during the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

As set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Subsidiary also entered into guarantee
agreements with another PRC bank in 20183 (the
“Guarantee Agreement 1”) and a PRC finance company
in 2014 (the “Guarantee Agreement 2”) respectively,
providing guarantees to the PRC bank and the PRC
finance company for their loan facilities granted to their
borrowers. The outstanding loans of RMB35,497,000 and
RMB34,000,000 in relation to the Guarantee Agreements
1 and 2 were in default in 2015 and 2014 respectively.
The PRC bank and the PRC finance company have
taken legal actions against the respective borrowers
and the guarantors (including the Subsidiary and the
Borrower as guarantors) to recover the loan balances
and interests. The directors consider that the likelihood of
the Group sustaining further losses from the Guarantee
Agreements 1 and 2 is remote as it is considered that
the loans had sufficient underlying securities including
the Borrower’s guarantees and the Subsidiary is only one
of the guarantors for the loans. As a result, the directors
considered that no provision thereon is considered
necessary as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

However, as the legal proceedings are still in progress, we
are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess the likely outcome of the legal proceedings
in respect of the amount that the Group would recover
from the Borrower’s assets as determined by the court
and the amount ultimately to be recovered from the
Borrower in connection with the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, and to determine if any provision arising
from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 is necessary. As
a result, we are not able to ascertain the recoverability
of the Recoverable Amount due from the Borrower
and appropriateness of the provision respectively as
at 31 December 2014 and 2015. Audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 regarding the recoverability of the
Recoverable Amount due from the Borrower as at 31
December 2014 was also modified on this basis.

Any adjustments to the Recoverable Amount due from
the Borrower and any provision to be recognised as at 31
December 2014 and 2015 would have a consequential
impact on the Group’s net assets as at 31 December
2014 and 2015 and the Group’s financial performance for
the years then ended.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

Audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 regarding the
Group’s net loss for the year was modified due to the
auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to ascertain whether any losses in connection
with the Pledged and Guarantee Agreements entered into
in the year ended 31 December 2013 should have been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2013. Any losses for the
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements that should have been
made in the year ended 31 December 2013 would have
a consequential impact on the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Our opinion on the current
year’'s consolidated financial statements is also modified
because of the possible effects of the above matter on
the comparability of the Group’s financial performance for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(b)

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract

As set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, in addition to the agreements as mentioned
in the above paragraphs, the Subsidiary entered into a
guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement 3”)
with a PRC bank in 2014, providing guarantee to the
bank for a loan facility granted to its borrower. The bank
loan was in default in 2014 and the bank has taken
legal actions against the borrower and the guarantors
(including the Subsidiary) to recover the bank loan
balance and interest. A court order was issued to freeze
assets of the guarantors (including the Subsidiary) in
the amount of RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court
order, bank balance of the Subsidiary in the amount of
RMB54,128,000 and RMB54,758,000 had been frozen by
the bank as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 respectively.
The directors consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining losses from the guarantee is remote as it is
considered that the bank loan had sufficient underlying
securities and the Subsidiary is only one of the guarantors
for the bank loan. The directors believe that the frozen
bank balance as included in “Restricted bank balances
and short-term deposits” will be released upon the
conclusion of the legal proceedings and no provision
is considered necessary as at 31 December 2014 and
2015. In addition, the directors are of the opinion that
no provision on any shortfall between the amount to
be ultimately settled by the Group under the Guarantee
Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s frozen bank balance is
considered necessary as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(b)

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
(continued)

However, as the legal proceedings are still in progress, we
are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess the likely outcome of the legal proceedings,
and accordingly, we are unable to ascertain whether any
provision on the frozen bank balance of RMB54,758,000
as at 31 December 2015 and any shortfall between the
amount to be ultimately settled by the Group under the
Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s frozen bank
balance is required to be made as at 31 December 2015.
Any provisions that should have been made would have a
consequential impact on the Group’s net assets as at 31
December 2015 and the Group’s financial performance for
the year then ended.

Audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 regarding
any provision on the Subsidiary’s frozen balance of
RMB54,128,000 and the shortfall of RMB7,872,000
between the court order of RMB62,000,000 and the
Subsidiary’s frozen bank balance required to be made as
at 31 December 2014, and the consequential impact on
the Group’s financial performance for the year then ended
was also modified on this basis.
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the matters
described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 13 May
2015.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Siu Fung
Practising Certificate number P05308

Hong Kong, 5 April 2016
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& iRz

Year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F12 A31 H I FE

2015 2014

2015% 20144

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

et FAR® FARE

REVENUE PN 5 3,845,650 3,471,014

Cost of sales SHE R A (2,944,645) (2,729,438)

Gross profit EF 901,005 741,576

Other income and gains H A A R iz 5 66,143 64,449

Selling and distribution costs HEMRSHER (371,754) (386,785)

Administrative expenses EIRE A (369,916) (426,285)

Other expenses HinE A 6 (14,386) (18,878)
Impairment loss of other HEMER—RAF]

receivables due from a company FIBRRER K 7 - (285,360)
Finance costs W% E A 9 (5,567) (1,888)
Share of loss of associates FE(EE & N FEE (2,437) (1,416)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME #ATRIE ~(E#E)

TAX 8 203,088 (314,587)
Income tax expense FriSHiF > 12 (75,351) (13,481)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RERE (EE) 127,737 (328,068)
Attributable to: LATR & 75 FEAG -

Owners of the parent ISTNEIEFWN 13 55,759 (854,153)

Non-controlling interests JEIE | RE RS 71,978 26,085

127,737 (328,068)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BRRAEERERS

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HEEABRLEBR

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BR(F8)

PARENT

Basic HAR 15 RMB1.78 cents RMB(11.32) cents

AR¥1.78% AR®(11.32)%

Diluted e 15 RMB1.78 cents RMB(11.32) cents

AR¥1.789 ARE(11.32)%
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SHFEEIEZR

Year ended 31 December 2015 & 2201512 A31H L F/E

2015 2014
2015%F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARK
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RERE (EE) 127,737 (328,068)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hia2mEmUBA
Other comprehensive income to AIRNHEZEARER
be reclassified to profit or loss DEEBRRRN
in subsequent periods: Ef2mEmBA -
Exchange differences on translation BMEGINETEEAER
of foreign operations M 5 = =8 12,909 (848)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KEZEBAER
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 140,646 (328,916)
Attributable to: ARG -
Owners of the parent ISYNECIEFEDN 69,371 (355,001)
Non-controlling interests FEIZE Il M HE 71,275 26,085

140,646 (328,916)
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BHFIFIRR R

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Biat FARY FAREE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 16 738,143 802,244
Prepaid land lease payments FEft L fEE 17 48,758 54,647
Goodwill [EES 18 21,161 21,161
Other intangible assets HipmEEE 19 294,974 295,644
Investments in associates REEZ N BIKE 20 26,430 28,867
Deferred tax assets FIEFIHE B 21 51,567 63,491
Trade receivables with maturity HEHBE—FNES
more than one year FEUBR TR 23 13,856 31,095
Prepayments for purchase of BEME  BEMEEN
property, plant and equipment SELNEN 24 26,859 7,697
Total non-current assets ERBEIEESST 1,221,748 1,304,846
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories e 22 495,450 689,333
Trade and bills receivables B o5 N EEREIERR 23 1,189,914 1,218,824
Prepayments, deposits and TERAR - RES REM
other receivables FE U BR 38 24 344,778 342,140
Income tax recoverable AT FTISHL 7,998 =
Other current assets B REh&EE 25 16,515 34,369
Restricted bank balances and SRR EIHIRITAE R
short-term deposits SR-LVEEN 26 660,307 125,233
Cash and cash equivalents ReERESEEY 26 903,849 796,694
3,618,811 3,206,593
Assets of disposal group B ABAEFERN
classified as held for sale BB EERE 27 27,005 =
Total current assets REBEESS 3,645,816 3,206,593
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Trade and bills payables B 5 M EIREMNERR 28 611,498 598,055
Other payables and accruals Hibh e IE R ETER 29 483,032 383,758
Interest-bearing loans and STEERRER
borrowings 30 174,122 40,948
Government grants I8 T 8 By 31 2,034 2,137
Income tax payable JEBNPTISHR 38,381 18,828
1,309,067 1,043,726
Liabilities of disposal group o AREEREN
classified as held for sale REAEEAE 27 4,704 =
Total current liabilities REBESE 1,313,771 1,043,726
NET CURRENT ASSETS BARBEE 2,332,045 2,162,867
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT wEERRBAMG
LIABILITIES 3,553,793 3,467,713
continued/...
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it FARH FARE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Government grants I8 8 By 31 14,419 16,162
Deferred tax liabilities FELEHIEA R 21 83,345 85,952
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEEE 97,764 101,104
Net assets BEE 3,456,029 3,366,609
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BAREE AEGLER
the parent
Share capital R AN 32 2 2
Reserves e 34 3,290,695 3,247,460
Proposed final dividend RIS 14 26,210 -
3,316,907 3,247,462
Non-controlling interests FEfEFI MRS 139,122 119,147
Total equity mrER 3,456,029 3,366,609
WANG Donglei XIONG Jie
IFXE REfE
Director Director

EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHBEERER

Year ended 31 December & Z£2015F 12 A31HIEFE

2015 2014
201545 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHBREARE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before income tax Fial (E518) /7 H 203,088 (314,587)
Adjustments for: KUAT B IEFAE
Interest income FIE WA (18,487) (24,203)
Finance costs 7% % F 5,567 1,888
Share of loss of associates FE(EHEE R EEE 2,437 1,416
Loss on disposal of items of property, BREWE  WE NMEE
plant and equipment 15 B W Es e 5,567 3,286
Depreciation of items of property, ME - BELREEBITE
plant and equipment 104,533 115,243
Amortisation of prepaid land BETEAT L AR ER0E
lease payments 1,463 1,463
Amortisation of other intangible assets H A & A o 7,093 8,353
Impairment of property, plant Yz - BRE L& ERE
and equipment 1,975 1,399
Impairment of trade receivables, net B S EWGRIERE « 558 6,507 93,787
Impairment of prepayments and TEAT TR B A E U SR IR (B -
other receivables, net FEE 898 288,534
Write-down of inventories to WRFEEr 2R FEE
net realisable value 3,668 37,672
Impairment of other intangible assets HEEREERE - 3,391
Government grants released to BEESMHERRNBIT/HED
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (25,880) (15,130)
Unrealised exchange difference AEIRIE N =58 (882) 8,470
Equity-settled share option expense BEnEEERERS 74 252
297,621 211,234
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL (2 m) 186,296 (82,764)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 R EEERIRR
bills receivables (38 n) 22,134 (52,356)
Increase in prepayments and FEAST 3R B A 8 KU BR B2
other receivables (4,351) (549,136)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables HBE—FEHNE ZER
with maturity more than one year R (38h0) 17,239 (31,095)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets EfbimBI &R 4 (480) 17,854 (17,450)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 Kk E B FENRRIE M 14,048 89,986
Increase in other payables and accruals H b e BRI FEET B A E A0 103,039 78,123
Receipt of government grants L 1) T 465 By 25,044 16,934
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #2715 /(FTA) R& 678,924 (336,524)
Income tax paid ERAEH (52,611) (46,493)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESEERE (FTA)
operating activities BHEREBE 626,313 (383,017)
continued/...



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BR A= | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHETRER

Year ended 31 December &, 2201512 A31HILFE

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH FARE
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESTERE (iR RERE
operating activities 626,313 (383,017)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHMEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUF 8 18,487 23,269
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BEIREHEEH
property, plant and equipment FT1S 3K 7,468 23,888
Purchases of and prepayments made for BEEWE KENLEZEER X
items of property, plant and equipment SELNE (81,980) (77,515)
Additions to other intangible assets REH B L E (6,691) (5,637)
Increase in investments in associates NN ESEC =Yl = (23,520)
(Increase)/decrease in the restricted bank XBE%U HRATAE R SRR B R K
balances and short-term deposits (1hn) (535,074) 377,389
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTA) FEREFHE
investing activities (597,790) 317,874
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHAESRERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from non-controlling 3% i {4 i% 58 1% &
shareholders 7,500 9,307
Dividend paid to a non-controlling [ FEF5E 41 14 PR BRUR A AR B
shareholder (58,800) =
Dividends paid BIRAE = (74,665)
New bank loans LRI TIE 175,457 40,948
Repayment of bank loans BEIBRITENR (42,438) (30,000)
Interest paid B FE (5,567) (1,888)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEERE (FiA) REBHE
financing activities 76,152 (56,298)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HehREeFEY
cash equivalents i CRd) FE 104,675 (121,441)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREMNEEEEY
of year 796,694 918,905
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,  ER&B)E & %48
net 16,584 (770)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERALSEEY
AT END OF YEAR 917,953 796,694
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REeRBEEEYEBRIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances, unrestricted RE RIBITHER - DR 903,849 796,694
Cash and bank balances classified DEAERELNEEEDN
as assets held for sale He MIRTTAEER 14,104 -
917,953 796,694

147
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B 7% Y 5t

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

Corporate Information

NVC Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group”) was incorporated
in the territory of the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) as a limited liability company on
2 March 2006 and was redomiciled to the
Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s registered office
address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of lamps, luminaries, lighting
electronic products and related products.
Information on the Group’s subsidiaries is set
out in Note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
different from the Company’s functional
currency (United States dollars). These
consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB because management
considers that a substantial majority of the
Group’s transactions are denominated in
RMB and the Group primarily generates and
expends cash in RMB. Accordingly, RMB
presents more reliable and more relevant
information about the Group’s transactions.

TEEH

ETRBPERBER QA ([AQF] - BRE
MEBARGEIANEE])) B —KMN20064
SH2RERBHER RHEIMKINAER
BEERAA - R20103A30H + A1 A&
EHEHS KRFASHEEFE2ER
2k (1961 A0 = - & 0 RI1BF]) TH
BHREEREERAT - AAA] B AR
E @ik ACricketSquare, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands ° AR RN EBHE R
SFIBR AR ER LT °

ARREBRGREEER - MEBRRIMNE
PRGOREERBEEALR - KA BHE
2s M ABBAE an o ANEREIME QA A E R E R
FiaEat o

AMBBREUARS (ARK] 25 M
AARDEEBAET ([E]) -
BERAREMABRRHUAREHER
AEEEERFARSEBUAREHE -
WSS HH BRERAARE25] o Hilk -
ARBSSTEAEER S EMENTEE
¥ o



2.1

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B8 RAERAE | 2015 Annual Report F 1R m

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
and International Accounting Standards
and Standing Interpretations Committee
interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain
in effect and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial instruments that have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
('000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2015. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

2.1

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

BT

ZEAHYBRRTIIBIE BRI B HRE LR
(BB EREER]) AREB D BIEG R
BEERER - BRI SRS ENBIERR
S ENZES AN ERRRENBEERS
SEANRER S EAZE S AL DA
ERMERREZESRE - N %EEA
HEMEREREE (LHAR) ERNEE -
REHPBERRTVIZEL AL LR
BRARBEAENETERMIT AR - ZF
AEHPBRREHUARERY|  BRIEBHIE
B FTAHEHNEAAINRERLIN TN
(’000) °

SO EE

EHMBHRREBRAEERHEE2015F124
B1HIEFEMHBHRRK - MBRAREME
BROFEFERARBNREFEMER -
THRA—BHNEARK - WEBRRINWEER
SR B EUS B AR SR B BE ST AR G
BERA > BEEEZHIRERIEZAR/LE -
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.1

mBER (&)
BOIEE (&

MEBEBRAREME2mIEATRR
BEANEESRRER ANMIEE
Bl EREES - BIE S BRI B 1 4
SRR AERERER
AZRARZMEENEERNEE
MEE - #m - WA XHMER
TRENRA HEZEERH -

fief 5 B ANIE LR T X B A )
S BRI = IE R E =2
—HXZAKREE  AKEHE
EHFEERTEBIKKER
Al MBARMNMARERZSD
CEBREEDE)  BEERS
N

WA B R EEHB QR ZEH
o ARIEERO)ZHMBARZ
BE (BEXE) RBE - (iVEMA
FEVE M 25 2 BRE B (A K (i) 7
=N REtELEZ8E &
ROBBREZR2AEAE - (i)
FTR BB IR E 2 1A v BB Kiii)
REZEFEREMNELEEZ
FEsEA - WASEEEE L
EEHEERBE SRR EM
ZEBRABRZ ANEEELIHH
REREREEETDEEBZ
HBEFE (WEE) -
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

2.2 R #h B BR B 3% 3R &5 2 A
REBD TR

BT RIERTE

(@) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective (a)

1 January 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following new/revised IFRSs,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2015.

IFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle
IFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear.

BR B 75 3R & 2 Al — R
20151 B1BEM

RAFEAN AEEEH
REANTHASES G
B sk B k20154
1A1BRB 2 FEEHREA
W2 35T/ (S 5T B BR B
BmE%ER

BIREBRE 201062
EB (B3TA)  2012FEH
LEEY#
BRMERE 201152
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised IFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have

been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

IFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 27

IFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation'

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Amendments to IAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage
entities to use judgement in the application of IAS
1 when considering the layout and content of their
financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income
from equity accounted interests in associates and
joint ventures will be split between those items that
will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and
presented in aggregate as a single line item within
those two groups.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 -
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate
for intangible assets. This presumption can be
rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed
as a measure of revenue or revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.

IFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

2.2 X #h B BR B 3% 3R 5 2 A
REBDATKRG (&)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued (b) CHEMENERERAIH

but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(continued)

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at
FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in IAS 39
and new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from IAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
IFRS 9 retains the requirements in IAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain
or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the
joint venture or associate.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 -
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements
for an intermediate parent entity is available to
a subsidiary of an investment entity (including
investment entities that account for their
subsidiaries at fair value rather than consolidating
them). An investment entity parent will consolidate
a subsidiary only when the subsidiary is not itself an
investment entity and the subsidiary’s main purpose
is to provide services that relate to the investment
entity’s investment activities. A non-investment
entity applying the equity method to an associate or
joint venture that is an investment entity may retain
the fair value measurements that associate or joint
venture used for its subsidiaries. An investment
entity that prepares financial statements in which all
its subsidiaries are measured at fair value through
profit or loss should provide the disclosures related
to investment entities as required by IFRS 12.
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
IFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with
a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied
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2.2 Adoption of IFRSs and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

(b)

()

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

IFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the
current approach taken under IFRSs. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and
quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above standards and
amendments to existing standards to the Group.
The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
disclosure requirements relating to the
preparation of financial statements

The disclosure requirements of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the
preparation of financial statements apply to the
Company in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact
on the Group’s financial position or performance,
however the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts on the presentation
and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. For example, the statement of financial
position of the Company is now presented in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements
rather than as a primary statement and related
notes to the statement of financial position of the
Company are generally no longer presented.

(c)
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies. The considerations made in determining
significant influence are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associates, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

The results of the associates are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in the associates are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRSs. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.3 FEETHERME (&)

Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, assets held for sale, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

2.3
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(viiy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) ~ the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a party, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale,
it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy
for “Non-current assets held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

2.3 FEGHBRME (&)

BRIEERTIEI WX - BB A&
8 LA PR AN R 51 3 8 AR E
BRI - W—BWE  BER
REBEASRBAGEEELRR
BERELHEAR 2 &% - BIF
N EREL RIEERS RS
ERFESTAR - BRI [BERR
ERERBZHRBDEEI 2®
ARG EEE— M - ¥
X BEERBzZAABEER
BEREFEEEZESD A E MR
RAMMEERERE 2 BEREMN
DN

ME - BEMRBRAEFERE
EZRx Pl mRER
X —RREEHEBEEZRA
B o MITEERIRFEZBERT -
BERREZAXNEEREET
BEXRER—TREE - WWE &
EhRBZEZINADEERE
B AIAKEKZEBOERR
EBAREERFHZENEEL
MERERHEITE -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BR A= | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:
Buildings 18 to 40 years
3 to 5 years

3 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 8 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments
for acquiring rights to use land in the PRC for 46 to 50
years. Land use rights granted are recognised initially at
acquisition cost. Land use rights of the Group are held for
its own use. They are stated at cost, less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the period of the land use rights.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must
be available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets and its sale must be highly probable.

2.3 FEGHBRME (&)

M - MERRE (B)

ERIRERETZIET  BX
RREMBRERXIIE BT
FE KABREERERASR
BEEREZBBEABRSZENR
{EEERA o 1 FE Ak S A 48
B E2TIREFSIREEEZ
WE - BB EREERIT -

BENLES

BNt EEEETBAREERS
ABZES0F T 1 A 2 AR -
B R LinfE MENTSRER
PRANHERR - A8 2 T {E e
FEBR » AR ERIE#
MAEDRER K - #iHiRE
ROAELHEREZMRAER
mARIGH -

FEREZERBEERE
E4

fWERBEE R HERAZRE
BEEXREBEHEEXZMIEE B
BEAKD  ARKOBRFER
- BRNANBR  ZFEEEL
ARANBERTAZEIHE - &
EXHEZBREESL RN —R R
EBHMRFRARRIA R ZHERE A
BEZEK



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BR A= | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Change to a plan of sale

If an entity has classified an asset (or disposal group) as
held for sale, but the asset is not available for immediate
sale or the sale is not highly probable, the entity shall
cease to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held for
sale.

The entity shall measure a non-current asset that ceases
to be classified as held for sale (or ceases to be included
in a disposal group classified as held for sale) at the lower
of: a) its carrying amount before the asset (or disposal
group) was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have
been recognised had the asset (or disposal group) not
been classified as held for sale, and b) its recoverable
amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The entity shall include any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale in profit or loss from continuing
operations in the period in which the asset is not available
for immediate sale or the sale is not highly probable.
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Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life on the straight-line basis and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks

Trademarks are accounted for as intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and are not amortised. They are
stated at cost less any impairment provision.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment

losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful lives ranging from five to ten years.
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Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships are stated at cost
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives ranging from six months to five
years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project; and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products not exceeding five to ten years,
commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.

Patents

The patents were granted for a period of 10 years by the
relevant government agency with the option of renewal at
the end of this period. Patents are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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2.3 FEGHBRME (&)

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. The Group had no
financial leases during the current year or the prior year.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.3 FEETHERME (&)

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on the classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are
satisfied.

The Group has not designated any financial assets upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold then to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in other income and gains in the statement of profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

The Group had no held-to-maturity financial investments
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest
and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group had no available-for-sale financial investments
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

2.3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the statement
of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.3 FEGHBRME (&)

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank loans
and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.3 FEETHERME (&)

Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Group did not have any derivative financial
instruments as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred income tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value of the
non-monetary assets and released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer, usually on despatch
of the goods, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Royalty income

Royalties are recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair values of share options
are determined by management using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, or a binomial option pricing model, where
appropriate.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in the employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan for the PRC employees

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required
to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries of their
employees to the central pension scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the central pension
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions.
Contributions are charged to the statement of profit or
loss when they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of sales tax, except:

(@) where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of
assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable;
and

(b) receivables and payables that are stated with the
amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of share premium within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of United States Dollar (‘US$”). Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges
and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve, a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a subsidiary with a
functional currency other than RMB, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular
subsidiary is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain
subsidiaries, whose functional currencies are not RMB,
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of the Company and certain subsidiaries, whose
functional currencies are not RMB, which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, which
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

Corporate income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are set out in Note 21.

Recognition of a deferred tax liability for withholding taxes

The PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, which became
effective on 1 January 2008, states that the distribution of
dividends by a foreign-invested enterprise established in
the PRC to its foreign investors, from its earnings after 31
December 2007, shall be subject to withholding corporate
income taxes at a rate of 10%. The Group carefully
evaluates the necessity of dividend distribution of its PRC
subsidiaries out of profits earned after 31 December 2007
and makes decisions on such dividend distribution based
on the senior management’s judgement. Details are set
out in Note 21.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs
in Note 2.3. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets, discount
rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
Further details are set out in Note 19.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details are
given in Note 18.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly
in assessing (i) whether an event has occurred that may
affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumption to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using appropriate rates.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test significantly.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% Y 5t

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

T E G A E R MG
(%)

R RREN (&)
Bl

AEEEVEBFEEREBEL
BRE EF2HTEIKHE
MIREELEMHNEAEE- &
fAEHEREER - NEBEAMG
BHRSENBEMRRELENR
TRE WREEGENFTREX
Nt BEZERSRENHRE - 7F
BENPEHRRME8

HEHEE (BEEI) BiE

REETEEEGEBARESBE
BREERENBEATBELE
W ANEBZAEEDLHE - FRIZ
() BAEHRUEREEE
BENEHIFEEEBENZ
EEHEIEFEE: (VBEFREE
EELESBERREREREFE
TR MARREREREEN
BEF AR IERER MR ¢ R(ii)
REBSREEAMRANEGE
FTEBREREZERSRERA
EENEGEL RN - WEERE
BT i A LAR E R B K ERRE
(BRERESREBAAMTAIIRERR
BRERRE) BE  (EHBER
ATARBEFEERKEATE -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BR A= | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment provision for trade and other receivables

The provision policy for doubtful debts of the Group is
based on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and
ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of the customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required.

Recognition of share-based compensation costs

As further disclosed in Note 33, the Company has granted
share options to its employees. The directors have used
the Black Sholes Model or a binomial option pricing
model, where appropriate, to determine the total fair
value of the options granted, which is expensed over the
vesting period. Significant estimates, such as the risk-free
rate, dividend yield, expected volatility and expected life of
options, are required to be made by the directors as the
parameters for applying the option pricing model.

The grant of equity instruments might be conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, mainly including
the service period. Significant management judgement
is required to take into account the vesting conditions
and adjust the number of equity instruments included
in the measurement of share-based compensation
costs. Determining the number of equity instruments
that eventually vest requires management to make
assumptions regarding the profit forecast and likelihood of
successful initial public offering, and hence it is subject to
uncertainty.
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives for its
intangible assets based on their best estimate on the
expected future cash flows from the assets. The useful
lives of the Group’s trademarks were estimated to be
indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually and at other times
when such an indication exists. Further details are set out
in Note 19.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Luminaire products segment

Luminaire products represent a complete lighting
unit that consists of a lighting fixture, a lamp
(namely the light source such as a light bulb or
tube) and a lighting electronic device. The luminaire
products are sold as complete lighting units or
units without lamps and lighting electronics, based
on the need of end customers;

(b) Lamp products segment

Lamp products represent a range of light bulbs and
tubes for compact fluorescent lamps, high intensity
discharge (“HID”) lamps, fluorescent lamps,
halogen lamps and light emitting diode (“LED”)
lamps; and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Operating Segment Information (continued)
(c) Lighting electronic products segment

Lighting electronic products represent electronic
transformers, electronic and inductive ballasts for
fluorescent, LED and HID lamps, and HID ballast
boxes.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before income tax. The adjusted profit or
loss before income tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit or loss before income tax except that
interest income, finance costs, unallocated income and
gains as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Since total assets, liabilities and capital expenditures for
each reportable segment are not regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker, the directors are of
the opinion that the disclosure of such amounts is not
necessary.
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4.

Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REFTER (&)
2015
2015%
Lighting
Luminaire Lamp electronic
products products products  Consolidated
REAER *RER RPERER =i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY FARS FAR®
Segment revenue: AHBEBA
Sales to external customers HESNPRP 2,588,368 1,040,485 216,797 3,845,650
Intersegment sales DEREREE - 3,082 17,532 20,614
2,588,368 1,043,567 234,329 3,866,264
Reconciliation HIEE
Elimination of intersegment sales BN BEMEE (20,614)
Revenue WA 3,845,650
Segment results NBEE 671,651 187,808 42,207 901,666
Reconciliation FEEH
Elimination of intersegment results HEDHEAEE (661)
Interest income FlE WA 18,487
Unallocated income and gains AP B R Uezs 47,656
Corporate and other unallocated rEREERIERT
expenses (756,056)
Finance costs HBER (5,567)
Share of loss of associates B2 NRER (2,437)
Profit before income tax A0 203,088
Other segment information: Hitt oW EH .
Impairment loss/(reversal of B KRR RENTUEN
impairment loss) of trade RERX/(REBRX
receivables and prepayments, net &) E5E 6,497 1,136 (1,126) 6,507
Unallocated impairment loss of HEREER M EBERRB
other receivables associated with KRR E R IERE
head office and corporate assets Bk 898
Total impairment loss of trade EAREMERZENAR
and other receivables and BANFERERXS
prepayments 7,405
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REFTWER (&)

2015
2015%
Lighting
Luminaire Lamp electronic
products products products  Consolidated
REER kRER  RAEEER X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR®

Impairment loss of property, N BERREN

plant and equipment HEB% - 1,975 - 1,975
Write-down/(write-back) of Him/(BE) FEZ

inventories to net EREEFE

realisable value 4,015 (565) 218 3,668
Depreciation and amortisation BELITE 47,005 31,961 6,542 85,508
Unallocated depreciation and BARERROFEE

amortisation associated with BRNRDEMEREH

head office and corporate assets 21,581
Total depreciation and TEREHEASH

amortisation 113,089
Capital expenditure BAYH 45,496 12,066 1,307 58,869
Unallocated capital expenditure HERERENMEEE

associated with head office and BENAIREATH

corporate assets 10,640

Total capital expenditure* BAL HA 69,509
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4.

Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REFTER (&)
2014
20146
Lighting
Luminaire Lamp electronic
products products products Consolidated
ERER rEER  RAZEER abt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE TARE
Segment revenue: AHBEBA
Sales to external customers HENFRR 2,108,622 1,149,045 213,347 3,471,014
Intersegment sales DEREREE - 12,113 64,802 76,915
2,108,622 1,161,158 278,149 3,547,929
Reconciliation HIEE
Elimination of intersegment sales BN BEMEE (76,915)
Revenue WA 3,471,014
Segment results NBEE 503,553 197,787 43,726 745,066
Reconciliation FEEH
Elimination of intersegment results BEIFENEE (3,490)
Interest income FEKA 24,208
Unallocated income and gains KA EMA R M E 40,246
Corporate and other PEREBRIERT
unallocated expenses (1,117,308)
Finance costs HBER (1,888)
Share of loss of associates [EREEE A RS (1,416)
Loss before income tax HAIEE (314,587)
Other segment information: HitaHER
Impairment loss of trade receivables & 5 YR R FIER)
and prepayments HERX 87,782 5,426 978 94,186
Unallocated impairment loss of BERER R EBERRBA
other receivables associated with KB EMEWFE
head office and corporate assets RERK 288,135
Total impairment loss of trade and B 5 R £t WAL R
other receivables and BERRERERLET
prepayments 382,321
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REFTWER (&)

2014
20145
Lighting
Luminaire Lamp electronic
products products products Consolidated
KREM BEEDN  RATHED aff
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

TARK TARK TARK TARK

Impairment loss of property, NE BERRENRERL

plant and equipment - 1,399 - 1,399
Impairment loss of BYEENRESE
intangible assets - 3,391 - 3,391

Write-down of inventories to HAFEZ TR EE

net realisable value 10,652 26,635 385 37,672
Depreciation and amortisation FEREE 48,180 41,090 5,544 94,814
Unallocated depreciation and BERSEROSEE

amortisation associated with BHENADRMEEH

head office and corporate assets 30,245
Total depreciation and FERBHAH

amortisation 125,059
Capital expenditure BALH 28,930 9,915 3,863 42,708
Unallocated capital expenditure HERERNMEEE

associated with head office and BANADREARTH

corporate assets 29,757
Total capital expenditure* BALHAH 72,465

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BEXRTHBERNEYE - BE

plant and equipment and other intangible assets. HEREMELEE
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

AR =g

(a) SEBEFHRA

2015 2014

2015% 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARE TFARE

The PRC A 2,615,535 2,272,480
Other countries H AR 1,230,115 1,198,534
3,845,650 3,471,014

The revenue information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

ERBELENBRAER
TREFEMREHEID -

(b) FRBEE

2015 2014

2015%F 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY TFARE

The PRC M 1,105,098 1,184,750
Other countries H AR 51,227 56,605
1,156,325 1,241,355

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
deferred tax assets and financial assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB392,177,000 (2014: RMB388,621,000) was derived
from sales by the lamp products segment to a single
customer, including sales to an entity which is known to
be under common control with that customer.

LR AE AR
BRAEFENES LT
BIEEEHAEERS M
47 -

FREEEFHNER

FEREBRAHODARE
392,177,0007T (20145 : A B
#388,621,0007T) JyiE i YR E
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RHETEZTPXE 161

=5 [

Hig °



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED S+ 82K AR AT | 2015 Annual Report 3 [PAN

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA~ H A K W=
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WAEEEEMNBEGE &
after allowances for returns and trade discounts. HRREMITHIAFEE ©
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as WA~ B A R U &S # 9 HT a0
follows: T
2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt FARH T AR
Revenue LN
Sale of goods BEYHE 3,845,650 3,471,014
Other income Halg A
Government grants AT B (a) 25,880 15,130
Trademark licence fees [SIEEEIE- (b) 8,941 14,337
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 16,216 24,184
Other interest income HF S UA 2,271 19
Rental income s WA 3,454 1,934
Others Hith 5,229 7,529
61,991 63,133
Gains I
Gain on sale of scrap materials $4& EEE a9 3,270 1,316
Exchange gains, net P& 5 Wz 58 882 -
4,152 1,316

66,143 64,449
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA Hilt A & W&

(continued) (&)

Notes: Hiez -

(@) Various government grants have been received by (a) AEEFEKB AR B WIS
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as tax subsidies and TE T B E BT 3 58 &2
incentives for research and development activities and & K B BE B EE RE T S IR B IR
the expansion of production capacity of energy-saving fHBh BB o AR ER B
lamps. Government grants for which expenditure has B 48 B K B2 72 AR A A BT
not been undertaken and those associated with assets HEERE BRI R FER
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated RIEEW A (K1FE31) o
statement of financial position (Note 31).

(b) In the current year, the Group licensed the “NVC” (b) REE » REBFEREE
trademark to a limited number of related companies and MM AR RE=F A ARIER
a third party company at 1% to 3% of the sales amount (Bt ] Mk WWERZER
of these companies as trademark licence fees. Details of A EREM1%E3%IERRIZ
the related party transactions are set out in Note 42. A E - BB R SEIEERN

W g M E42 o
6. Other Expenses 6. HtEHR
2015 2014
20155 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Brat FARY FAR#
Modification loss of B 5 AR RV KRB
trade receivables 23 - 5,287
Loss on disposal of items REWE  BKE
of property, plant and RAEIEE MK
equipment 5,567 3,286
Exchange losses, net bE 5 B8 558 - 8,470
Others Hh 8,819 1,835
14,386 18,878
. . =\ =] £k
7. Impairment Loss of Other Receivables 7. HUEW-—XATRE

Due from a Company

The amount represented impairment loss of other
receivables due from a company. Further details are set
out in Notes 24 and 35(a).

OPEREESES

SREIEHMEK —KARRIER
REEK - E— SHFBIHRW T
24 K [f15E35(a) °
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Bl (BE), FHE

8. Profit/(Loss) Before Income Tax 8.

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

R/ (Gt A) AT RIEME

2015 2014
20155 2014%
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARK
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAK 2,940,977 2,691,766
Auditor’s remuneration A B 5,408 4,300
Depreciation hE 104,533 115,243
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments Sl kit 3 1,463 1,463
Amortisation of computer software, BRBE  BPBEREF R
customer relationships and patents* 4,717 3,054
Impairment of property, plant and equipment WE  BERRERE 1,975 1,399
Impairment of other intangible assets A @B EERE - 3,391
Impairment of trade receivables, net BoRWERURE « FE 6,507 93,787
Impairment of prepayments and BRFAREMEYIERE 58
other receivables, net 898 288,534
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value — H#iE/FE 2 7] 235 %& 3,668 37,672
Research and development costs: TBERA
Deferred expenditure amortised® BEHNELERY 2,376 5,299
Current year expenditure TEERX 59,634 50,521
Less: Government grants released** W EERBNRE (395) (467)
59,239 50,054
61,615 55,353
Minimum lease payments REBSHR 25,672 16,660
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BERIAEY (TEEEERER
directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration TRABHM) (H10)
(Note 10)):
Wages and salaries TEME ¢ 498,299 418,176
Equity-settled share option expense BRiERRER 74 252
Pension scheme contributions BRSE AR (REMEED)
(defined contribution scheme) 84,243 76,708
Other welfare expenses HEEFIAZ 29,786 20,812
612,402 515,948
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8. Profit/(Loss) Before Income Tax 8. B Al (& #8|) /X H

(continued) (42 )

* The amortisation of computer software, customer 2 REEBEH TEFBEEKR
relationships and patents and the amortisation of deferred =R e £ LA MR R A B AR AR
development costs for the year are included in “Cost of BHT At ER K [HEK
sales” and “Administrative expenses” respectively in the KR [EEER] -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* Various government grants have been received for setting o ERREET - BRE T
up research activities in Chongging City, Guangdong and LHFEEMITEE) - AT IFETRE
Zhejiang Province, the PRC, to support the development EmM&LEDE MR » E
of energy-saving products and LED products. The HILESZ BT o 2
government grants released have been deducted from B R AT #75 B 2 $0BR A6 B A 35 Ak
the research and development costs to which they relate. Ko BimAERENERA M
Government grants received for which related expenditure EERNBIFHEBETAS B
has not yet been undertaken are included in government AR BB B o £t B)
grants in the consolidated statement of financial position. S 4 B R ] R B 3R A g1 Bk
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies SAEEHE -
relating to these grants.

9. Finance Costs 9. MBEH
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBERITHAT
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
Interest on bank loans RITE A E 5,567 1,281
Other interest expenses HanF B - 607

5,567 1,888
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERBETHAESR
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BiE TR EEEQD TG
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and disclosure (55622F ) F£38315 (1&fl) &
requirements of section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies BEEZ SRR A RERFEE2GE
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the Ordinance) and the Companies (ESHESEEEE) CEAR) HE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) MAFEEERTTHRABH
Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation), is as follows: Ban T -
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Fees we 4,055 3,511
Other emoluments: Hil s -
Salaries, allowances and e EUREDMAZE
benefits in kind 5,764 3,807
Performance-related bonuses* B 2,484 2,054
Pension scheme contributions RIS R B 60 54
8,308 5,915
12,363 9,426
o Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled * AARETHITESERES
to bonus payments which are based on the profit for the BRI AR S B AR FF)E R EE R

year of the Group and their individual performance. RN ES -
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERERETHRAEF
Remuneration (continued) BN (42)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive REENTFBIIENITE
directors during the year were as follows: ERNEeLT
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FAR#
Mr. WEI Hongxiong® PR S AES 402 234
Mr. WANG Xuexian® FES S 402 234
Mr. WANG Jinsui2 F 8RpK ST 2 34 396
Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway FHBELE 402 396
Ms. WU Ling R+ 402 396
1,642 1,656
There were no other emoluments payable to the NEE I EE M E N
independent non-executive directors during the Y8 S IEH 1T = F B Fr B

year (2014: RMBNIil). (201445 : £&) -
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EERERETHAEF
Remuneration (continued) B (42)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive (b) HITES - kHITES
directors and the chief executive EREITHRAER
2015
20158
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total
¥ BZMR ERGE Bhe
wE  BUMAE  FERS BRERX  FEMR &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TARE  TAR®  TARE  TAR®  TARE  TAR®

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. WANG Donglei’ TRERSE 369 3,004 1,350 - - 4,723
Mr. WANG Dongming TAREE - 603 324 - - 927
Mr. XIAO Yu? HFLAS 402 1,034 270 - 42 1,748
Mr. XIONG Jie® RS 402 1,123 540 - 18 2,083
1,173 5,764 2,484 - 60 9,481
Non-executive directors: FEHTES :
Mr. WANG Donglei’ TAERLE 34 - - - - 34
Mr. LI Wel” FRELT 402 - - - - 402
Mr. LIN Ho-Ping, Brandon ~ ##1F 44 402 - - - - 402
Mr. ZHU Hai KEEE 402 - - - - 402
1,240 - - - - 1,240

2,413 5,764 2,484 - 60 10,721




NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ HRBA#ZRARAT | 2015 Annual Report F#§

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. EEREETHAEF

Remuneration (continued) B (4Z)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive (b) #=f §$ FHITES
directors and the chief executive EBETHRAE (&)
(continued)

2014
2014%
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
He 2R BB i
ik ENfls  XERe  BRERx  HEAR aat

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TARE  TARE  TARE  TAR®  TARE  TAR®

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. WANG Dongming TAREE - 1,064 204 - - 1,268
Mr. WU Changjiang* RETEE - 907 - - 27 934
Mr. XIAO Yu® HFRES 234 155 500 - - 889
Mr. XIONG Jie® RS ES 199 181 500 - - 880
Mr. MU Yu? BFEELS - 947 - - 27 974
433 3,254 1,204 - 54 4,945
Non-executive directors: FEHTES :
Mr. WANG Donglei’ TRERE 396 553 850 - - 1,799
Mr. LI Wef FREAT 234 - - - - 234
Mr. LIN Ho-Ping, Brandon ~ #f1 %4 396 - - - - 396
Mr. ZHU Hai KEEE 396 - - - - 396
1,422 Bl 850 = = 2,825

1,855 3,807 2,054 = 54 7,770
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive
directors and the chief executive
(continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.

During 2015 and 2014, the Company did not incur
any payment to any director for loss of office or as
an inducement to any director to join the Company.

i Mr. WANG Donglei was appointed as chief
executive officer on 8 August 2014 and was
re-designated from a non-executive director to an
executive director of the Company on 2 February
2015.

2 Mr. WANG Jinsui has resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 2
February 2015.

8 Mr. WEI Hongxiong and Mr. WANG Xuexian were
appointed as independent non-executive directors
of the Company on 29 May 2014.

4 Mr. WU Changjiang was removed as the chief
executive officer pursuant to a board minute on
8 August 2014. Mr. WU Changjiang was also
removed as the director of the Company on 29
August 2014 pursuant to an extraordinary general
meeting.

2 Mr. XIAO Yu was appointed as a non-executive
director on 29 May 2014 and was re-designated
as an executive director on 8 August 2014. Mr.
XIONG Jie was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 8 August 2014.

® Mr. MU Yu retired as executive director of the
Company on 29 May 2014.

’ Mr. LI Wei was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company on 29 May 2014.

10. &
)
(b)

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

ERBETRAEH
(&)
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11. Five Highest Paid Employees 11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors (2014: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 10 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2014:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

IvmREFMES

RFEE - Afis=sFHEERE
=EE (20145 - MUES) -
HEHEMFBEH N LlME10 - BE
TREENNTRARTRSITH
ABHER TN (20144F © =f1)
EayEENFMEBET

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFAREE TARE

Salaries, allowances and e RMREWHE
benefits in kind 3,712 3,360
Performance-related bonuses HEERS 674 704
Pension scheme contributions RIRE IR = 66
4,386 4,130

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

REFRERRTRARNER
HEEEMABNRATEE
A

Number of employees

EEZH
2015 2014
201545 20144
Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000,000/ 7T = =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L & 1,500,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000 7T - =
Over HK$2,000,000 852,000,000/ 7T 2 1
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Income Tax Expense

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal
entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which most of companies within the Group
are domiciled and operate. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax or United Kingdom (“UK”) corporate income tax
has been made as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong or the UK during the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: RMBNIl). Taxes on the corporate
income elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

12.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

FrEBis

REBAMB RN QR ARE
FIEEt R EMTEREEE
BEASBRIOFE - BEE
ANERBEEHMFAED - ARA
SEREZE2015F12 8318 IE&F
EWELEBNRRA ([REA]) E
EEMERT R - Bt &
BBENEH L EBRSEMERE
IR (20145F « ) o Efthih )5
WEEMEH DR ASEELLR
EEX (HRVEEER) RITHMH
KErHE o

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARME FARE
Group: RER :

Current — the PRC: BVER — AR
Charge for the year FARLTH 65,162 46,547
Over-provision in prior years ABTEE (H1R) (996) (2,355)
Deferred (Note 21) BRI (Bfat21) 11,185 (30,711)
Total tax charge for the year FRAMBELHEET 75,351 13,481
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Income Tax Expense (continued) 12.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit or

loss before income tax at the PRC statutory tax rate to

the tax expense is as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% Y 5t

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

FrEBixH (&)

{5 A P BLDA T8 7 3R 3 DA A A1
NEBZRERY  BHERX
ZHEMFAHBEENT ¢

2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
Profit/(loss) before income tax HEIAE S (EE) 203,088 (814,587)
Tax at the PRC statutory B BDATER R25% T E R FiE
tax rate of 25% 50,772 (78,525)
Lower tax rates enacted 75 BT il RE B R A 2R
by local authorities 8,149 39,623
Income not subject to tax BARTBA (492) -
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 8,337 7,055
Over-provision in prior years LARTFEBIR (996) (2,355)
Tax losses not recognised REERH T IEEE 1,036 7,951
Tax losses utilised from prior years  F| A LA R4 & /954 18 518 (1,165) -
Reversal of deferred tax assets 12 [2] LA B £F 5 RERR B IR AT
recognised in previous years St EE 8,110 -
Effect on opening deferred tax T = 8 ) T R )R S 0B 1 2 2
of change in tax rates = (11,662)
Effect of deductible temporary AERBIELENSEHREERN
differences which have not been AR EREEENTE
recognised as deferred tax assets 1,600 51,394
Income tax expense FRIES 75,351 13,481




12.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ B3R BR A= | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Tax Expense (continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries located in the PRC are
subject to enterprise income tax (“EIT”) at the statutory
tax rate of 25%.

Chongging NVC Lighting Co., Ltd. (“Chongging NVC”)
and NVC Lighting (China) Co., Ltd. (“NVC China”),
two subsidiaries located in the west of the PRC, were
recognised as western development enterprises by the
local tax authority and are entitled to the preferential tax
rate of 15% until 2020 according to a local tax policy on
western development issued in 2011.

Shanghai Arcata Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Arcata”),
a subsidiary located in Shanghai as a foreign-invested
enterprise was recognised as a high-tech enterprise by
the PRC tax authority and entitled a preferential tax rate
of 156% in 20183. Shanghai Arcata continued to enjoy a
preferential tax rate of 15% due to the review evaluation of
high-tech enterprise in 2014. Shanghai Arcata continued
to enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years
starting from year 2014 due to the review evaluation of
high-tech enterprises.

Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny Electron Co., Ltd. (“Sunny”)
was recognised as a high-tech enterprise by the PRC tax
authority and entitled a preferential tax rate of 15% for
three years starting from year 2011. Sunny continued to
enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years starting
from year 2014 due to the review evaluation of high-tech
enterprises.

Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting Electron Co., Ltd. (“Jiangshan
Phoebus”) was recognised as a high-tech enterprise by
the PRC tax authority and entitled a preferential tax rate
of 156% for three years starting from year 2012. Jiangshan
Phoebus continued to enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15%
for three years starting from year 2014 due to the review
evaluation of high-tech enterprises.

NVC Brazil is subject to EIT on its worldwide income
with a basic rate of 15% and increased by a surtax of
10% on annual taxable profits exceeding BRL240,000
(approximately US$117,000).

12.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

B (&

AR RN B Y T B A RIZR IR
25%H)ETE B R B R FTEH
(TREMRBRI) -

ERETRPABRAA ([EESE
T RELEA (PE) EREAQ
Al([ELHEE]) AMRANKF
BETEEHHE AR - EE S
HEERAAISHAELE KR
2011 EE LA B B R B A — I
FHBEBE  BHE2020F6 =8
15% BB E -

EEMRBEFERARF (L8
FIR1F1) A—RUR 8RN
RECENWERR - EEMR
SHPEBERERRAES TR
fir (> % - W R2013F Z %15%
MEBEHRE - FFMR1ER2014
FRESTHASHRMEE -
BEZZ15%MEEHE - L8
PR BEEEN G A ME
¥ R2O0UFEBE=ZFEHREZT
15% BB E o

T TIL=REFERAR ([=
K] wHh BB EEERERESH
R - YR2011F#£EF=F
ZXI5%MEBEHRE - ZREE
B HAEEMEMEZE - R2014
FHEZFHEZTI5%NERR

.

TILFEEETEREAAR AR ([T
JEEHT ) #h BB ISR TR A
= R ¥ 20124 #E &
= FZZ15%MEBEME « )T
FEMKEEN H AR
¥ RO0UFE=ZFEE=Z
15% KB EFEK o

ERELTEARERRKRAKRER
HEASBEMTERSEH - FF
JiE 5 % ) B 4B 38240,0008 71 &
25 @ (49117,000% JT) 78 1 N
10% B I ANA5 o
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13. Profits/(Loss) for the Year Attributable to 13. B R AIERA AEMLF
Owners of the Parent 8 (E8)
The consolidated profit or loss attributable to owners of HZE2015F12A31HIEFE -
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2015 included NRHEA ANERGE R EsEE
a loss of RMB38,986,000 (2014: RMB40,560,000) which B 5 A R #38,986,0007T )18 2K
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the (20144 : A K %40,560,0007T
Company. WER) MEARRFBHRED
{EfR -
14. Dividends 14. RE
2015 2014
2015% 2014%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARE
Proposed final dividend of BEREIRARE -
HK1 cent per ordinary share TR E @A B
(2014 Nil) (20144 : &) 26,210 -
Interim — Nil (2014: HK1 cent REARR B — &
per ordinary share) (2014%F : &%
T A L) - 24,860
26,210 24,860

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

AERRBERNARHAREBARE
B RITHRRBE NG LES
ARRBROALE - TTAMEE -
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Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit or loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit or loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings/(loss) per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
No adjustment had been made to the basic earnings/
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2015 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts presented.

15.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

BEAREREN (BB BERS
RERREBERESRA ARG
MAFEEMNBHBERREFER
TEVE BN FHRUKEE -

PN

EEERAERN () BREREB
RERARIEBRERER ARG
WAFENBNERAE  Ma
ST E B A A N R AR AR
FREFEETHRE (NFE
ERGREAEF (EE) RERY
AREEHE ) ARBHRERET
BRITEONIME RS TR
BELTBREAEEERKT LB
f% o & £2015F K2014F12A4
S1HILEFEBHRERITE ZER
EHME2YEAGRARN (F
B eRARBEYE  RIUE
HAZ2 2 EXGRATF (&
B) 2EELEERHE
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15. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable 15. BARIEERERESR
to Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent ANELEBRERN, (E
(continued) B) (&)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per EARNEEFRARN(BE) B
share are based on: FTERER
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH FARK
Profit/(loss): M (ER)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary (52BN EA & T BAREREA A
equity holders of the parent FEERFE S (EE) 55,759 (354,153)

Number of shares

R EE
2015 2014
2015 20144
’000 ‘000
T T
Shares R
Weighted average number of BEBBITHLERKR
ordinary shares in issue during I8
the year used in the basic AREEER
earnings/(loss) per share BREF % EE
calculation 3,128,448 3,128,448
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y% - BEKRE

Leasehold ~ Plantand Furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
g7 68 HEREH GAREE  HBER  ERIR aif
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TARY TARY TARY TARY TARY TARY TARY
31 December 2015 2015812A318
Cost; B
At 1 January 2015 20151 A1 472,5% 62,463 648,119 44,631 23,240 8,827 1,259,874
Additions AE 44 4,474 30,063 4,220 6,248 17,769 62,818
Transfers i 589 - 18,571 - - (19,160) -
Disposals kg 081) (10395  (20,799) (7,282 (2.942) (1,19 (4359
Reclassficationto assets held A B AR EEEAE
for sale (Note 27) (Hior) (12,987) - - (1) (155) - (13,143)
Exchange realignment MNERR 395 29 12 3 196 - 667
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12 4318 459,654 56,571 675,967 41,603 26,587 6,242 1,266,624
Accumulated depreciation: 2ihE:
At 1 January 2015 H2015%1 818 (638200 (51557 (303432 (23418 (14,004) - (456.231)
Charged for the year ERLE (13,768) (©12)  (70,729) (6,140) (4,771) - (104533)
Disposals RE 524 9,825 15,569 3,026 1,587 - 30,531
Reclassification to assets held ~ AEAKEHERE
for sale (Note 27) (Witor) 5,105 - - 1 155 - 5,261
Exchange realignment SMEFE (24) (24) (12) (32) (69) - (161)
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12A31H (71,983) (50,882) (358,603) (26,563) (17,102) - (525,133)
Impairment; A
At1 January 2015 #0151 518 - - (1,373) (26) £ . (1,399)
Charged for the year ERyi - - (1,965) - (10) - (1,975)
Disposals RE - - - 26 - - 26
At 31 December 2015 2015127314 - - (3,338) - (10) - (3,348)
Net carrying amount: HEEE:
At 31 December 2015 1201512314 387,671 5,689 314,026 15,040 9,475 6,242 738,143
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. ¥ - BEKRE (&

(continued)
Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor Construction in
Buildings  improvements machinery fixtures vehicles progress Total
BF kEE  HEREE  KAREE  A@Es  fEIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TARK TARE TARE TARK TARE TARE TARK
31 December 2014 R20145128318
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 A18 466,190 60,064 623,217 56,607 37,017 4436 1,247,631
Additions RE 6,469 3,635 21,714 6,875 869 27,239 66,328
Transfers R 2,840 1,910 13,075 - - (17,825) -
Disposals RE (105) (2,952) (9,837) (18,638) (14,655) (5,028) (61,210)
Exchange realignment MNERZ (2,800) (194) (77) (219) 9 - (3,275)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A318 472,594 62,463 648,119 44,631 28,240 8827 1,269,874
Accumulated depreciation: ESEIE
At 1 January 2014 201451 A1R (50,295) (39,867) (225,254) (29,201) (20,521) - (365,138)
Charged for the year ERZE (13637) (14049 (76429 (6,020) (5,114) - (115243
Disposals RE 24 2,057 (1,811) 11,676 11,630 - 23,776
Exchange realignment INEFE 88 102 56 127 1 - 374
At 31 December 2014 01412318 63820 (1557 (30343) (23418 (14,004) - (456231)
Impairment; WA
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1A1R - - (260) - - - (260)
Charged for the year FERTH - - (1373) (26) = - (1,399
Disposals RE - - 260 - - - 260
At 31 December 2014 00146128318 - - (1,379 26) - - (1,399)
Net carying amount; FREE :

At 31 December 2014 R2014E12A31H 408,774 10,906 343,314 21,187 9,236 8,827 802,244
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Property, Plant and Equipment 16.

(continued)

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB49,633,000 (Note 17) and certain
buildings included in property, plant and equipment
with aggregate carrying amount of RMB248,348,000
were pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.

As at 31 December 2014, no property, plant and
equipment was pledged.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

W% BERRHE ()

MR2015F12A31H ' BREEA R
A R #49 633,0007T H) 1 i 1 B
(17 MIREEa AR
#248,348,0007tHHE TEF (8
B - EFEREHE) RAEE
RETHBEREFHERBEE
REEBHEA -

R2014F12A31H @ BHEKEY
¥ BEREE -

Prepaid Land Lease Payments 17. BT #EE
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARK
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1A1BMERAEE 56,109 57,572
Charged to profit or loss BEm &Nk (1,463) (1,463)
Reclassification to assets held SERFEFEEE (Wit27)
for sale (Note 27) (5,013) -
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31 HMBEREE 49,633 56,109
Current portion included in STATER K - REBR R
prepayments, deposits and E b i Uk 5k I8 /Y 7 B 2610
other receivables (875) (1,462)
Non-current portion IEMENEB (D 48,758 54,647

The leasehold lands are situated in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB49,633,000 and certain
buildings included in property, plant and equipment with
aggregate carrying amount of RMB248,348,000 (Note
16) were pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.

As at 31 December 2014, no land use right was pledged.

HET A RHE -

MN2015%12A318 - B ™ &
& K A K #49,633,0007T /) =
HEREMEAEASEARKE
248,348,0007T (KfzE16) & T
EF (BEYE - EEREE) 5
AEERETFTHBEEEEFFHH
BEERZCHER -

R2014F12A31H @ EEE L
HoFE FAAE o
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18. Goodwill 18. A&
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1BKR12/831H
Cost AR 231,287 231,287
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE (210,126) (210,126)
Net carrying amount RMEFE 21,161 21,161
Impairment testing of goodwill B2 R RE R R

Except for the insignificant goodwill acquired from the
business combination of Huizhou Huixin Hardware Co.,
Ltd., goodwill acquired through business combinations
has been allocated to the following cash-generating units
for impairment testing:

Lighting electronic products cash-generating unit in
Shanghai Arcata

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the lighting
electronic products cash-generating unit in Shanghai
Arcata amounted to RMB7,369,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB7,369,000).

The recoverable amount of the lighting electronic products
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 20.8% (2014: 19.85%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
electronic products unit beyond the five-year period is 2%
(2014: 2%) which was the same as the long term average
growth rate of the lighting industry.

As at 31 December 2015, the value in use of the
cash-generating unit exceeded its carrying amount, and
hence the goodwill allocated to this cash-generating unit
was not regarded as impaired (2014: RMBNIl).

REEMNmEZASHRARA
AEXRAEHESHNEBEIERN
BB AEXREHMESHRD
BENETUATREELELIA
EITRERIR

LB B ERERBELE
HE(

MR2015F12831H 9k 7 £
B RERPERERREE
BN ERDEAARK
7,369,0007T (20144 : A R ¥
7,369,0007T) °

RPAERERReELEMDN
AEkeRIKESRERE
HENZAFHYBEEEL
MRS REEINFEREERN
AFTEET - BEARBEERENE
B B A7 28 R 220.8% (20144 ¢
10.85%) - I HEETBRAB E 28 &
mESEHENAFEHEZEN
ReRhERNEREE2% (2014
F:2%) HEBHITEMNRBRAF
193 R EHRR o

R2015F12A31H ' WEELE
VHERAEERBRALREE
B FIIREE HEMAEE
WAR BARBERAE (2014F A
REZT) -
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Goodwill (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Spot luminaries products cash-generating unit in
Chongqing NVC

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the spot
luminaries products cash-generating unit in Chongqing
NVC amounted to RMB10,999,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB10,999,000).

The recoverable amount of the spot luminaries products
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 20.14% (2014: 19.05%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
spot luminaries products unit beyond the five-year period
is zero (2014: zero) as the spot luminaries products
cash-generating unit has reached its full production
capacity.

As at 31 December 2015, the value in use of the
cash-generating unit exceeded its carrying amount, and
hence the goodwill allocated to this cash-generating unit
was not regarded as impaired (2014: RMBNIil).

18.

B 75 R MY ot

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

BENRENR (&)

EFFLRARERHEELHEN

R2015%F12H31H ' ok T &
BELtRAEERBRESELEMNA
PEREE A AKR10,999,000
7 (20144 : A K 10,999,000
JT) °

3 P8 EE 3R B H BB AL A A] (|1 UK
SHEOKESRERBIENE
T FHYEBEELRNIRERE
BRANERAEBENTEET - B
AREBEESREFEAINITREZ
20.14% (20144 : 19.05%) -
Rt REERBESEHENR
FHEZENRESREMNERE
2Z (20145 : T) - RAREE
EmBReENBNDESHER -

R2015F12A318 - MEEHE
MREAEEBBEEREDE
o B T ULIR € E H B AR 2
WAR B REERE (2014F = A
R¥EZIT) ©

231




232

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ BB IR SR AT | 2015 Annual Report F 1k

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% Y 5t

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

18.

Goodwill (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Decorative fluorescent luminaries products
cash-generating unit in Chongqing NVC

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to
the decorative fluorescent luminaries products
cash-generating unit in Chongging NVC amounted
to RMB2,133,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB2,133,000).

The recoverable amount of the decorative fluorescent
luminaries products cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 20.06% (2014: 19.52%).
extrapolate the cash flows of the decorative fluorescent

The growth rate used to

luminaries products unit beyond the five-year period is
zero (2014: zero) as the decorative fluorescent luminaries
products cash-generating unit has reached its full
production capacity.

As at 31 December 2015, the value in use of the
cash-generating unit exceeded its carrying amount, and
hence the goodwill allocated to this cash-generating unit
was not regarded as impaired (2014: RMBNIil).

18.

BENRENE (&)

EFFLHREBSRERHELTE
HE

20155128318 H IR F &
BETHERIFEERREE
HEVHNEERAEARARKE
2,133,000 (20144F : A R ¥
2,133,0007T) °

ERIREMRSELEMNA
EERIZEREERKESRE
BEEMENRAFHYHAEE
ﬁéﬁfﬁimi‘ﬁ Al fE R EEME

HEETFE- BARIR&nEEN8
B 37 IR X Ezo 06% (20144 :
10.52%) - FIRAHEET B S 2R E

RESELEMTFHBZEY
BemBHEREERT (2014
F:F) RARBEBRYEERR
StEHEMNEEESMER °

R2015%F 128318 - MEEHE
HEAEEBBEERE &
AR THREELBMNEE
WA BRBEERE (20145F : A
REEZT) -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ BB RER AR | 2015 Annual Report 3% PR

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

Goodwill (continued) 18. BE (&
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) BENRENS (&)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the SEEFIREEL BN HERNIE
cash-generating units are as follows: E{EWT
2015
2015%F
Decorative
Lighting Spot fluorescent
electronic  luminaries  luminaries
products products products Others Total
FREA ¥
BREM HREM XRER Hits CEl

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®  TAR® TARW® TAR®  TARW

Carrying amount EENEEE
of goodwill 7,369 10,999 2,133 660 21,161
2014
2014%F
Decorative
Lighting Spot  fluorescent
electronic luminaries luminaries
products products products Others Total
fRAA VB
BEREMm 78 7E XBEmM Hity A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TARE TARE TARE TARE
Carrying amount EENEEE

of goodwill 7,369 10,999 2,133 660 21,161
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18.

Goodwill (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of each cash-generating unit for 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before
income tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

Raw materials price inflation — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to raw materials price
inflation is the forecast prices indices during the budget
year for the countries from where raw materials are
sourced.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of lamp products, lighting electronic
products, spot luminaries products and decorative
fluorescent luminaries products, discount rates and
raw materials price inflation are consistent with external
information sources.

18.

BENRENE (&)

5 #2015 128318 K&2014%F
12A31BEREELEMEA
BERKARSE BREEBETH
BRENAREIRESRENA
MEEE/BLOT -

FRHEFFE —BENREEAE
MEMEBEENKBESEZZEA
FEZA—EFERSHFIE
ME - AEHARENRS R AH
MmISHFREMES °

I — AT IR R Z R AT
BE - TRIREBELNAER

oo o
AR

BMHERE LK —BEDEER
MRHERR DR EBENKERR
MERIRETRE FE R TERER
EH e

HHREMR RAERER &
BEmMMBBIRERNMISE
RETEZM/RERNER  TRE
N JRM FHE S Lk B 5N R B L 2R
IR e
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19. Other Intangible Assets 19. HttEEEE
Deferred
Computer ~ Customer development
Trademarks software relationships costs Patents Total
BE  BKEH  EFEE  RRAX Cill &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TARE  TAR®  TARE  TAR®  TARE  TAR®

31 December 2015 2015%12A31H

Cost: A
At 1 January 2015 201541 A1H 270,000 13,724 37,327 41,984 72,772 435,807
Additions NE - 1,817 - 3,681 1,193 6,691
Reclassification to assets PEAREGE

held for sale (Note 27) BE (Bi5to7) - (199) - - - (199)

Exchange realignment SNEFTE - (289) - - - (289)
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12 A31H 270,000 15,053 37,327 45,665 73,965 442,010

Accumulated amortisation: Bt

At 1 January 2015 #0151 A1 - (6,143)  (32,670)  (20510)  (61,554)  (120,877)
Charged for the year ERZH - (1,378) - (2,376) (3,339) (7,093)
Reclassification to assets PEARBESE

held for sale (Note 27) BE (fi#27) - 199 = = = 199
Exchange realignment MR - 21 - - - 21
At 31 December 2015 #2015512431 B - (7,301  (32,670)  (22,886) (64,893  (127,750)

Impairment: T

At 1 January 2015 and 1201561 418

31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H = - (4,657) (5,999) (8,630) (19,286)

Net carrying amount: AR -
At 31 December 2015 1201512431 270,000 1,152 - 16,780 442 294,974
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19. Other Intangible Assets (continued)

19. HETLEE (&)

Deferred
Computer Customer  development
Trademarks software  relationships costs Patents Total
AR Bl ZPBE  RERX E) ait
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAE% TAE% TAR% TAR% TARE TARE
31 December 2014 2014128318
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2014 120141 A18 270,000 11,228 37,327 39,659 71,964 430,178
Additions NE - 2,504 - 2,325 808 5,637
Disposals RE - 8 - - = tS)
At 31 December 2014 120145 12A318 270,000 13,724 37,327 41,984 12,772 435,807
Accumulated amortisation: KErEE
At 1 January 2014 20141418 - (4,910) (32,670) (15,211) (59,741) (112,532)
Charged for the year FRTH - (1,241) - (5,299) (1,813) (8,358)
Disposals RE - 8 - - - 8
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A318 - (6,143) (32,670) (20,510) (61,554) (120,877)
Impairment: RfE :
At 1 January 2014 201441 418 - - (4,657) (2,608) (8,630) (15,895)
Charged for the year FRZH] - - - (3,391) - (3,391)
At 31 December 2014 2014F12A318 - - (4,657) (5,999) (8,630) (19,286)
Net carrying amount: RRAERE
At 31 December 2014 12014F12A318 270,000 7,581 - 15,475 2,588 295,644

The useful lives of trademarks are estimated by senior
management to be indefinite as the trademarks are
renewable at insignificant cost at the option of the Group.
The trademarks are tested for impairment annually, and
no impairment provision was recorded as at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMBNIl).

SREEEGMTERERAFTHA
ER AAASBEEREEDZ
FRFH BRABEEREM - &
ZgFeEiTRENS - KR2015
F12R3 1B W ESES R ERE
(2014%F : ARBZIT) ©
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Other Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives have been allocated
to the following cash-generating unit for impairment
testing:

Lighting products cash-generating unit in Huizhou
NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huizhou NVC”)
and Chongqing NVC

The recoverable amount of the lighting products
cash-generating unit has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. Management adopted
a growth rate of 16% and royalty rate of 3% by reference
to past experience and external sources of information
(2014: a growth rate of 15.4% and royalty rate of 3%).
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 19.32% (2014: 18.45%). The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the lighting products unit
beyond the five-year period is 2% (2014: 2%) which was
the same as the long term average growth rate of the
lighting industry.

As at 31 December 2015, the value in use of the
cash-generating unit exceeded its carrying amount, and
hence the trademarks allocated to this cash-generating
unit were not regarded as impaired (2014: RMBNil).

19.

B 75 R MY ot

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

HiBLEE (&)

ERFHELEENRER
=S

ERFHARESKIED TR
SELBMETRERR

BEMELAERRBERAA ([E
MWEL ) REEFLHEHERE
EELHEN

PREAE MBS E L BAA A EU
SHIOBESREREIENE
FFRMKEEELNESRE
BRANFERBEMNGTEET B
BEL2RBACRHRMINGGE R
TR R FA16%H) 1 K K K3%H
BRI B R (20145 : 15.4%H) 1
RERIRHEFER) - BAR
REMEBAMNITIRELE19.32%
(20144 : 18.45%)  FB B #E
RAERRSELENRAFHM
ZENESRENERER2%
(20145 : 2%) - BHEREAITE
REFEREER -

R2015F12A318 - MEEHE
MREAEEBBEEREDE
P EREIZIR S E X B EIE
WAR B REERE (2014F = A
R¥EZIT) ©
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19.

Other Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives (continued)

Lighting products cash-generating unit in Huizhou
NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huizhou NVC?”)
and Chongqing NVC (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the lighting products cash-generating unit for 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake the
above impairment testing:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margin achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvement, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before income
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.
Growth rate estimate — Rate is based on published

industrial research.

Royalty rate — Rate is based on terms of agreements.

19.

HiwBLEE (&)

ERFHELEENRER
# (&)

EMELHAEBRRERALA ([E
MEL]) REEELIRHAERT
EELHEN (&)

s 201512 A31H &20144
12A31BRAEMBEEAENM
WEABEEREARRE BEE
HFT EaUR BRI R R TERBR 2R
EMANSEEREZNOT ¢

FHEFFE - BEDEHKETERE
MEHEBENKEEERERR
FRZA—EAFERENFHE
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20. Investments in Associates

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

RBEERNRRE

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY TARE

Share of net assets JEIEFEE 26,430 28,867

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable

BE QR BIT

Name business to the Group Principal activities
AEBEERM
ML 2 FrEEER
£5B o R % 3K dth B Bk FEER
Mianyang Leici Electronic PRC/ 35 Research and development,
Technology Co., Ltd. PRC production and sale of
(“Mianyang Leici”) magnetic electronic components,
lighting electronics and
photoelectric components
RS EMEFEERARA B, 35 HHE - EEMEEEHTHY -
([R5 EwE]) RAE T RAEITI
Huizhou Thorled-opto PRC/ 49  Research and development,
Co., Ltd. (“Huizhou Thor”) PRC production and sale of
light-emitting diode, emission
receiver tube, digital tube
packaging series products
BMEBALBREARAFA HE R 49 TE - EEMEER X _ERE

| EREE
(TEMERE])

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held

through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

BHEKE BRE
HERIIEm

AREBRZH S QB REESE
BARRNEZEMBARIEA -
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REBEQRRE (&)

TRINREBMNEBRBESEHR
& OF B 75 ¥ 2k B T (B S8 80 RO B 75

20. Investments in Associates (continued) 20.
The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of Huizhou Thor and Mianyang Leici

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements:

31 December 2015

BRE

Huizhou Thor

Mianyang Leici

2015%F12A31H ENEE wRES B
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Current assets BB E 47,179 36,538
Non-current assets, FERBEE (TEERE)
excluding goodwill 35,836 12,026
Goodwill on acquisition g3 WNIES S
of the associate 850 =
Current liabilities mENaE (39,716) (35,407)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE = (691)
Net assets FEE 44,149 12,466
Net assets, excluding goodwill FHEE TeERE 43,299 12,466
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANEBRAE#ER 2L 49% 35%
Group’s share of net assets REBERLBERRFEE
of the associate, TEiEEE
excluding goodwill 21,217 4,363
Goodwill on acquisition U B Bt v ) P
of the associate 850 -
Carrying amount of the investment R &RHE(E 22,067 4,363
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20. Investments in Associates (continued) 20. REEENTIRE (&)
31 December 2014 Huizhou Thor Mianyang Leici
201412 831H HINE B #3155 B ik
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE

Current assets R EE 50,773 39,749
Non-current assets, ERBEE (TRERSE)

excluding goodwill 30,966 12,924
Goodwill on acquisition W R B & N A R

of the associate 850 -
Current liabilities mEAaE (38,436) (32,661)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE = (585)
Net assets REE 44,153 19,427
Net assets, excluding goodwill FEE T REEE 43,303 19,427
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZN&E AT 9t 49% 35%
Group’s share of net assets REERGHMERRIFEE -

of the associate, TEEEE

excluding goodwill 21,218 6,799
Goodwill on acquisition Chgi NS

of the associate 850 =

Carrying amount of the investment & & BREE 22,068 6,799
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20. Investments in Associates (continued)

20. REt&ENRRE (&)

2015 Huizhou Thor Mianyang Leici

20155 EMERE w5 B

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARYE FARK

Revenues PN 48,675 51,985

Loss for the year NEEFEEBE 2 (6,961)
Total comprehensive income AFEEE2EBPASET

for the year (2) (6,961)

2014 Huizhou Thor Mianyang Leici

20144 BMNEB w5 B

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARE FARK

Revenues A 38,172 50,125

(Loss)/profit for the year RFEE (BEB)/F)H (2,964) 103
Total comprehensive income AEEEERKRAEE

for the year (2,964) 1083
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Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
as follows:

Deferred tax assets

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

21. EIERIIE

BEERBREENBBEESHWT :

BEBEEE
2015
20154
Fair value
adjustments

arising from Deductible
business temporary

combinations  differences Total
hESH
SIZAR GIEit:
BEERAE ERER ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TAR®

At 1 January 2015 720151 18
Deferred tax charged FAMBAHERREN
to the consolidated EIEFETB (faE12)

statement of profit or
loss during the year (Note 12)

At 31 December 2015 MR2015F 12 HA31H

219 63,272 63,491
- (11,924) (11,924)
219 51,348 51,567
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21.

Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

21. EZEHE (&)

EEREEE (2)
2014
20144
Fair value

adjustments

arising from Deductible
business temporary
combinations differences Total
hEEH
SIBZ AR AIHARE
BEFAR TRER A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE
At 1 January 2014 20141 H18 300 41,022 41,322
Deferred tax (charged)/ FA (08) FA
credited to the consolidated S ERRELERIE
statement of profit or loss (Kiat12)
during the year (Note 12) (81) 22,250 22,169
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H 219 63,272 63,491

The Group has accumulated tax losses of RMB4,901,000
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB29,884,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the company in which the losses arose.
In addition, the Group has accumulated tax losses
of RMB44,435,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB41,901,000), which will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against taxable future profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the losses arising from the subsidiaries as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available in
the foreseeable future against which the accumulated tax
losses can be utilised.

R2015F12A31H » AEBEMHR
SFHIEEE A A K 4,901,000
7T (20144 : A K #29,884,000
JT) - AIEMREAK IR S E LR
NAIHRRERTAE o o -
& B R2015F12A31H W &
IR EE B AR 44,435,000
7t (20144 : A K #41,901,000
70) * AR —ERF R AR K E
AR o

HRTRASRABEILRKZER
=t 50 T8 B 18 AT LA R 8 AR A AR R
B MEHARZENBRAREL
M EIRFERRLER IR EE °
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21. Deferred Tax (continued) 21. EZEHIE (55)
Deferred tax liabilities EESEEE
2015
20154
Fair value Taxable

adjustments temporary
arising from differences
business  arising from

combinations relocation Total
TEESH WMEEED
SIZAR GIEit: S

BEERAE ERER ast

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TAR®

At 1 January 2015 720151 18 75,520 10,432 85,952
Deferred tax credited to FERNFAEHEREDN

the consolidated statement EIEFETB (ffaE12)

of profit or loss during the

year (Note 12) (582) (157) (739)
Reclassification to liabilities DB EEE

held for sale (Note 27) af& (Wate7) (1,868) - (1,868)

At 31 December 2015 2015512 H31H 73,070 10,275 83,345
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21.

Deferred Tax (continued)

21. EZEHE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EEBIBEE (&)
2014
20144
Fair value Taxable
adjustments temporary
arising from differences
business  arising from
combinations relocation Total
BEEH  REEED
SIBZ AR AT
BEFAE TRERE BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE FARE
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1 A1 H 76,397 18,097 94,494
Deferred tax credited to FERNFASFEERD
the consolidated statement BIETRIE (fat12)
of profit or loss during the
year (Note 12) (877) (7,665) (8,542)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H 75,520 10,432 85,952

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 10% for the unremitted
profits of PRC subsidiaries. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

BREBE(PBESEMEEE) - BUT
HERBEKZWINEREDER
HNEIIRE B E IR A AR B EU10%
BITEHORL o % #RE B 200841 A1
B #E A S @ 2007412 A 31
BZ&FFAT o i EEINEg
BEEMANERER S T BB
- AERRBEMNTENH X -
RAEEMS - FEMER A
RELFBEOEATEZ10% o
EHit - "EEERBENESEH
B S BT B A Bl 52 JK20084F 1 A 1
A2 &EAFHNRERTIE
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Deferred Tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB195,650,000 (2014:
RMB185,644,000) in respect of temporary differences
relating to the unremitted profits of subsidiaries amounting
to RMB1,956,496,000 (2014: RMB1,856,444,000), that
would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

21.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

ELEBIR (&)
EEBIRAE (F)

201512 318 @ AN & B &
RIERB AW B R R ARE L FE
A B #1,956,496,0007T (2014
& AR¥1,856,444,0007T) K
EREZHENELEHBEEEARK
195,650,0007T (20144 : A K
#:185,644,0007T) ° Z I EEL BB
FREELRETSMN  ARA
NEEH ZEH B QAR R B
RRZEFBER LATE R AR 2K
TR °

R ) 1) B BOR 32 B B 3 AN Bt
SEAMEHREE

Inventories 22. 7E
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH TFARE
Raw materials B 71,451 120,506
Work in progress eS0T 21,883 16,955
Finished goods K& 402,116 551,872
495,450 689,333

The write-down of inventories recognised as an expense
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB3,668,000 (2014: RMB37,672,000), which was
recorded in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

B ZE2015F12A31HILFEHER
ARTNGEERENSEAAR
#3,668,0007T (2014F : A R
¥37,672,0007T) © E R A HF B
R A [HERA] -
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

23. Trade and Bills Receivables

23. ESZREBEEWRM

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY TAR®

Trade receivables =) 5N 1,135,749 1,213,930

Impairment B (118,992) (112,485)

Trade receivables, net B o EWRERR - F5E 1,016,757 1,101,445

Bills receivable S Y G 187,013 148,474

Less: A

Trade receivables with maturity BiE—FEIH

more than one year* 5 AR K (13,856) (31,095)

Current portion mENER1D 1,189,914 1,218,824

The amount represented trade receivables due from a
customer which was expected to be repaid beyond 12
months from 31 December 2015. In addition, the net
amount of RMB21,358,000 (2014: RMB19,190,000) due
from the customer, net of impairment, was recorded
as current as at 31 December 2015. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, an amount of RMB5,287,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss due to the modification of terms of such trade
receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over the trade receivable
balances.

ZeBERR—B2EFNES
FE U BR 3k 0 TE HA R20154F12
A31H #12(8 B & B & - Itk
Sh MBRER BRZAER
FrRFEAARY21,358T T
(2014%F : AR#¥19,190F JT)
M4 %2 R2015%F12 31875
RAETRENE D o RELE20144F
12A31BLEFE AR%ER
SREWERZNIERIER AR
#5287 F LM BEE R A H18
HRER  AEBLKRRE S
JE UL BR S 4 8435 B (R 3K 1R 5k
HA S EIGAR
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Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds
receivable from sale of goods. The Group’s trading
terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for
new customers where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit periods generally range from 30 to
180 days for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balance. Overdue
interests of several trade receivables are calculated at
12%.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

23. ESREBEWERR

(&)

AEEMNBESEBERIEREE
mIHENEKMERIE - ~&E
HEFPy7AFEABERARS
BFREF—MEERAEMN - £
ERFME AR —MRNRI0K
180K T E - BUXFERFY
RER=EARE - AEEZK
WHEKRGE BRI IEEF BB
% WE B — (= 6 ER LA
BEARKRRERE SRER
ANETHEZEHEH - ERX L
MIERRAEEE 5 R R
RENHEFER  ERERK
EHEITE -  AEBWERE
B S REBEFIFEEMETRRK
EEEMEAMEERE  BETE
SRR FIZ12% -+ E R EF & -

)

=
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23. Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

23. ESREBEWERN
(#&)

TRFIIRAREFERESE
WHRFR BRI DT ERXZHEH

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the transaction date and

net of provision, is as follows: MINBREEHEE -
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH® FARE
Within 3 months 3MEALAA 639,615 498,348
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 235,337 354,420
7 to 12 months 721218 H 59,798 198,959
1 to 2 years 15224 68,990 45,144
Over 2 years 2FPA 13,017 4,574
1,016,757 1,101,445

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

B RUERFORERENE SN

B

2015 2014

2015% 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARYE FARE

At 1 January w1 H1H8 112,485 18,847
Impairment losses recognised BERRERE (#1i78)

(Note 8) 17,358 94,930
Reversal of impairment loss SRR B BB LD

previously recognised (Note 8) (H1:28) (10,851) (1,143)

Amount written off as uncollectible ¥/~ 8] [@ Y R IB i 35 50 & 58 = (62)

Exchange realignment HNGEE 3 2 = (87)

At 31 December W12H31H 118,992 112,485
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Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of RMB118,992,000 (2014:
RMB94,930,000) with a carrying amount before provision
of RMB192,563,000 (2014: RMB113,150,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in
default in interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recoverable.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

23. ESREBEWERR

(&)

FRESEUBERRERE
BREMEBEEINEONEARE
192,563,0007C (20144 : A K
#113,150,0007T) Ay & Bl & (&
BoRBERMEEN AR
RMB118,992,0007T (20144 :
AR#94,930,0007T) HBEAE o

% S IR E Y B 5 e U AR 5K
BAERBRBSERFER, %
rENFNEFAR BHES
BB 1D UL AR SR AT T U@ o

A R4 AR A {5l 3% KRR E # &
SERBRIRNRE DT

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARH FAREK

Neither past due nor impaired AR AR E 577,998 1,065,659
Less than 2 months past due BT R 2{E B 216,700 11,430
2 to 6 months past due BHA2 = 61E B 121,561 23,429
7 to 12 months past due BEITE 128 A 86,516 927
Over 1 year past due BHEA1E LA | 13,982 _

1,016,757 1,101,445
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23.

Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts
due from related parties of RMB523,000 (2014:
RMB37,589,000) which are repayable on similar credit
terms to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2015, certain trade receivables of UK
NVC with carrying amounts of RMB22,153,000 (2014:
RMB40,948,000) were pledged to secure the bank
borrowings of UK NVC as further set out in Note 30.

The maturity of the bills receivable of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and 2015 is within 6 months.

As at 31 December 2015, no bills receivable is due from
related parties.

23. ESREBEWERR

(&)

7R 780 HA 70 AR Rl 18 A B W R IR T B
MY EEZOCENZREPE
7 -

E 281 BB R OB 18 /Y 8 W KR T B
EREBARIFEFAELENZ S
BUEPEW BRNEEREY
BHRBARE  BREBAESRD
RS 2O - FtRES
TR ARREERRELE
FLRZ FRERRIE LB E R

EWEBALTZREARR
523,0007C (2014F : A R ¥&
37,589,0007T) st ARE B E 5
BUWERER - ZERENEREE
BHERERAASENIERP
HE °

R2015%F 128318 @ EREE LT/
ETESRKEREREARE
22,153,0007C (2014%F : AR ¥
40,948,0007T) B & 1E B K E
BLIRITERNER  #E—PF
EE R HIFES0 ©

R2014F 2015512 A31H » K
EB R EEEWEER6ME A AR
5y o

M2015FE12A31 1 » EpElAE
BALTEZEERR -
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Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, included in the Group’s bill
receivables are amounts due from the related parties of
RMB10,000 which are repayable on similar credit terms to
those offered to the major customers of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, except for the trade receivables
with maturity over one year mentioned above, the fair
value of trade and bills receivables approximates to their
carrying amount largely due to their short-term maturity.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables

23.

24,

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

ESREBEWRERR
(4 )

R2014F12A31H » EWAERA
+ A A R#10,000705F AR E
ERBEKER  ZERENE
REERERERAEASENE
ERPEE

R2015%F12 4318 » Br £t 2 &1
HBBE—FHNEKEZERENR  BH
MEBERUBERN AR EBEER
FEEEEE  EXE2HESN
MEEA o

AR - REEREAM
FE U =R I8

2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it FAR® FARE
Non-current assets: IERBEE :
Prepayments for purchase of BEWE - MENM
property, plant and equipment RAETEN 1B 26,859 7,697
Current assets: MBNEEE
Prepayments TERTK @) 52,334 49,578
Impairment T E (a) (23,119) (23,119)
29,215 26,459
Deposits and other receivables  {R& 4 K& E fth fE W k18 (b) 604,663 603,883
Impairment A (b) (289,100) (288,202)
315,563 315,681

344,778 342,140
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24. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 24, AR - REESRHEM
Receivables (continued) FEWFRIE (&)
Notes: Hiat -
(a) Prepayments (a) SELNE-N
The breakdown of prepayments is as follows: TE BRI T -
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARKE
Prepaid land lease payments B A E — REEH
— current portion 875 1,462
Prepayments to third parties BTE=FTHENRK 51,459 48,116
52,334 49,578
Impairment VERIE] (23,119) (23,119)
Prepayments, net T ROFRE 29,215 26,459
The impairment mainly related to an amount due from REE E R A ' ENGK
an entity over which a close family member of Mr. WU B (ARRARRIEERATEFEH
Changjiang, a former director and former chief executive TERRIEEN—ROFE
officer of the Company, has significant influence. HRBEREREAZEN) B
7 o
The movements in provision for impairment of BNFRERENESNT :

prepayments are as follows:

2015 2014

2015%F 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FARY

At 1 January ®1A1H 23,119 22,720
Impairment losses recognised BERRMEEE (f1:78)

(Note 8) - 399
At 31 December ®12A31H 23,119 23,119
As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of prepayments R2015F12A31H - AR E
approximates to their carrying amount largely due to their EMEEFER - BARHALE

short-term maturity. BEEERmENERSE -
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Prepayments,
Receivables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Deposits and Other

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

24,

(b) Deposits and other receivables (o) R e R E A B
The breakdown of deposits and other receivables is as {R7E & N £ b FE U TR I8 R BR 48
follows: PN
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat FAR® FARE
Other receivables due from a HEEl—RABIHIE (i)
company 550,924 550,924
Deposits and receivables from REE=ZFHREFE R (i)
third parties FE U BR FX 38,519 36,185
Due from individuals FEUE B A £ B FRIE 6,781 4,844
Due from other related parties R LS L b B Bt A - 3KIE (i) 8,439 11,930
604,663 603,883
Impairment B (i) (289,100) (288,202)
Deposits and other receivables, net  {R& % & H i jE Ui 18
R 315,563 315,681
The movements in provision for impairment of other EMERGIERERE 2 EH)
receivables are as follows: T
2015 2014
2015%F 20144F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAREKE
At 1 January R1A1H 288,202 67
Impairment losses recognised, net BRI EEE (A:28)
(Note 8) 965 288,135
Reversal of impairment loss 0] AR HE R AR (B BT 18
previously recognised (Note 8) (H178) (67) -
At 31 December ®12831H 289,100 288,202

255




256

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ FREFZEIREIRAF | 2015 Annual Report &3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% MY ot

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

24,

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

24, AR

- RE TR HA

FEWRRIE (&)

Wit - (%)

(b) Deposits and other receivables (continued) (b) RES RHEAMEWGRIE (&)
(i) As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the balance 0 R2014%F 2015512
mainly represented amounts due from a company A31B ' #H%E E
arising from the rights held by the Group pursuant REBBRE —KAQA
to several letters of counter guarantee issued by (MBRTERNE
the company which was also one of the borrowers FAN) BHAOHEEH K
of the bank loans. The directors were of the ERHFFE RS M
opinion that an amount of RMB550,924,000 EERER—KAQ A
(2014: RMB550,924,000) was expected to RBE -EEREEB
be recoverable through the enforcement of AT R PE R T8 HR AT UL
counter guarantees. The unrecoverable amount 5] A R#550,924,000
of RMB285,360,000 has been provided for 7T (20144F « AR ¥
impairment as at 31 December 2014 and 2015. 550,924,000) * 72014
Further details are set out in Note 35(a). F &2015%F12A31H
FHRMEN A E
%8 A\ R #285,360,000
JC o & 15 # R M
35(a) °
(ii) The deposits and receivables from third parties (ii) REE=ZTHRES
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no K FE W BR 3035 A i
fixed terms of repayment. W 2B REETEER
SRER o
(iif) The amounts due from other related parties (as (iii) P AT EC A A B A = (5
defined in Note 42) consist of the following: & R MisE42) HER
FEATEIE
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FAREK
An entity with significant influence HAEEBREERTENN
over the Group —RERE 8,229 8,237
An associate of the Group and a —RAEBE RS AT &
subsidiary of the entity with HASBEHEAEEATEN
significant influence over the Group KB EH—XHB A7 210 3,693
8,439 11,930
20144 %2015 12 A 31

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the fair value of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate
to their carrying amount largely due to their short-term
maturity.

B \REErEER - BN
R RAE & M UG IR R
AV RS RPN R

4

ifs

o
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25. Other current assets 25. HihREBEE
The balances represented PRC value-added tax % % & E 5 20155 20144
recoverable as at 31 December 2014 and 2015. 12 H31H #) A &R T AP B 12 (F
i o
26. Restricted bank balances and short-term 26. 2R %J\ THSBERER
deposits and cash and cash equivalents 7{7—,\ HEeREESEE
2015 2014
20156 20144F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt FTARY FARE
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTE R 807,711 850,822
Time deposits EHER
Non-pledged time deposits EIRITE TR 516,327 5,077
Pledged time deposits: FNIE=SET 0 E ki
EMER:
— for bank loans = fﬁﬁféf?fi (i) 202,850 54,100
— for letter of guarantee (‘L/G”) — PR ([HER D) (i) 20,258 10,428
— for assets preservation - BERZE (i) 26,501 1,500
— for other purposes — Hin iz 4,613 -
1,578,260 921,927
Less: A
Restricted bank balance IR HISRIT 4 BR 35(b)(i) (54,758) (64,128)
Pledged time deposits BEBEBRETR (254,222) (66,028)
Non-pledged time deposits KRR R H HEE
with original maturity over = 1A A ) 4R E Bl R
three months when acquired (351,327) (5,077)
(660,307) (125,233)
Less: e
Reclassified to assets BAEZEEHEEE 27
held for sale (14,104) -
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRReEEBY 903,849 796,694
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26.

Restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents
(continued)

Notes:

(i) In accordance with agreements of deposits, the deposits
were pledged to certain banks to secure bank loans of
subsidiaries of the Group.

(i) In accordance with several letters of guarantee, the
deposits were pledged for issuing L/G.

(iii) The amount represented the deposits pledged for the
Group’s applications of assets preservation in certain PRC
legal proceedings.

At the end of the reporting period, the restricted bank
balances and short-term deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB1,341,248,000 (2014: RMB847,162,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three and twelve months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earned interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. Pledged deposits are made to secure
bank loans of the Group and certain PRC companies,
issue L/G to fulfil contractual obligations at the requests
of customers and apply assets preservation.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair values of cash and bank
balances and time deposits approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to their short-term maturity.

26.

(i) BREFRDHE  FREERT
BRBITIERASEMER A
RITEROER -

(ii) RIBREEEREK - TREEH
LAZE R EK o

(i) ZEEEAEEENETHEHR
FERFPEBFEERE2ME
HEFER -

REAREFER  AEBUAR
BESTE R 2 PR ISR 17 45 84 2 52 B
FREBEERESSEDEAR
#1,341,248,0007T (20144 :
A R #847,162,0007T) © A B
AT ERERAEMERE - A
i AR B K P /Y CHNEE 3B
GO & CHEE - EERMNEEE
RE)  ARBREBBERER
ITHMEEFBHRITHEARKE iR
BHEMEE o

RITFRERT B RITF R =
RIZBHEET B o FHF R H
RIBBEARENEERSFTRN
RIF12EATE - HEBEBHRE
HAITF N RET B o IRITHABRKE
HATF SR &80 A0 BR B 0 AR 85 Y
AERT - BRFREHAEEH
REFHBERGHRITERRIR
EPERBETEABZARITEN
EBMELNEREAFEER
% o

R2015F12A31H + mREEE
EFER R RBITEBRARTE
HEXN AR EBEEARTEBEKR
BiEE -
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Assets and liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with
a third party in connection with the disposal of its entire
equity interest in Zhangpu Phoebus Lighting Co., Ltd., the
then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Subject to the approval from the local government
authorities, the directors of the Company expects the
disposal will be completed in 2016. Accordingly, the

27.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

B AEAERENLE
BEVEERERHAE

FAAEEEFE=FHHEE

HIEEHRAERLAB (BERKA
RAFEEBEREENMNBLARF)
2 EARANRT S — R % o AR A

E=RAAWEARN20165F 7T
HAFEHNB A EEBIE - B
- THEBZMBARNEE

following major classes of assets and liabilities relating to BRIEERBBERA MBI
the subsidiary have been classified as held for sale in the MNERNE D AEEFEEENE
consolidated statement of financial position. & o
Notes RMB’000
izt FARE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE k& 16 7,882
Prepaid land lease payments FHE L FER R 17 5,013
Other intangible assets HinfmL&E 19 -
Other receivables L e YT 5RIE 6
Cash and cash equivalents HehREEEY 26 14,104
27,005
Other payables Hoh FE R 5RIE 2,836
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIARE 21 1,868
4,704

In accordance with IFRS 5, the assets and liabilities of the
disposal group have been stated at their fair value less
costs of disposal.

The disposal group did not constitute a discontinued
operation as it does not represent a major line of business
or geographical area of operation.

The fair value less costs of disposal of the disposal group
was estimated with reference to the agreed selling price.

1R 1% B R B 75 ¥ 5 4RI SE655%
HEHANEERRGBEDZRER
FEBEERANAR

AT TR E LT B
BEGREAEENEEL L
BT o, o

& B AR A FER SR AT)
2RHBEEEM -
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28. Trade and Bills Payables 28. EZREBEMERN
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARM FARY
Trade and bills payables to third parties ~ BRNE=FE 5 RZEER 560,594 550,775
Trade and bills payables to JER R A T E S R EBERRX
related parties 50,904 47,280
611,498 598,055
Trade and bills payables to related parties (as defined in FETBEEE A £ (F & BB iE42)
Note 42) include the following: BHREBRERBETIIEE :
2015 2014
2015% 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARM FARY
Entity with significant influence HAESERBEEAZE NN
over the Group —XEfE 13,974 399
Subsidiaries of the entity with HASBERBEATENN
significant influence over the Group =0l NG 32,254 37,263
An associate of the Group and a —RASEMEE AR R
subsidiary of the entity with HAEEREBEEATZENN
significant influence over the Group ERN—XKHMBAA 78 175
Entities controlled by Mr. WU Jiannong, MIELTHNEERETERE
a director and substantial shareholder REREEEHNES
of Zhejiang NVC (defined in Note 42) (E& R MizE42) 1,034 693
An entity over which the Group REEFBEBE AR ERE
indirectly has significant influence BEERTVENNESR
through an associate 3,564 8,750

50,904 47,280
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Trade and Bills Payables (continued)

Trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

Bills payables are normally settled within 6 months.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the transaction

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

28. EZREBEMNEKRR

(&)

EHNREBERNERYARE -
HEE R B E A30KZE60K °

il

ot

=

/

FEENERFB T E6EA A&

o

oy A8

REXZAH  AEERBEF
BRI E 5 N B B3R Bk

date, is as follows: BROMTAAT
2015 2014
20156 20144F
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH¥ FTARE
Within 3 months 3MEAA 589,303 538,480
4 to 6 months 45618 A 4,654 24,022
7 to 12 months 731218 B 7,694 19,033
1 to 2 years 1524 9,660 16,087
Over 2 years 2FEP F 187 433

611,498 598,065
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29. Other Payables and Accruals 29. HttENERAKEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE

Other payables to third parties, HiENE=ZFER  BF2R

advances from customers and accruals REEtE AR 478,726 377,718
Dividends payable TR B, 1,246 1,175
Amount due to a director N —RESHA 365 92
Amounts due to other related parties & 5 LA R BSE A L BR K 2,695 4,773
483,032 383,758

Amounts due to a director and other related parties are B —REEREMEBER ALK

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. T8 AR - 0 B IR ESKAN -
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29. Other Payables and Accruals (continued) 29. HttENERAKETE
R (=&

The amounts due to related parties (as defined in Note 42) FEfRAEE A+ (& B M sE42)
are as follows: BRFIO0R
2015 2014
20155 20144F
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARK
Entity with significant influence HAEEREBEEATZE NN
over the Group —REE 2,280 4,658
A subsidiary of the entity with HASBHBEATENN
significant influence over the Group BENKE AT 311 100

Entities controlled by Mr. WU Jiannong, I E+THEERTERE
a director and substantial shareholder REETERTHINERE

of Zhejiang NVC (defined in Note 42) (B R Mz42) = 11
An entity over which the Company FBEB N BN R EE
indirectly has significant influence BEENTENNER
through an associate 104 4
2,695 4,773
As at 31 December 2015, the fair values of other payables MR2015F12A31H © R EEH
and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely B AFE R - B A BRI K FE AT
due to their short-term maturity. ERAMAABEEAKSENEREEE

GEESRY
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30.

Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings 30. FFEERRERK
2015 2014
2015% 2014%
Contractual Contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 interest rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BHF%E(%) FIHHR TAR® CEIESEY | R TARE
Current
REHH
Bank loans - secured Base*+1.90 On demand 22,153 Base*+1.90 On demand ! 40,948
RITER - FHER HAH%41.90 REREDA AXHE41.90 BRERAA
5.35 2016 283 27,800 - - -
5.35 2016 283 22,200 - - -
3.20 2016 2 101,969 - - -
Total
e 174,122 40,948

The secured bank loan represented a GBP-dominated
secured facility amounting to GBP5,000,000 (2014:
GBP5,000,000), of which GBP2,304,000 (2014:
GBP4,291,000) had been utilised as at the end of
the reporting period. The bank loan was secured by
the pledge over certain trade receivables amounting
to RMB22,153,000 (2014: RMB40,948,000) and
time deposits amounting to RMB51,000,000 (2014:
RMB54,100,000). In accordance with the contract, the
loan was repayable upon the collection of the factored
trade receivables.

“Base” means the Bank of England base rate.

The secured bank loans represented RMB-denominated
secured facilities. The bank loans were secured by the
pledge of time deposits amounting to RMB151,850,000
(2014: RMBN:il).

The loan agreements contain repayment on demand
clause.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of interest-bearing

loans and borrowings approximates to their carrying
amount largely due to the short-term maturities.

+

o+

EEBETERE—FEU
FEAENEEERE &R
5,000,0007t (20144 : &
#5,000,0007T) © H & 5 £
2,304,0007T (20144 : # 4%
4,291,0007T) R EH KD
WEH - BITERTIIAEG
A R %22 153,0007T (2014
£ A R #40,948,0007T) HY
ETESRURERRARE
51,000,0007 (20144 : A B
#54,100,0007T) K & H 17 3%
BEE - BIEAR - —BEBEIK
ERENEZEKIEA %%

ERENAEE -

ELRF 5 SAR R IR 1T E A F

ZEMBITEREBEUARE
SRTENERRE - ZR1THE
RAERERFTRARSE
151,850,0007T (20144 : AR
WETIT) fEfR -

B s 2 R ESRKIAN RO -

MR2015F12A831H » HRFTEE
RAEEH  HEERREZHNA

REEEERAEANERS -



NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ BRBRIZIR AR A E | 2015 Annual Report F 3R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Government Grants
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31. BUAFHBD

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

TAREE FARK

At 1 January »1A1H 17,289 15,485

Received during the year AREB WS EE 25,044 16,934
Released to the consolidated BEGAERRK

statement of profit or loss (25,880) (15,130)

At 31 December ®12H31H 16,453 17,289

Portion classified as current liabilities 5 %8 4 R 8) & & HI 27D (2,034) (2,137)

Non-current portion FEmENER (D 14,419 15,152

Various government subsidies have been granted to the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries as compensation for technology
research and development and as financial support for
the establishment of energy-saving lamp tube production
lines.

The balance at 31 December 2015 mainly represented
government grants for development of LED products
and other energy-saving lamp production lines. The
government grants are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the estimated useful lives
of the associated production lines.

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
attached to these government grants.

AEENTEMBLARGETE
BB - BIERRHE RIE
REMNEREEELEERNIT B

# o

R2015F 12 A31 B EETR
FA A A B LEDEE fa K H h & g &
SEZROBTRE) o ZMEBUT
HEIIEEEEERN M A E
REHFt A AGHHBRERNA -

b 3ot BT 8 B X S B B A R 1 R
ERMGMHEREREEFE -
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32. Share Capital 32. B
Shares B% 2
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB RMB
US$ equivalent US$  equivalent
EiN=y e
Epl AR ETT AR
Authorised: JERE
500,000,000,000 500,000,000,000
(2014: 500,000,000,000) (20144 :
ordinary shares of 500,000,000,000)
US$0.0000001 each FiREE
0.00000013= 7T
B AR 50,000 341,385 50,000 341,385
Issued and fully paid: EEIT R
3,128,448,000 3,128,448,0000%
(2014: 3,128,448,000) (20144 :
ordinary shares of 3,128,448,000)
US$0.0000001 each BikEE
0.0000001
EITHE R 313 2,324 313 2,324

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, no
movement was noted in share capital.

R A 22014F &2015F12 H31
BIEFE » WHEKRAZES -
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a Pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Group’s key employees, directors,
consultants and strategic suppliers. The Scheme became
effective on 15 October 2006 and was amended on 23
December 2009 and 24 March 2010. The Scheme was
valid and effective for the period of time commencing on
15 October 2006 and expired on the day immediately
prior to the date on which dealings commence in the
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, after which period no further options will be
granted under the Scheme, but the provisions of the
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force and
effect and options under the Scheme during its life may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Scheme
and their terms of issue.

There has been no cancellation or modification to the
Scheme for issued share options during the year.

33.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

BEXNRBRITABRE
arEl

ARABRBERAFAETRER
BErE ([%ET8)) BEAE
MEBEEHAEBK I EEEL R
R EER2HEE - ZiTEINE
ER2EEREASBNEARRE
B EEREBARERKMURE
7 o st 22006510 A 158
RAERR - WHN2009F12 A23H M
2010F3 A24H #1718 5] » &% &t
2172006510 A 158 2 & BEEA
REEBREETEHERINA
RAFIMEEEE BRI A M A
MRAR  RZBBERRQRE
TERBEZTEE—TREER
B BT RS IERT B HA
FEMDAZEZNHXAORIER - B
REZETEIHARR M % 5T 81 T &9 B8 IR
R IRIRZET 8 R H BT IR
BT -

o

RAFE - WEREBHITHERE
BUBSIER] AT &l °
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33. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 33. BX BB ITABRE
(continued) T8 (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the KEE » ZTEH M ARTHENE
Scheme during the year: AR
2015 2014
2015% 20144
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number of price per Number of price per
options share options share
In#EFH T
BRECH BRITEE BIRED BRATHEE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January M1A1H 7,732,000 2.10 41,105,000 2.10
Lapsed during the year FRKLL (532,000) 2.10 (33,373,000) 2.10
At 31 December M®12H31H 7,200,000 210 7,732,000 2.10
For the year ended 31 December 2015, 532,000 (2014: 2l 201612818 IL F &
33,373,000) share options lapsed due to the expiration 532,000 (20144 : 33,373,000)
of share options of a director (2014: resignation of two NERER - ESEMNERERS
directors and three employees). (20145 MBEESR=F1E

BB MR o

As at 31 December 2015, 7,000,000 (2014: 5,832,000) RR2016F12 43818 A 17 & ) f8
share options were exercisable, the weighted average & # 77,000,00013 (20144
exercise price of which was HK$2.10 (2014: HK$2.10). 5,832,00017) * hn#&E F 5 17 fF

B /£2.10/%8 jT (20144 : 21078
JC) °
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

mf

XD B3 AT AR IR R
a8 (&)

RFEFER - HARITENBER
RERITEE RITEHRMT

=11l ¢
1

2015
20154
Number of options Exercise price per share Exercisable period
B IR R 1D B BRITEE THEH
HK$
BT
400,000 2.1 3/24/2011 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2011%23/24/2016
1,300,000 2.1 3/24/2012 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2012%3/24/2016
1,500,000 2.1 3/24/2013 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2013%3/24/2016
1,500,000 2.1 3/24/2014 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2014%3/24/2016
1,500,000 2.1 3/24/2015 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2015%3/24/2016
200,000 2.1 3/24/2012 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2012%2/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2013 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2013%£2/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2014 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2014%22/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2015 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2015%2/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2016 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2016%22/8/2017

7,200,000
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33. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 33. BX BB ITABRE

(continued) =& (&)
2014
20144
Number of options Exercise price per share Exercisable period
RE PR AE (D 8L BRITEE 171 A
HK$
I
400,000 2.1 3/24/2011 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2011%3/24/2016
1,300,000 2.1 3/24/2012 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2012%3/24/2016
1,500,000 2.1 3/24/2013 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2013%3/24/2016
1,500,000 2.1 3/24/2014 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2014%3/24/2016
1,500,000 2.1 3/24/2015 to 3/24/2016
3/24/2015%3/24/2016
200,000 2.1 3/24/2012 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2012%2/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2013 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2013%2/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2014 to 2/8/2017
3/24/201422/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2015 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2015%2/8/2017
200,000 2.1 3/24/2016 to 2/8/2017
3/24/2016%2/8/2017
532,000 2.1 3/24/2012 to 3/24/2015
3/24/2012%3/24/2015

7,732,000
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the
share options outstanding as at 31 December 2015 was
0.35 year (2014: 1.28 years).

The fair value of the share options granted by the
Company has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the vesting periods and
the total amount recognised as a share option expense for
the year ended 31 December 2015 totalled RMB74,000
(2014: RMB252,000),
employee equity benefit reserve.

with a corresponding credit in

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 7,200,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 7,200,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of US$0.72 (equivalent to RMB4.68) and share
premium of US$1,942,000 (equivalent to approximately

RMB12,613,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 7,200,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.23% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

33.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

”“f

R ARBTHBRE

a8 ()

MR2015%F12 A31 B R ITEREK
ERMEEEGB T ELNFERO A
0.354F (20144 : 1.284F)

RARBREHNBERENALEER
AE?;J*HHF‘ REEEERR AR
R REZE2015%F 128318 IEE
ERRAABRERINRSES
H# AR ¥74,0007T (20145 © A
K #252,0007T) © WAHERT AE
B a2 -

RIEBR - RIEZE - AA
7] ¥ B7,200,00017 & & 17 1 38
K- BREARRENNER
& ’\%Mﬂ?;*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂéé
# < R A 7 8 5 ¥ 177,200,000
AR 5@ A% k072 T (B E R
ARM468T) IR A A K
1,942,000% 7T (*H%E\A%W\Eﬁ%
12, 613 0007T) ®I AR 17 % B (R
MBREITER) -

Rt EZEREMBE®REA
H - REZE N2A%B
7,200,00017 1) & 17 {5 f AR 4% -
EARARTREBDBITROL
0.23% ©
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34.

Reserves 34. f#E
Group AE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AREBNRANFE NIBEFE R RE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the BEELNEBEESN S HERE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. e =Rl
Company AT
Employee Foreign
equity currency Proposed
Share benefit Accumulated translation final
premium reserve losses reserve dividend Total
R EE EEE: BEER
EE&: BHERE AitER ERER RERE At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR% TARE TARE TARE TAR% TARH
At 1 January 2014 ®2014E1 /1R 1,892,393 13,936 (332,786) (215,984) 49,192 1,406,751
Loss for the year AEEER - - (40,560) - - (40,560)
Other comprehensive FEEAMEERA
income for the year - - - 5,869 = 5,869
Lapse of share options BREXM - (8,951) 8,951 - - -
Employee share option EEBRETH
arrangements - 252 - - - 252
Adjustment to final 2013 3% k20135F
dividend declared REHE (607) - - - (49,192) (49,799)
Interim 2014 dividend 20145 FHRE (24,860) = = = = (24,860)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 R
and 1 January 2015 2015%1A1A 1,866,926 5,237 (364,395) (210,115) - 1,297,653
Profit for the year REEME - - 70,433 - - 70,433
Other comprehensive REEEMEARA
income for the year - - - 38,578 - 38,578
Lapse of share options BRER - (762) 762 = = =
Employee share option (B2 RMRIERH
arrangements - 74 - - - 74
Proposed final 2015 BEER2015F
dividend RS (26,210) - - - 26,210 -
At 31 December 2015 2015128318 1,840,716 4,549 (293,200) (171,537) 26,210 1,406,738
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Reserves (continued)

Company (continued)

Employee equity benefit reserve comprises the fair

value of share options granted which are yet to be

exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for

share-based payments in Note 2.3. The amount will either

be transferred to the share premium account when the

related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained

profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Litigations

(@)

The Group as a plaintiff

A subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”)
entered into several pledge and guarantee
agreements in 2013 and 2014 (the “Pledge and
Guarantee Agreements”) with certain banks in
the PRC, providing guarantees to the banks for
their loan facilities granted to certain borrowers.
As at 31 December 2013, an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB160,000,000 was recorded
as pledged time deposits to the banks under the
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements, included in
the “Restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. During 2014, additional time deposits
were pledged to the banks under the Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements entered into in 2014.
Counter guarantees were provided by one of the
borrowers of the bank loans, namely Chongging
Wu Ji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Wu Ji”),
to the Group. In 2014, aggregate pledged time
deposits of RMB550,924,000 had been withdrawn
by the banks due to default of the bank loans
under the guarantees of the Subsidiary.

34.

35.
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i (&
ENF (&

AN B 75 R M a2 2.3 BERX 1D X
M@ BRAZE—THME
BEEDBINEFEESRLE
RARITERB R Z A AEE -
BRBRIERTR  Z2BRE
BRERMDSER  HBEBEBK
BB MZERSE
BERFNE -

B
(@) FEERRE

AARHK— KK B R A
(THBAR]) PK2013F Kk
2014F R B ELE TER1T
RN EIEERRERGZE
([ERRERBZE] - B
BITRMETERARTE
KA EREHER - R2013
F12A310 - A& BY
A K #160,000F 7T 1B &
ERRERBEECFE
ERTRITIOEHFR
I N & BT AR R &k A
[ PR HIERTT 4588 K 52 BT
e B 20144 7] 3 Y
ERRERRZE  BINE
HITF N2014E 2 ER T
RIT o —AIIRITE XA E
RAEE EIRE M E R
BRAR ([EER]) MASE
ERMH T RER - R2014
F - BHRABKBRQRER
BIRITERREEERE - R
TERNEREHERE
HAR¥S550,924F T °
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35. Litigations (continued)

(a)

The Group as a plaintiff (continued)

From December 2014 onwards, the Group has
initiated a series of legal proceedings against Mr.
WU Changjiang, a former director and former chief
executive officer of the Company, Mrs. WU Lian
(spouse of Mr. WU Changjiang), Mr. WU Xianming,
Mrs. CHEN Min, Chongging Lei Li Jie Industrial
Development Co., Ltd., Wu Ji, Chongging Jiang
Te Surface Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Jiang Te”) and
Chongqging Hua Biao Lighting Manufacturing
Co., Ltd., in the Intermediate People’s Court of
Huizhou for damages. In addition, as indicated in
8 letters of counter guarantee issued by Wu Ji with
dates in 2013 and 2014, Wu Ji provided counter
guarantees to the Group to reimburse any losses
for provision of guarantees on the bank loans
borrowed by certain PRC companies under the
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements. An aggregate
amount of RMB550,924,000 was recognised as
other receivables due from a company as at 31
December 2014 and 2015. The directors are of
the opinion that an amount of RMB265,564,000 is
recoverable as at 31 December 2014 and 2015,
and accordingly a provision for the unrecoverable
amount of RMB285,360,000 had been made and
included in “Impairment loss of other receivables
due from a company” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and there was no further
provision or write-back of provision for impairment
loss during the year ended 31 December 2015.

35.

EiEA
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FEERERE (F)
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35. Litigations (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Group as a plaintiff (continued)

Details of other receivables due from a company
and the related impairment loss are set out in Note
24,

The Group as a defendant

(i) In addition to the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, the Subsidiary entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC
bank in 2013 (the “Guarantee Agreement
1”) and a PRC finance company in 2014
(the “Guarantee Agreement 2”) respectively,
providing guarantees to the PRC bank and
the PRC finance company for their loan
facilities granted to their borrowers. Mrs. WU
Lian is the borrower of the loan in relation to
the Guarantee Agreement 2.

35.

B

(a)

(b)

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

=

VD

FEERRE (F)

HEmEWR —RARIHRER
FERERE 1B R B M
24 o

REBE/WEA

(i) BRI 1R R AR
Sh 0 M B A R R
2013 B — R &
Bl iR 17 ([ R B
11) R 720144 B2
—ZXFHEESEA A
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EemArmESE
BTERANER
BERMEER R
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35. Litigations (continued)

(b)

The Group as a defendant (continued)

(continued)

The outstanding loans of RMB35,497,000
and RMB34,000,000 in relation to the
Guarantee Agreement 1 and the Guarantee
Agreement 2 were in default in 2015 and
2014 respectively. The PRC bank and the
PRC finance company have taken legal
actions against the respective borrowers
and the guarantors (including the Subsidiary
and the Borrower as guarantors) to recover
the loan balances and interests. The
directors consider that the likelihood of the
Group sustaining further losses from the
Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 is remote
as it is considered that the loans had
sufficient underlying securities including the
Borrower’s guarantees and the Subsidiary
is only one of the guarantors for each of the
loans. As a result, the directors considered
that no provision thereon is considered
necessary as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2015. Details of the contingent
liabilities are set out in Note 36.

35.

ARED (&)

(b)

FEEERWE A

(&)

(i)

(&)
ERERBHEIR
R 2 2 Rl

MEEZRARKE
35,497F 7t K& A
R #34,000F T
20154 K2014%F K
BEE - ZXFTH
RITEERAALE
HEUEETE - M
A & A R ER
AN (BIEEBER
AR KB A R R AE
KA BRERHE
BREAE - EER
BAREE R ERD
F1RE R B @K
EE—THIBLRK
W BAEBZET
ERAEBRHNIE
BER(BERER
ABHER) - TS
RAINERZSE
RITERMNEH —
BERA B
EERE BEAM
Itk 742014412 B 31
H %2015412 431
HEtiREHE - kA
BEFBHAME
36 °
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35. Litigations (continued)

(b)

The Group as a defendant (continued)

The Subsidiary also entered into a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement
3”) with a PRC bank in 2014, providing
guarantee to the bank for a loan facility
granted to its borrower. In addition, the bank
loan was secured by the pledge of a piece
of land owned by Wu Ji.

The bank loan was in default in 2014 and
the bank has taken legal actions against
the borrower and the guarantors (including
the Subsidiary) to recover the bank loan
balance and interest. A court order was
issued to freeze assets of the guarantors
(including the Subsidiary) in the amount of
RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court
order, bank balance of the Subsidiary
in the amount of RMB54,128,000 and
RMB54,758,000 had been frozen by
the bank as at 31 December 2014 and
2015 respectively, which was recorded in
“Restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits” on the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and 2015, as further
detailed in Note 26.

35.

ARED ()

(b)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

FEHEERWE A

(%)

(il

¥ /8 & B 7R 2014
FHE—RPBERT)
RIS HER I (11
R 1% 3] - Mm% F
BIRTHMERTE
RANERBE R
HIER - oM %
RITE R B B
BH— L EE
TR -

ZIRITERRER
2014F 8 & B
ZIBITEEHERA
RERABERN
BAA) HEAE
TEIEFNIRITER
g o —HERH
SEBLNRE
ERA(BREWES
2R EBEAAR
¥62,000F T ) &
Eo BN AR H
2 HWBRARESE
B AN R #54,128F
7T & A R #54,758
FLWMRITEKRE
2 Bl R2014F K
2015128318
Wz iRITRE © %
CHEITAREBRR
20144 2015512
A31B & & E
MERAZ R G
RITHBREBT
] E—HEEE
K EE26 ©
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

35. Litigations (continued)

(b)

The Group as a defendant (continued)

(continued)

The directors consider that the likelihood
of the Group sustaining losses from the
guarantee is remote as it is considered
that the bank loan had sufficient underlying
securities and the Subsidiary is only one
of the guarantors for the bank loan. The
directors believe that the above frozen
bank balance will be released upon the
conclusion of the legal proceedings and
no provision is considered necessary as at
31 December 2014 and 2015. In addition,
the directors are of the opinion that no
provision on the shortfall between the
amount to be ultimately settled by the Group
under Guarantee Agreement 3 and the
above frozen bank balance is considered
necessary as at 31 December 2014 and
2015 respectively. Details of the contingent
liabilities are set out in Note 36.

35.

ARED (4B

FEEEBHEA

(b)

(&)

(il

)

(%)

EERE AKEA
AYEZIBERIEB R
B - FAREZIRT
EXEE R ANIEE
AR - mIEB A RN
EBRZIRITERNE
R—RERA-EE
BEEARFATLH
B - R AR ERTT
KER IS ERRIR R4S -
B & % R2015F &
20144128318 &t
REE LI &
ERRBARLAE
1B IE 1 W #3%
R H S ER
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Contingent Liabilities 36. LEAEE

(a) As at 31 December 2015, contingent liabilities (a) #HZ=E2015F12A31H Ik -
not provided for in the consolidated financial RIAE HF B 1% ¥R R 51 He £
statements were as follows: B sABEBWT :

31 December

12A31H
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY TARE
(Restated)
(FeE3%1)
Guarantees given to banks and wETF AR AL
a finance company in connection EEMBRTETE—K
with facilities granted to: BN Rl MR
2 PRC companies and Ms. WU Lian, AT E QG R REL+
an individual (fARIAT) 131,497 131,497
(o)  The Group currently acts as defendant in lawsuits b) AEEBRABEMIFPEIR
brought by 2 PRC banks and a PRC finance TR —FKPEIHBERER
company alleging that the Group should assume BETHBEEZEFRBER
guarantee liabilities and interests according to 1T R BB R BRI LA
guarantee agreements entered into by NVC China. V& (R 17 55 B 3F 2N &2 B ZB &
The directors consider that the likelihood of the EEREETENBOFR
Group sustaining further losses from the guarantees S EZRAEAE
is remote, and accordingly no provision for claims BRI ZEEROE—F
arising from the litigations is considered necessary BEABAEMNED X
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015, save for the b BREBEEREMK
related legal and other costs. AKERN BAREE

20144 k2015412 A31
BIEFEARBZEHRA
R RETREE -
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

37. Pledge of Assets 37. EEEKH
Save for those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated MEHFMBERRIBITHEEI
financial statements, at the end of the reporting period, MAHERKR - KREBEBEHH
certain assets of the Group were pledged as follows: ETEEWNT :
2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat FARY FARE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KERE 16 248,348 -
Prepaid land lease payments B L AEE 17 49,633 -
Trade and bills receivables: B 5 MEREWFIE
— for a bank loan —RITER 23 22,153 40,948
Pledged time deposits BEMEBRER 26 254,222 66,028

574,356 106,976
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31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

38. Operating Lease Arrangements 38. KEHELH
(@) As lessor (@ EBHBERS
The Group leases its plant and offices under AEBREBELEHELHE
operating lease arrangements, with leases HMEEWE R AE - %
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years. EHEHRB1E5F - 1
The terms of the leases generally also require the EER—REFEREAL
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for RS RIEBEEERmBEE
periodic rent adjustments according to the then SUBEAM RS o

prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future 2015612 A31H » R
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable TR HHEZEHE A&
operating leases with its tenants falling due as B R 2R 5 1K B W AH & 425
follows: R

2015 2014

201545 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY FARE

Within one year 16 R 872 1,738

In the second to fifth years, F2E5F (BREERMT)

inclusive = 355

872 2,093
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38. Operating Lease Arrangements
(continued)

38. WERERH (&)

(b) As lessee (b) EAREBER
The Group leases certain of its office properties and AREBREBEKKEHRELTH
warehouses under operating lease arrangements. HMEETHAMERE
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms - e EEE R R
ranging from one to five years. There are no ZB5F o FIV SR IE
restrictions placed on the Group by entering into BAREE SRR o
these leases.
At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future 2015512 A31 8 1R
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TR HEEEHE A&
operating lease falling due as follows: B Rk K B 1 & 425
A
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FTARE
Within one year 1FR 8,330 7,316
In the second to fifth years, inclusive Z£2E5% (BIEERME) 9,788 10,098
18,118 17,414
39. G

39. Commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments at the

AEERBREFEREUATER

end of the reporting period: G
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARK
Contracted, but not provided for: 2ET4) - BEAREHE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB RiEE 132,554 6,721
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40. Holding Company Statement of Financial 40. 2015F12A31AEZER A

Position as at 31 December 2015 A EAR R TR
2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it FARH® T AR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENKEE 2,075 2,312
Investments in subsidiaries R B R FEEE 723,844 695,393
Total non-current assets FREEESE 725,919 697,705
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B A =) TR 1B 458,646 452,114
Prepayments and other TR 30 B L A IR
receivables 715 4,001
Cash and cash equivalents HERREGZEEY 301,468 215,391
Total current assets REBEEAS 760,829 671,506
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASH B /B A Bl FkIE 75,285 59,312
Other payables and accruals H R RIE R ERE A 4,723 12,244
Total current liabilities REBEESE 80,008 71,556
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREBEE 680,821 599,950
Net assets HBEE 1,406,740 1,297,655
EQUITY Ex
Share capital N 32 2 2
Reserves (G 34 1,406,738 1,297,653
Total equity MRS 1,406,740 1,297,655
WANG Donglei £ & XIONG Jie B&£E

Director 2% Director %
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41. Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

41. RINBRATIMNIKRE

ZNVNSST I S0 = NCTEE =S U

follows: T
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
nature of registered share attributable to the
Company name legal entity capital Company Principal activities
TME L
AMREELS ERTEERA FARELS
NAER EEERER HE /ERRR BEADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
i G
Huizhou NVC Lighting PRC/ US$37,250,000 100 - Manufacture and sale of lamps,
Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/ luminaries, lamp transformers,
limited liability lighting electronic products and
company other appliances
ENELHERRERAT e/ e/ 37,250,000 7T HEREERR &R  BAER
BRAEFRTA & RRESERANES
Chongging NVC Lighting PRC/ US$4,000,000 100 - Manufacture and sale of lamps,
Co., Ltd. PRC/ luminaries and other lighting
limited liability electronic appliances
company
EFETRAGRAT E/hE 4,000,000% T BERRENR - BEREMBH
BRAARTA S
Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lamps
Ltd. (“Zhejiang NVC”) PRC/ and related products
limited liability
company
WIEHEAARAR ME/HE,/  AR¥20,000,0007T BERHERRRABER
(MIET]) BREAERT
Zhongshan NVC Decorative PRC/ RMB15,000,000 - 50  Trading of lamps, luminaries and
Lighting Technology Co., PRC/ LED lighting products
Ltd. (“Zhongshan NVC") * limited liability
company
PILETRHREERAT ME/HE,/  AR¥15000,0007 BENR - BERLEDRMESR
(THILET]) " BREFAR
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41. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) RBATMNIKRE (&)
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
nature of registered share attributable to the
Company name legal entity capital Company Principal activities
SME L
AMREELY ERTEERA FARERS
ARER HEBRER HE/ ZRRR BHADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B G
Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale of light
Electron Co., Ltd. PRC/ tubes for energy-saving lamps
limited liability and related products
company
MILL=RETFERAA e/ e,/ AE%10,000,0007 BERHEDHERE RABER
BREFERA
Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting PRC/ US$7,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale of light
Electron Co., Ltd. PRC/ tubes for energy-saving lamps
limited liability and related products
company
LI RAARAR e/ e/ 7,000,000 ¢ BERREDREEE RABER
BREMERA
Zhangpu Phoebus Lighting PRC/ US$3,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale of light
Co., Ltd. PRC/ tubes for energy-saving lamps
limited liability and related products
company
BRI ERAERAR e/ e/ 3,000,000% 7T HERHEHRERE R ER
BREFAH
Shanghai Arcata Electronics PRC/ US$10,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale of lamp
Co., Ltd. PRC/ transformers and other lighting
limited liability electronic products
company
HEMKEETARAR e/ e/ 10,000,000% T HERRERABRERLMBR
BREFAR 3
World Through Investments BVI/ US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited PRC/
limited company
HRRAFRAR EBEMRES 50,000% 7T REAR
e/

BRRA]
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41. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

41. RMBLARKNIKRE (&)

business/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
nature of registered share attributable to the
Company name legal entity capital Company Principal activities
SR
dMREELE ERTEERA FARERS
AAER EERRER HE /ERRR BREDL TEXEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
NVC Lighting Limited England and GBP5,000,000 100 Trading of lamps, luminaries and
(“UKNVC) Wales/the UK/ (2014: other lighting products
limited company GBP2,000,000)
NVC Lighting Limited R R 5,000,0005 8% BERR  BEREMBHAER
(TUKNvC)) Bl %A/ (2014% -
BRAR 2,000,000%4%)
Hong Kong TYU Technology Hong Kong/ HK$200,000 100 Trading of lamps, luminaries and
Co., Limited PRC/ other lighting products
limited company
BARTREARAA i/ 08/ 200,000 7T EERR  BRAREMRAER
BRAA
Hong Kong NVC Lighting Limited Hong Kong/ HKS$1 = 100 Investment holding
PRC/
limited company
BAELRABRAA g/ 08/ BT REER
BRAA
NVC China PRC/ HK$200,000,000 = 100 Research, development,
PRC/ manufacture and sale of
limited liability lamps, luminaries and lighting
company electronic products
ERaal: E/HE,/ 200,000,000 e BERRERR  BARR
BREFAR HE S
NVC Lighting (Brazil) Commercial Brazil/ R$7,000,000 = 51 Trading of lamps, luminaries and
Import and Export Co., Ltd.™  limited company other lighting products
ERZETRAEZSEND B,/ 7,000,0002H BEAR BARHBRAER
BRAR BRAF
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Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Zhongshan NVC was a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 26 January 2015. Since the
establishment, the Group is able to exercise control on
Zhongshan NVC through the agreements with other
equity holders of Zhongshan NVC.

> NVC Brazil was a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and, accordingly, is accounted for as a
subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control over it with
51% equity interest.

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material

41.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

RHMBRENRE (&2

* FILE T A —RKRN2015F1A8
26 EFRRAMALHWERE
ERAR - AEBEEKIZANE
B E T EMBRERE A
HO 175 s S50 EL 1T {3 PR A o

e BERAEtTAARDANIEEEN
BAR  ARARARABEAEH
51%ARE R EFIRE - ALK A
AARIWKIBAR °

RE BB~ B R E R IEEH

non-controlling interests are set out below: MRESNNFFET

2015 2014
20155 20144

Percentage of equity interest held by  JE3ZEH|1EERIFA K

non-controlling interests: RET D

Zhejiang NVC WTEL 49% 49%
Zhongshan NVC BILEL 50% N/A
@A
NVC Brazil EraE LT 49% 49%
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41. RMBLARKNIKRE (&)

41. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FAREK
Comprehensive income for the year Sl 2= IR R A
allocated to non-controlling interests: AREZEUA :
Zhejiang NVC WIS L 33,671 30,534
Zhongshan NVC REL 45,222 -
NVC Brazil BEEL (7,618) (4,449)
71,275 26,085
Capital contribution from e RN E ¢
non-controlling interests:
Zhongshan NVC FILEL 7,500 =
Dividends paid to non-controlling XA F RIS A S AU AR B
interests:
Zhejiang NVC ST E+ (58,800) -
Accumulated balances of RS B AR 6l 1 = H
non-controlling interests at REH R
the reporting dates:
Zhejiang NVC WTEL 89,160 114,289
Zhongshan NVC FILEL 52,722 =
NVC Brazil EEEL (2,760) 4,858
139,122 119,147
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Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 41. RBATIMNIRE (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRIE EAHERRHNTBE
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BHME - HENESEHERRIME
disclosed are before any inter-company elimination: 2 A -
2015 Zhongshan NVC Zhejiang NVC NVC Brazil
20155 FILEL WIEL BAEEL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH TARK TAR%
Revenue A 752,132 700,877 20,243
Total expenses BRA (661,688) (632,160) (34,356)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEFE /(BE) 90,444 68,717 (14,113)
Total comprehensive income AEEZERAGF
for the year 90,444 68,717 (15,548)
Current assets mEEE 272,502 316,606 11,281
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,861 29,468 908
Current liabilities MEBE (169,919) (164,115) (17,647)
Net cash flows generated from/ RETHESE /
(used in) operating activities (FTA) BenesE 117,587 83,494 (639)
Net cash flows used in investing REEHMRARE RS
activities ek (58,644) (2,638) (109)
Net cash flows generated from/ WEERBHES,/(FTH)
(used in) financing activities REREFH 65,000 (120,000) (277)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BehBEEEY

and cash equivalents B/ CRd) F8E 123,943 (39,144) (1,025)
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41. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 41. RIBATIMIRE (&)
2014 Zhejiang NVC NVC Brazil
20144 IEL BREET

RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE
Revenue ION 643,006 19,224
Total expenses BRAH (580,692) (26,247)
Profit/(loss) for the year AFEFE/ (B1) 62,314 (7,023)
Total comprehensive income for the year ANEEZERASE 62,314 (9,079)
Current assets RENEE 408,863 20,231
Non-current assets FEREEE 30,135 3,777
Current liabilities MEBE (205,755) (13,918)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) mETHELE /(A Be
operating activities MEFE 51,430 (12,214)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGBMARERE TR (4,690) (4,299)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from WEEE (FfH) /ELES
financing activities REF5 (30,438) 19,169
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RehFeEEBYEMFE 16,302 2,656
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42. Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

None of the shareholders is the controlling entity of
the Company.

In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, major related
parties with which the Group had transactions
during the current year and the prior year are listed
below:

Entity with significant influence over the Group
in which the executive director of the Company,
Mr. WANG Donglei, is a director and substantial
shareholder

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd. (“Elec-Tech”)

Subsidiaries of Elec-Tech

Dalian Elec-Tech Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Retop Electronics Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Retop Lighting Landscape Art Design
Engineering Co., Ltd.

Appliance Co. of America (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Elec-Tech NVC Lighting Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Elec-Tech International Lighting Technology
Co., Ltd.

Wuhu 3E Lighting Co,. Ltd.

Ying Cheng Precision Die Casting Co., Ltd.

An associate of the Group and a subsidiary of
Elec-Tech
Huizhou Thor

Entities controlled by Mr. WU Jiannong,
a director and substantial shareholder of
Zhejiang NVC
Jiangshan Youhe Machinery Co., Ltd.
Jiangshan World Bright Crystal Co., Ltd.
Quzhou Aushite lllumination Co., Ltd.

B 75 R MY ot

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

42. BEEAR S

(a)

(b)

BMERRSARAZERE

® -

BRapt i mk i
HENERI NRFER
F—FEEXEEETR
S EZ@E T EH YW
T~

HERHREEEAZESH
ER (XAAHTEET
LEXLBRZERNESE
REERR)

EREZHEERBOHAR
~nE ([EsEED

BEBENHE R A

REBZNHEHRAERLDA

HHMHIEFARAT

IR S0 IR R BB RE
TiEARRAE

EXE=R GNE) BRAR]

BREZELRBERAF

HABREEAERRAR
yNC]

B =ERABFRAF

AFREESER AR

— AL HE R AR
BERBEHHEL A
BMER

HIELHWEERTERR
REEBLLEZFHWERE

TR A A R R A
T EAK AR A R QA
HNRAFRAFRAF
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42. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Entities over which a close family member of
Mr. WU Changjiang, a former director and
former chief executive officer of the Company,
has significant influence’

Zhongshan Sheng Di Ai Si Lighting Co., Ltd.

Chongging Enlin Electronics Co., Ltd.

Shandong NVC Lighting Development Co., Ltd.

Huizhou NVC Lighting Environment Engineering
Co., Ltd.

Chongaing En Wei Xi Industrial Development
Co., Ltd.

Jiang Te*

Wu Ji**

* Mr. WU Xianming, the father-in-law of Mr. WU Changjiang,
indirectly held 20.4% interest of the entity.

*k

Mrs. WU Lian, the spouse of Mr. WU Changjiang, acted
as legal representative, sole executive director and chief
executive officer of the entity.

An entity controlled by Mr. WANG Xiaobo,
a key management of the Company?
Nanjing Chuang Yi Jia Trading Co., Ltd.

An entity over which the Group indirectly has
significant influence through an associate

Chongging Chidian Technology Co., Ltd.

! On 29 August 2014, the entities ceased to be
related parties of the Group due to removal of Mr.
WU Changjiang from the board of the Company.

2 On 21 May 2015, the entity ceased to be a
related party of the Group due to the resignation
of a key management of the Company.

42, BHLE RS (&

(b)

(&)

AR EERFEEHIT
ERRIEER — K
BHRAFEAZENE
E 1

LT E RIRRAR
BERAF

EEBMERERAF
WRELRAZRARAA

BMNELARRTIRERAF

EERBROEXRERERA

Ak

i

* RRIEENERXR
BRHELEREFAZ
E#820.4% 5 ©

* SRRIGSENRBR
MLt hZELBNL
ERER -M—HiTE
EREENTE °

—FKHAEXRALTEEEAS
F BRI SR 0 B R
MRAl—EEZERQA

— AL EHEBRBER
AEEHRRFEATE
HYERE

EEMENMRAERAT

L H201448H298 - m
RARREESER

FIT R EMBTE EZ:‘ET
BT B R B A B
AL e

2 M2016%F5H21H + H
RARR—EEER
ABEE  ZEBEBIE
RAEENEER T -
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42. Related Party Transactions (continued) 42. BBMAERS (&
(c) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (c) KBEHIBEREREMLT
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group EEARZ FN 0 REEF
had the following transactions with related parties NENL TGRS :

during the year:

2015 2014
20155 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hizt FARY TARY
Elec-Tech: ERmE:
Purchase of finished goods BEKm 86 59
Purchase of raw materials BERME (i) - 5,463
Trademark licence fee income EIEEEIE-L N (i) 7,567 8,028
Administrative expenses EEER (i) 28 -
Rental expenses HEER (i) 31 -
Subsidiaries of Elec-Tech: BEBENWBAR
Purchase of raw materials BB EM B R
and finished goods (i) 109,273 102,118
Rental fee income AL ON (i) 164 -
Disposal of property, plant REME - WE R
and equipment (i) 342 -
An associate of the Group —RAEENBE QTR
and a subsidiary of Elec-Tech EZBENHEBAR :
Purchase of finished goods BB @ (i) - 456
Purchase of raw materials FBERME (i) 247 -
Disposal of property, plant REMX  BERRE
and equipment (i) - 16,230

Rental fee income He WA 0] 1,180 856
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42. Related Party Transactions (continued) 42, AR (&
(¢) (continued) (c) (#&)
2015 2014
2015% 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit TARK TAREK
Entities controlled by MIETHESRFERE
Mr. WU Jiannong, a director REBAERENER
and substantial shareholder
of Zhejiang NVC:
Purchases of raw materials BB R R i
and finished goods (i) 8,141 5,703
Purchase of finished goods BERM (i) - 6
Processing fee MIEM (i) - 1
Entities over which a close AAFRESRAERE
family member of BABERRIKE ML
Mr. WU Changjiang, a former EHEBUHEEEARTE
director and former chief NEBRRRIAEN—{
executive officer of the EHE
Company, has significant
influence and a close family
member of Mr. WU Changjiang:
Sale of finished goods HER (i) = 7,118
Trademark licence fee income EIZEF Al B U A (ii) - 1,979
Purchase of finished goods BEKM® (i) - 18,697
Provision of guarantees REER (KEF5)
(Restated) (i) - 154,500
Guarantees received BEER (i) - 415,500
An entity controlled by —SALQAETEEEAS
Mr. WANG Xiaobo, a key IRREERFNER
management of the
Company
Sale of finished goods HER M (i 80,578 3,853
An entity over which the —FXAAEERRBHEEENR
Group indirectly has BEHHAREAYENE
significant influence through i
an associate:
Purchase of raw materials BERME (i) 15,200 27,772
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42. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

42. BBMAERS (&

(continued) (c) (#&)
Notes: Bt -
(i) The transactions were made at prices mutually (i) R 5 TIIRBEE T HE &
agreed by both parties. BT o
(ii) Trademark licence fee income arose from (ii) REMBAERIEL]
licensing the “NVC” brand to related parties, and SHRR T E AR IZER ]
was charged at 1% to 3% of the related parties’ BWATDIZBET 2
annual sales. The royalty rate was mutually agreed FHEBN1%E3%AT
by both parties. ReWBXRTTHE
W
(iii) Provision of guarantees and guarantees received (iii) FAHE 7 R R R &
from related parties arose from certain pledge BERERSELEEASE T
and guarantee agreements and letters of counter EHRIER DR R RE
guarantee, respectively. Details are set out in IREK ° FEIBH R MIFESS
Notes 35 and 36. }236 °
Outstanding balances with related parties: (d) BBASHRBEELEE
The detailed terms regarding the outstanding B B R2014F 20154
balances with related parties as at 31 December 12A31 B @ T HIRIB
2014 and 2015 are set out in Notes 23, 24, 28 and BT IBE RN M 5223
29. 24 ~ 2829 e
Compensation of key management () AEEFEEBAEH
personnel of the Group: EA :
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARH
Short-term employee benefits R EB RN 18,690 21,773
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43. Financial Instruments by Category 43. BEFIEsHNERITA
The carrying amounts of each category of financial RBEFER SELRITEAN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BEmEmELT :
follows:

Financial assets ERMEE
All of the financial assets of the Group categorised as NEBESEAER L EWFHIEAE
loans and receivables are detailed as below: NEHemEENEAMB N B
B
2015 2014
20154 20144
Loans and Loans and

receivables at  receivables at
amortised cost amortised cost
ABRNER AR ER
R EWFRIE KW FRIA

RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARE
Trade receivables with maturity BB —FEIHNE FREUERK
more than one year 13,856 31,095
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 REREWFIR 1,189,914 1,218,824
Financial assets included in MATERFHIE - RFEE REM
prepayments, deposits and ENHIENEREE
other receivables 315,563 315,681
Restricted bank balance and SR BRI T A B R G ERTE K
short-term deposits 660,307 125,233
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 903,849 796,694

Total BEF 3,083,489 2,487,527
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43. Financial Instruments by Category 43. BB T HNEMI A

(continued) (&)
Financial liabilities EREeE
All of the financial liabilities of the Group carried at REHEKAABRENAER 2 S
amortised cost are as follows: MEESHNTE:
2015 2014
20154 20144
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
REBERAANE IR IHR AR AR
Hemas NEmERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARYE FARE

Trade and bills payables B 5 hEEENNIE 611,498 598,055
Financial liabilities included in AN E A FE A5 R K e S B

other payables and accruals NEmas 364,300 292,694

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings &8 & k&5 174,122 40,948

Total BET 1,149,920 931,697
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44,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and interest-bearing
loans and borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Other than mentioned above, the Group did not have any
other financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2015.

44,

EMIBZAREE
BEEENGREIREEEY
B REBREWE EHEMN
BRAX - MATEN R
H il YRS E’Jimﬁé;‘z AN
ﬁﬁﬂﬂ’iﬁ ANEHERNESRE
& FFRERREFRNAAEE
HHEREERS  DEBEHNZ
FeRM T ARG -

BB RS s AEE X
VEBEREEETEMIAAR
BEFENBERIERT - BB
KIEEEMBEREVBEREZE
BemdE NEWmEAH X
VBEBR e ITAAREE
BHYRETEANGECETES
ASIE - BFEUHEEMRIE
HE —FMAEEZLZE S
wmEEEFRESR - AR A E
RERMGEHRSE -

CHMEERABNARBEDNLE
ERATZHAETENRZRE
BeRMITACZER MZEXS
WIEE B TE R T HEST ©

i)

Br A _EFrati ol - REEK2015F
12A3T B ER AR BENEN
HEhemEENEE -
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Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, cash and
short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, trade and bills payables and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, commodity price risk, foreign
currency risk and liquidity risk. The directors meet
periodically to analyse and formulate measures to manage
the Group’s exposure to these risks. Generally, the Group
adopts conservative strategies in its risk management. As
the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum,
the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes.

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The directors review
and agree policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below:

45.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

%i’%ﬁl%"éﬂﬁ%&ﬁ

AEENFEEMITABERR
ERRER - B2 REBRFER-
ZEeRIEEERASENE
BEEES  ASKEESREARHE
KEXGEEEANEMERE
EEE OINEZREEER
HIE - FBAR - REREARE
WHIBAKRE S R EBRENKIE
N E e RIA o

AEBERMIANTIERARAE

FER - MERR - IMNERR &
nRBETER EEZTEHFE D
Ar 3 I 5T 4 76 A 7 38 AN &= (B Y 4

FRRHOMO - —KME A&
B e B3R 5| ARSFRES
F AN 5 1 ¥ 5% S LB M el D 4R
FREREKE  BAREEWRE
REMITET AR EM T AT
i‘T/EF' °

AEELBFARETITESR

TERARRS - EZ2EZED
HEE L FERRAEE - W
B R -
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The major concentration of credit risk arises from
the Group’s exposure to a substantial number
of trade and bills receivables and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables from debtors. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit limit, and has strict control over
credit limits of trade receivables.

The Group has entered into a number of one-year
insurance contracts with China Export & Credit
Insurance Corporation, which covered up to
85% and 90% of any uncollectible amount
derived respectively from the domestic sales and
overseas sales. The contracts were renewed in
November every year, and subject to a maximum
compensation amount of RMB19,200,000 for
domestic sales and US$30,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB194,808,000) for overseas sales in the
current year. The Group purchased such insurance
in order to minimise the exposure to credit risk as
the Group expands its business. The insurance
contracts were renewed in 2015 and extended to
30 November 2016.

45. B EREEBEZERK
R (&

(a)

= ARk

ERERIZEPELRE
BHEBSANKEZES R
EWEW%E‘EH%

IRAE S H Al R K
E°$%Iaﬁﬂﬂﬁ
NHERERHETEFPR
BABEEENERBE I
BB 12 5 B 5 FE U IR B
EHREE -

AEBMEFBHL AEAR
BRNRIEIN T Z DRI —
FaREER - 2 RlIFERK
B A 8 & 0] B 4L & BE Y
85% K& /8 1N iH & 1~ 7] [8 4
S EEH%  ZEARR
BF11AEFT - BEAF
EBEAEENESEESR
| B A R #19,200,000
TRBBEEINEENTES
B 18 € % A30,000,000
EFTHHERARE
194,808,000t ) ° M R 7
SEMEBTEELR &K
%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@u%ﬁ

EE/\\\2015£E%\E\§T' Hﬂ@/ﬁﬁ
HEIE R Z=2016411 A30

E' o
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and short-term deposits are mainly deposited
with registered banks in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The Group has policies to limit its credit exposure
to any financial institution. The carrying amounts
of trade and bills receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents included in the consolidated statement
of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The Group has no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the
prices of raw materials which are influenced by
global changes as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of
raw materials could adversely affect the Group’s
financial performance. The Group historically
has not entered into any commodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity price
changes. The Group has, however, increased its
inventories of certain key raw materials to ensure
adequate supplies.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

45. MBEREEERREK
R (&

(a)

(b)

ERERE (&)

ReMEBMERTEFR
RERBBHEMRT
AREEHIRT TR B HEHE
] & B4 78 15 A L B O I
R MABFFH BN K
MBS M REEKFR
BN REDS RHEAM
FEUGRIARREE MR & K
BeSEYRASERHE
TRMEEMAXNRAE
R - A5 BHE & H A
AXEANERRRNEE
BE -

RN

AEBENRMEHER S
F 2 R AR 8 SR
MEE MRS - REHE
1% 35 B 7] AE 7K 5 [ A Bt
BEREERTMNEE - K
SEBREL RFITERRD
DT T RSB ER
WEZE - AT AKH
EEBIENE T EERM
FHEVF B AR TR AR E -
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives 45.

and Policies (continued)

% (&

BHEEREEEERK

(c)

Foreign currency risk (c) SMNERR
The Group has transactional currency exposure. AREBFER S EER
This exposure mainly arises from sales by an e AR EERFEE
operating unit in a currency other than the unit’s BRIAEINEE B AN
functional currency. The Group’s PRC entities HEMEEITEMNEESE - K
sell their products to overseas customers. These SEMNFEEES RGN
sales are predominately conducted in US$. As a BEHEEEM ZFHE
result, the Group is exposed to fluctuations in the FTEUETEE - B
exchange rate between US$ and RMB. REBAIETHEARE
b 2 5 Eh i R B o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as TEREBRERBRREZMEEM
at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably EERBFTENBRT -
possible change in the US$ exchange rate, with all NEEBR A B EER
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit MEFE REELERA]
or loss before income tax (due to changes in the EEEEHHHRE (B
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). EREERABENRAAE
BEZEFTED) °
2015 2015%
Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in foreign (decrease)
currency in profit
exchange before
rate income tax
Exigm, B A1 F
(R2) #m,/ ()
% RMB’000
% TARY
If RMB weakens against US$ EAREHEETES 5 (1,088)
If RMB strengthens against US$ HAREREETER (5) 1,088
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives 45. B EKREEBEER K

and Policies (continued) x (&
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) SNERME (£2)
2014 20144
Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign Increase/
currency (decrease)
exchange in profit
rate before tax
RSy T AT
CAd)  gm,/ ORd)
% RMB’000
% FARM
If RMB weakens against US$ EAREEEETES 5 (1,820)
If RMB strengthens against US$ HAREREETER (5) 1,820
Bank balances and short-term deposits of M2015F12H31H @ =
the Group denominated in HK$ amounted to SEABITETEMNRITA
RMB69,429,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: BREEHTRAARK
RMB4,417,000). As HK$ is pegged to US$, the 69,429,0007T (2014 = A
directors consider that these bank balances are not R #4,417,0007T) © AR
subject to significant foreign currency risk. BILEETTEN  BEER

RZFBRITHERL PAR
BEXIMNERRK °



304

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED &+ FREFZEIREIRAF | 2015 Annual Report &3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% MY ot

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

45. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of its financial
instruments, financial assets and liabilities and
projected cash flows from operations. The Group’s
objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank loans and other interest-bearing
borrowings. The directors have reviewed the
Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group does
not have any significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the contractual
undiscounted payments is as follows:

31 December 2015

45. MBEREEEREREK
R (&

(d)

REE S E

AEEREERESRT
B e@MEENABENE
HIBAMBEE LB T
SReREEEEESHE
REERR - NEE B R
ERBERRTERLHE
fEt RER  REESH
EHEEMNEEE - &
FEREARENEESR
FEANER E I EAE ] B AR
BETHER -

REEITOERFTREN
R AKENIEITESR
BEIHBERAT

20155F12H31H

On demand
Carrying or within
amount one year
BERS
BREE R—FUR
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TARY
Trade and bills payables B2 RERENFIA 611,498 611,498
Financial liabilities included in other &Y A fth FE - 5k R FERT & FA &9
payables and accruals 364,300 364,300
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings B E R M ER 174,122 176,263
Guarantees given to banks and A TRRFERRR—%
a finance company in connection ERATEER TRITK
with facilities granted to 2 PRC —RP R R WER
companies and an individual 131,497 131,497
Total I 1,281,417 1,283,558
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45. Financial Risk Management Objectives 45. B EKREEBEER K
and Policies (continued) % (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBESEAMR (&)
31 December 2014 (Restated) 2014512 A310 (R&E7FI))
On demand
Carrying or within
amount one year
RER
REE R—F LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®
Trade payables 2D ENTE 598,055 598,055
Financial liabilities included in other & A E fh fE{ 5k R AT B FA RS
payables and accruals 292,694 292,694
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings =t 8 &% & & 40,948 40,948
Guarantees given to banks and HETRERTPREARR—R
a finance company in connection ERALEERTRITR
with facilities granted to 2 PRC — XU B AR NER
companies and an individual 131,497 131,497

Total At 1,063,194 1,063,194
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46.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to maintain the Group’s stability and growth. The
Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it, taking into
consideration changes in economic conditions, future
capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected profitability and operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditure and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total equity attributable to owners of
the parent. Net debt includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and short-term deposits (excluding
restricted bank balance). The Group’s policy is to maintain
a gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

46. EXREE

AEEEAEENTR B KEMR
BASENREMER - A&E
EHREWEREERNGEE I
REBRERANEES) - AEH
REREARFNR BT REEF
EAMELERESRE - BFFER
XHREEBERERSRER
fEHAEE

AEBEFEREAABLRERE
Ko BRBELRRZFEBHERIA
SRRHAE ANEHEER - FE
BEEFEEREEFRERE
KIEHEFER (T EERR G AR
1T8REE) - AEENRR K ER
BRELERRGESEKE

RBEEFERNERBEL XN
T

2015 2014
20155 20145
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR®
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings SFEERRER 174,122 40,948
Total debt HBIETE 174,122 40,948
Less: Short-term deposits and cash and i : BEAERA LIRS LIRS ZEY
cash equivalents (excluding (TREXRHIMIRITARE)
restricted bank balance) (1,523,502) (867,799)
Net debt FEH N/A N/A
~EA NE A
Total equity attributable to owners of BARHEAR AEGEER
the parent 3,316,907 3,247,462
Gearing ratio BREEHR N/A N/A

TEA NaEH
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Event after the Reporting Period

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated 3 February
2016, the Group agreed to acquire and the vendor
agreed to sell 75% equity in the target company at the
consideration of RMB500,000,000. The target company’s
major asset is 50% equity interest in Zhongshan NVC.
50% equity interest of Zhongshan NVC is held by the
Group as at 31 December 2015 and the Group will hold
effectively 87.5% equity interest in Zhongshan NVC
after the acquisition. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 February 2016. The
acquisition has not been completed as of the date of
issuance of these consolidated financial statements.

Approval of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 April
2016.

47.

48.

IR R M RE

31 December 2015 2015512 A31H

BEHREE

% B H A2016%2A3H & i% #
EHEGE FEEREWE B
EEIREBELEBBREQRT5%K
# - R {E A A R¥500,000,000
Lo BEAFTMEEZEEAT L
B T50%RHE - NEEMN20144F
12A31BHFAF ILE T50%H X
B M TRERNEBE TR
AR ILELT87.5%HARAE - i
—HEFIBHN AR R HEA2016
Fo2R4BMRE - WERBEZ
ZEMUBHmETIERBRERT
W o

ES O B®RE

B EHRRE R20165F4 A5H
KE T HE RIRRERET -
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* ==

F
In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, EAFEREY  BRXESEMEIN
the following words and expressions shall have the following TolFAERAEZAERATRE o
meanings.
“Board” the board of Directors of the Company.
(Exg] KAREET o

“BOC Da Du Kou”

[ AEO ]
“China” or “PRC”
[

“Chongqging Enlin”

[ & & B

“Chongqging En Wei Xi”

“Chongaing NVC”

[EEEL]

The Bank of China Limited Chongging Da Du Kou Division* (1 B8R 77 %
MNBRAREEXEHZIT).
HFEIRITIRMD BRARIEEREAZIT -

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report
and for geographical reference only and except where the context
requires, references in this report to “China” and the “PRC” do not
apply to Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and the Hong
Kong.

FEARAMNE  BERAFAFERERMBEBLENS - RXESEAE
Hh REEREP URL [FE | 2EHETEFEAE  BPFIRHITTERIE R
BB o

Chongaing Enlin Electronics Co., Ltd.* (EE EME 2B R A R]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC, in which Ms. CHEN Min, Mr.
WU Changjiang’s mother-in-law holds a 36.2% equity interest.
EEERMERERAAT  —RKEFBKZ 2BREEAA  RRIEEN
ERREAL L IRFFAZ R FI36.2%H AR °

Chongaing En Wei Xi Industrial Development Co., Ltd.* (EE BERE
EHEAMR AR, a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and is owned as to 40% by Mr. WU Xianming, Mr. WU Changjiang’s
father-in-law.

EEREABERRABRAF  —REFEKIZEREARF @ RRT
FEERNERREBALEFH LR AI40%HARHE

Chongging NVC Lighting Co., Ltd.* (EEEZETRABRAR]), a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC
on 1 December 2006 and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.
EEFTRPERAA - —RN2006F12 A1 BEF B ML E B
BEREERA  REMNEEZENB AR °



“CG Code”

[{&EARTAI

“Company” or “our Company”

[ARRE

“Corresponding Period”

[ =I5 ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ETIC”

“Energy-saving lighting products’

=0
anp
iy

[EnBE AR AR A fm
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the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
CEMHRAD Mg+ (REERTRD RABEEERME) °

NVC Lighting Holding Limited (& MR EFIERK B R A 7l), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 2 March 2006 and
subsequently redomiciled to the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

ETRBERERAR + —RN2006F3A2AE LB HER AT S MK
MEAR  BERRERSEEEAEN2010F3A30R RS EEHEM
R—RERREREERQF -

means the year ended 31 December 2014,
RIEHE2014F12A31HIEFE -

the director(s) of the Company.

RABESE -

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (EREZFEERKRMNDAERAR), a
PRC incorporated company which is currently listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. It is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
BREzEHEERKROHBRAR  —REFREFMEZHAGF - BAIER
NEFRZR G LT RARGN—EFERR -

CALI (the China Association of Lighting Industry) defines energy-saving
lighting products in China as typically consisting of compact fluorescent
lamps, fluorescent lamps and supporting lighting fixtures, LED lamps,
HID lamps and electronic ballasts. CALl’s standard is based on
the “Interim Measures on Funding Management of Fiscal Subsidies
for Promotion of High-Efficiency Products” as well as the SA (the
Standardisation Administration of the PRC) standards, which is in line
with the CQC (the China Quality Certification Centre) List.
TERAERGEAT  THEARRAELRBELEEZENELNLR &
KHRRZEREEINR - LEDKXIR - HDRRKREFEREE c HEIRIAE
HHRENREA(SURAEREEVRHERE S EBRETIVNE) MBER
SEERZESNRERER  EPERERBPROBE—H -
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“GBPH
[ 538 |

“Group”
[REE ]

“Guarantee Agreement” or
“Purported Guarantee Agreement”

[ V2R 152 ] =K [ a8 2R 5%

“Hangzhou Tongren”

EEAIE PN
“HID”
[HID]

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars”
[

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Huizhou NVC”
[EINE L]

“ICBC Nanping”

[ TRRITRF X17]

Great Britain Sterling Pound, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
EEE - REDEERY -

the Company and its subsidiaries.

RABREKBAT]

a guarantee agreement entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang purportedly
on behalf of NVC China with the Chongaging branch of a PRC bank on 7
March 2014.
HRFETELEN2014F3A7TEFMBERARELTREE-RTRRTEESD
TTRIM R ©

Hangzhou Tongren Software Co., Ltd.* (#u /R A& H B R A7), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and is owned as to
51% by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (31T [El=¥8E)R
EEFRAA).

MMRAEGERAR  —RERBEKIHAEREERR
REBEBR DB FEAEH51 %M

TR R #6E

high intensity discharge.
SR EWE o

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
B BREEEE -

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of People’s Republic of
China.
hE ARAMBERFRITHE °

Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (B/ME L ERIELARA
al]), a wholly foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated
in the PRC on 29 April 2006 and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.
BMETABERFZERAF - —FKMN20065F4 H29 A 7 A B 5tk 32 8950
BEEAREEAR  RRMNEEZEMEBLRG -

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited Chongging Nanping
Sub-branch* (F B T R1TAR (DA R A R M2 1T).
PEITERITROBRRFDEEMT T -
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“Jiangshan Phoebus” Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting Electron Co., Ltd.* (LILJELEHTARRERA R
‘A7), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 8 March
2006 and our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.

PANIIE[S:2:1 TIIFELHTIBBAAR AR - —KMK2006F3 A8H 1+ B A 2 AR
BERF  REMANEZEZEMHREBLR -

“Jiangshan Youhe” Jiangshan Youhe Machinery Co., Ltd.* (TIUTAMEHER A A), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and is owned as to
80% by Quzhou Aushite lllumination Co., Ltd.* (M BEIFRBARR
‘~a]), 39% equity interest of which is owned by Mr. WU Jiannong and
51% equity interest of which is owned by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (IR S HEREREBR A F) in which Mr. WU
Jiannong holds an 86% equity interest.

I #0 ] LTI RAMEMBR AR —REFBEKZNEREERF - H80%AE
HEMNREERBAERARRE  MRERLEHAEMNRETERAEGR
NAIHB9% MM - AR RETEEREB AR A FFAEMNRLSRAFR
NEIHS1%E - RERLARFBIMIRASHEREEFR A AH86%A%
T o

“Jiang Te” Chongging Jiang Te Surface Processing Co., Ltd.* (EETHREKES
R A7), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and owned
as to 51% by Chongging En Wei Xi from May 2009 to September 2014.

L% BEEIRRAREERAR  —REFEFMALNBREFTAF @ N
20095 A £2014F9 A HR BE TR B E51 %R HE -

“LED” Light-Emitting Diode.
[LED] B IR o
“Lei Li Jie” Chongaing Lei Li Jie Industrial Development Co., Ltd. * (EEEEE

HZREAMRAF), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
which may potentially be associated with Mr. WU Changjiang.

BT EEEVREXERARAT - —REFBEFMK I B AIgEERRITE
S ERENARAG -

“Listing Date” 20 May 2010.
[EmA ] 201065 H 208 -
“Listing Rules” The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited.
[KEMmRAD] (BEEBMARZMARRRZES LR -
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“Mianyang Leici”

[ #8F5 2 1 |

“Minsheng Chongqing”

[RERTEESTT]

“Model Code”

“NVC Brasil”

[EREL]

“NVC China”

[ELHE]

Mianyang Leici Electronic Technology Co., Ltd.* (4[5 EME TR E
R 7)), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, 35% of
its equity interest being held by Huizhou NVC and its remaining equity
interest being held by China Electronics Technology Group Corporation
No. 9 Academy* (FBE FEHHEEE NFTA) (as to 36%), Mr. WEN
Jiatao (XKBLAE) (as to 15%) and Mr. ZHAO Qiyi (-t —5%4) (as to
14%).

BEEUEFRRBRAR  —RETFEFIMAINEREETAF  BF
METFEHEISNME - A TRES BT EEFRIREBE AT
(36%) * XFBEAE(5%) T+ —KE(14%)1FA -

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Chonging Branch* (&R 41T
ROBRRABEEDTT).
RERERITROBRAREEDTT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

CEMRAD MEF+ 2 K EMBTAESETERRXZNRESTAD

Guangdong Nan Yue Bank Chongging Shapingba branch* (/& g 248
TRMNABRARERDITHEZIT).
EREERTRND BB AREEDITHZIT -

NVC Lighting Do Brasil Commercial Import and Export Co., Ltd., a
limited liability company incorporated in Brazil, a 51% equity interest
of which is held by Hong Kong TYU Technology Co., Ltd., our
wholly-owned subsidiary, and the remaining 49% equity interest of
which is held by NVC Brazil Technology Co., Ltd.

EAEIRAZEFELNARRR  —RECEIMKAZHBREER
A AR EMANEZENBRAREERTRBR DA FES1%MRE - &4
THI49%REREAE T RARMERAFIFER °

NVC Lighting (China) Co., Ltd.* (B XMRA(FRH)BRAF]), a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC
on 7 November 2012 and our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. The
name of NVC Lighting (Chongging) Co., Ltd.* (EBEELEXABRAR)
was changed to NVC Lighting (China) Co., Ltd.* (Et8BRA(FRE)ER A
Al) on 21 March 2014.

BT (FE) ARAF - —KRN20126F11 A7 B £+ Bz 850
BEEBREELNR  RERMNEEZENEAR - EEELEXEEBRA
AIR2014F3A21 B ERRELTRA (hE) BRAF -
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* 2
R
“ODM” original design manufacturing, a type of manufacturing under which

the manufacturer is responsible for the design and production of the
products and the products are marketed and sold under the customer’s
brand name.

[ODM ] JRFBFEE - RIBUHERE  HENASERNRGNEE - MEMAIA
B mhREHMIEE o

“OEM” original equipment manufacturing whereby products are manufactured
in accordance with the customer’s design and specification and are
marketed under the customer’s brand name.

[OEM ] REFRE  #FAERBEERANRBREER  WATPmEEH o
“020” Online to Offline, referring to the combination of business opportunity

offline and internet to enable internet to become the platform of offline
transactions.

[020] Online To Offline (TE4RBERR 4R EEIET) - RIEHETHREBHKGRE
BEEe  ELBMBENRARETZZHAA °

“Pledge and Guarantee Agreements” certain pledge and guarantee agreements entered into by Mr. WU
or “Purported Pledge and Changjiang, on behalf of NVC China or purportedly on behalf of NVC
Guarantee Agreements” China, without the Board’s knowledge, to secure bank loans of other

companies.

[ERRERT ] 3 HRRIGERRELTPREIMBRXRELTEESETAENBER TE]
[ A B8 R R = S HVE TERRERBZAEREMATHRITER

“Quzhou Aushite” Quzhou Aushite lllumination Co., Ltd.* (/M RBLIFRAARAQF), a

limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, 39% equity interest of
which is owned by Mr. WU Jiannong and 51% equity interest of which
is owned by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (/T [F =7
BEREEAR A A).

[N B ENREFRABRAT  —REFBEKIHNEREETRF - RERESE
Fr A E39%MHE - WIR S ¥aeRE BB R A Rl A Ho1 %k -

“Relevant Purported Pledge and certain pledge and guarantee agreements entered into by Mr. WU
Guarantee Agreements” Changjiang purportedly on behalf of NVC China relating to bank loans
borrowed by Chongging En Wei Xi, Lei Li Jie, Wu Ji and Jiang Te in
2018 and 2014.
[ MBI P o8 B 1R R AR W HRRIIEEE2013F R2014FBRXELTEAREERER EL
- BRI RENRITERT NG TERRERDZE -
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“Reporting Period”
[#hEFE ]

“RMB”
[AREE]

“SFO”

[ RE )]

“Shandong NVC”

[HEREFL]

“Shang Yang”

[ %P5 ]

“Shanghai Arcata”

[ EEfRE]

“Sheng Di Ai Si”

[EEE A ]

the year ended 31 December 2015.
HZE2015F12A31HIEFE -

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.

AR - PEAESH -

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).
(EHRHE GO (BEEFIES7T1E) o

Shandong NVC Lighting Development Co., Ltd.* (LR E LHRAZEEGR
‘A Aa]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and is owned
as to 48% by Ms. CHEN Min, Mr WU Changjiang’s mother-in-law.
WRETRBAZEERAR  —REFREKINBEREEAR » RRIIE
AR ERRB L TR %R FI48%H AR

Chongging Shang Yang Lighting Engineering Co., Ltd.* (2 H[5HR
BT AR AT]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and owned as to 48% by Ms. WU Lian, Mr. WU Changjiang’s wife from
January 2009 to November 2014, and therefore a connected person of
the Company.

EERGRAIRARAR  —KETBEFMKXZHERLAF - LEEZ
ZENF-AEZZT—MOFE+—H » HA8RHNREHRRIEENEFR
RMLLHR  ALBARRARZEEALT -

Shanghai Arcata Electronics Co., Ltd.* (E/BM-KBETFARRAA), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 22 September
2005 and our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.
EBMREEFBRAT - —KMN2005F9HA22 B BT MK H B R
BEERAA - REMOEEZEMBEAFR -

Zhongshan Sheng Di Ai Si Lighting Co., Ltd.* (&L B8 ithE 5] FRAH
AR E(EAA), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
and is owned as to 40.93% by Ms. CHEN Min, Mr. WU Changjiang’s
mother-in-law, which was written off in July 2014.
RIUTEMZRIRBAEREETLR  —REFBRKIZZBEREERAE] - R
RIEENERSRBELTIFEZAF40.98%RIIRHE - %A RIER20145F
7THEH



»

“Stock Exchange
[ B 22 By

“SUI’my”

(=&

“Tongyi”

[ F)5E ]

“UK NVC”

“US.A” or “US.”

EE0

“US$”, “USD” or “US Dollar”

E

[ 243

“World Bright”

[tHA |

we”, “us” or “our”
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Definitions

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
BEBBER AR QA

Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny Electron Co., Ltd.* (L LIL=RKEFER A
7)), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 2 July 1994
and our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.
WLIIW=REFBERAR  —KN1994F7 A2REF BT MKZNE
REFERA - foBﬂFEJE’\]F'aEHiiéM#%”AET o

Chongaging New North Zone Tongyi Micro Loans Co., Ltd* (EE M1t ER
#ERHENEERERARF).
BEMILBFERBENEERERDIA °

NVC Lighting Limited (formerly known as NVC (Manufacturing) Limited),
a private company incorporated in England and Wales on 31 May 2007,
and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.

NVC Lighting Limited (JR & ANVC (Manufacturing) Limited) © —5R K%
2007F5 A1 A ERKRE MEBLEMKINLART  EHMANEES
BWEAA ©

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all was
subject to its jurisdiction.
ENBERE - HET - BHERETENMAHRE -

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States.
E7 0 XBEVEEEH

the Company or the Group (as the context may require).

ARARHAEE (BFXEME)

Jiangshan World Bright Crystal Co., Ltd.* (LIUttBA/KSEFEARE A
a]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, 100% equity
interest of which is owned by Quzhou Aushite.
TIIHRKSEERBAR AR —REFBEKZHNEREEAR - HMNEL
FrRF B % A F1100% 8 AR 1 o
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“World Through”
[t58 ]

“Wu Ji”

[ 4% |

“Zhangpu Phoebus”
RiES

“Zhejiang NVC”

[HIEL

World Through Investments Limited* (it 3% & G 2 7)), a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 5 August
2005 and our wholly-owned subsidiary.

HBIREBR AR © —RK2005F8ASHERBHE RS EMALNE
REMLERE > 2RMANE2EMELRGE] -

Chongaing Wu Ji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (B EiRE i
EFZEARAT]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC
which may potentially be associated with Mr. WU Changjiang.
EEEBEMERZEARAR - —RAEF MK B AT gEER % A
MR AR AR ©

Zhangpu Phoebus Lighting Co., Ltd.* (EMIELHTBAAER QA F), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 9 May 2004 and
our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.

EHIFEITBAAR AR 0 —KMR2004F5 898 7 B M E R
BERR  REMNEZEZ2ERBLR -

Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., Ltd.* (I ELEEER A H]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 28 September 2007, a
51% equity interest of which is held by Huizhou NVC and the remaining
49% equity interest of which is held by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (fLRS#HeEREEBR A A).

MIETEEGRAR - —HKN2007F9H28H T B LA BRE
ERE - BME LB EE1%MME - R T H49%RE BT RS HELIRE
EERARRE °

denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company

or entity, or vice versa, and is provided for identification purposes

only
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Official Partner of FINA
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NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED

www.nvc-lighting.com.cn
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